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1. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited was incorporated in Hong Kong
(hereinafter as the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries were incorporated in
Hong Kong or Shanghai (together with the Bank hereinafter as the
“Group”). The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance.

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking
and related financial services. The principal activities of the Bank’s
subsidiaries are shown in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the Bank”. The
address of the Bank's registered office is 151 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1  Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs
is a collective term which includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certificated Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments)
at fair value through profit or loss, precious metals at fair value,
investment properties which are carried at fair value and premises
which are carried at fair value or revalued amount less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Repossessed assets
are stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sell as further explained in Notes 2.23.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
the Management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
3.

(a) Amendments that are relevant to the Group and are
initially adopted for accounting period beginning
on 1 January 2020

BREAZEE
Applicable for

(EH] AR financial years
Amendments Content beginning on/after
BB TEIREERISE 35 (KEET) HEENTFE 20201 A1 H
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business 1 January 2020
B SRS 1 SRANE 8 5% (KERT) HEAUNTE 20201 A1 H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material 1 January 2020
BRI EERIE 9% - A AR BRI RS 20201 A1 H
F 3R E BN B ELERE 7 5%
(BERT)
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform 1 January 2020
and HKFRS 7
BRI BIMERERE 1658 (FIEFT) HeE 20206 A 1H
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Leases 1 June 2020
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2.
2.1
(a)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Amendments that are relevant to the Group and are
initially adopted for accounting period beginning
on 1 January 2020 (Cont'd)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, “Definition of a Business”. The
amendments clarify the definition of a business, with the
objective of assisting entities to determine whether a business
combination transaction should be accounted for as a business
combination or as an asset acquisition. The amendments have
been applied prospectively. The application of this amendment
does not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, “Definition of
Material”. The amendments clarify the definition of materiality
of information and align the definition used across other
accounting standards. The amendments have been applied
prospectively. The application of these amendments does not
have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7, “Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform”. The amendments modify certain specific
hedge accounting requirements to provide temporary relief
allowing the continuous use of hedge accounting under the
uncertainties caused by interest rate benchmark reform (“IBOR
reform”) on the cash flows of the hedge relationships. Pursuant
to the amendments, the relief would deem to be ended at the
earlier of (i) when there is no longer uncertainty arising from
IBOR reform over the cash flows of the hedging relationships,
and (ii) when the hedging relationship to which the relief
applied is discontinued, or in case of cash flow hedges, when
the entire amount accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve
with respect to the discontinued hedging relationship has been
reclassified to profit or loss. The amendments have been applied
retrospectively. The application of these amendments does not
have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Amendments that are relevant to the Group and are
initially adopted for accounting period beginning
on 1 January 2020 (Cont'd)

Amendments to HKFRS 16, “Leases”. The amendments provide
a practical expedient that exempt lessees from evaluating
whether rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic are lease modifications and, instead,
account for those rent concessions as if they were not lease
modifications.

The amendments are effective on 1 June 2020 and applicable to
COVID-19-related rent concessions that reduce lease payments
from 1 January 2020 to 30 June 2021. The adoption of the
amendments does not have a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) E MR FIEEG(E o K 7 # £ 3K (b) Amendments and interpretation issued that are
R KK 2020 FE12ATERN Z1E5T R 2 FE relevant to the Group but not yet mandatorily

effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group in 2020

AT E M 285 K2R 20211 A 1 BBz bATE The following amendments and interpretation have been issued and

PR St R R b EAER -

are mandatorily effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1

January 2021:
BRERAZEE
Applicable for
CHPE AES financial years
Amendments/interpretation Content beginning on/after
BBV EEANE R - BB BRI RN E E R 202141 A1 H
HRIE 395 - BEMBIMELERNE 757
BEVBRELELE 45 REBM GRS
ZERI%E 16 5% (B1&3T)
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 1 January 2021
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
BB TR E RIS 3 5% (KEET) BRERS2E 2022% 1 A1H
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
BEGFHERIE 1 5% (BE5T) mENIERE B BRI SR 20231 A1 H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Current or Non-current liabilities 1 January 2023
EBZERE 598 (2020) MEHREEY — BERRERETNERETERADE 2023F1 A1 H
HK Int 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification 1 January 2023

by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Amendments and interpretation issued that are
relevant to the Group but not yet mandatorily
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group in 2020 (Cont'd)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

. Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16, “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2. The
amendments address issues that might affect financial reporting
when an entity replaces the old interest rate benchmark with an
alternative benchmark rate as a result of the IBOR Reform. The
amendments complement those issued in 2019 and relate to:

= changes to contractual cash flows — a company will
not have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount
of financial instruments for changes required by the
reform, but will instead update the effective interest
rate to reflect the change to the alternative benchmark
rate;

- hedge accounting — a company will not have to
discontinue its hedge accounting solely because it makes
changes required by the reform, if the hedge meets
other hedge accounting criteria; furthermore, if an
entity reasonably expects that an alternative benchmark
rate will be separately identifiable within a period of 24
months, it can designate the alternative reference rate
as a non-contractually specified risk component even if
it is not separately identifiable at the designation date;
and

- disclosures — a company will be required to disclose
information about new risks arising from the reform and
how it manages the transition to alternative benchmark
rates.

The amendments are to be applied retrospectively, except
regarding designation of hedging relationships. The
comparatives are not restated. Early application is permitted. The
Group is considering the financial impact of the amendments
on the Group’s financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Amendments and interpretation issued that are
relevant to the Group but not yet mandatorily
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group in 2020 (Cont'd)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, “Reference to the Conceptual
Framework”. The amendments update a reference in HKFRS
3 to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued
in 2018. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception
to its requirement for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability,
that for some types of liabilities and contingent liabilities, an
entity applying HKFRS 3 should instead refer to HKAS 37. The
exception has been added to avoid an unintended consequence
of updating the reference to the Conceptual Framework. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. Earlier application
is permitted if at the same time or earlier an entity also applies
all the amendments made by Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, issued in June
2018. The application of the amendments will not have a
material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1, “Classification of Current or Non-
current liabilities”. The amendments aim to promote consistency
in applying the requirements by helping entities determine
whether, in the balance sheet, debt and other liabilities with
an uncertain settlement date should be classified as current
(due or potentially due to be settled within one year) or non-
current. The amendments include clarifying the classification
requirements for debt an entity might settle by converting it into
equity. The amendments are to be applied retrospectively. Early
adoption is permitted. The Group is considering the financial
impact of the amendments on the Group’s financial statements.

HK Int 5 (2020), “Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause “. This interpretation is revised
as a consequence of Amendments to HKAS 1, “Classification
of Current or Non-current liabilities” issued in August 2020, to
align the corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.
The amendments are to be applied retrospectively. Early
adoption is permitted. The Group is considering the financial
impact of the interpretation and the timing of its application.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(c) Improvements to HKFRSs

o “Improvements to HKFRSs” contains numerous amendments to
HKFRSs which the HKICPA considers not urgent but necessary.
It comprises amendments that result in accounting changes
for presentation, recognition or measurement purpose as well
as terminology or editorial amendments related to a variety of
individual HKFRSs. These improvements will not have a material
impact on the Group's financial statements.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Bank and all of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated; unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment of the assets transferred. Where necessary, accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Bank on the basis of dividends received and
receivable. Dividend income from subsidiaries is recognised in the
income statement when the right to receive payment is established.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.3 Segmental reporting

The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the Management, which is the
chief operating decision maker of the Group, that allocates resources
and assesses the performance of operating segments. Income and
expenses directly associated with each segment are included in
determining operating segment performance.

2.4  Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period for items that are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of foreign currency transactions using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions and monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies translated at the exchange
rate at the end of the reporting period are recognised directly in the
income statement, except when deferred in other comprehensive income
as qualifying cash flow hedge or qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair value
through profit or loss are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign
currency classified as fair value through other comprehensive income
are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the securities and other changes in the carrying
amount of the securities. Translation differences related to changes in
the amortised cost are recognised in the income statement, and other
changes in the carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.4  Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

Translation differences on non-monetary items are reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are included in other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a
functional currency different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into
Hong Kong dollars as follows:

3 assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rates at the end
of the reporting period,;

° income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates;
and

o all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the

translation reserve in equity through other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of
the net investment in foreign entities, borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such investments are taken to
other comprehensive income and are accumulated separately in the
translation reserve. When a foreign entity is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to in the income statement, as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets,
including recent market transactions, and through the use of valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and option pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair
value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (Cont'd)

Certain derivatives embedded in financial liabilities are treated as
separate derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are
not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract
is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their
fair value are recognised immediately in the income statement unless
they are designated as hedges and are effective hedging instruments,
then they are subject to measurement under the hedge accounting
requirements.

For derivative instruments being designated as hedging instrument in
an effectively hedge, the method of recognising the resulting fair value
gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group
also documents its assessment, both at the hedge inception and on an
ongoing basis, of the economic relationship, credit risk, the hedge ratio
and an evaluation of the effectiveness of the hedging instruments in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flow of hedged items. These
criteria should be met before a hedge can be qualified to be accounted
for under hedge accounting. Hedge accounting may become ineffective
if the hedging instrument and the hedged item lose economic
relationship, or a significant change of the counterparties’ credit risks
that dominates the fair value change of the hedging instruments or the
hedged items.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (Cont'd)

(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualified as effective fair value hedges are recognised in the income
statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged
asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

For fair value hedge relationships where the hedged items are debt
instruments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income,
changes in fair value are recorded in the income statement whilst hedge
accounting is in place. When the hedge relationship no longer meets
the criteria for hedge accounting or is terminated for reasons other
than derecognition, the cumulative effective hedged portion of fair
value change recognised in the income statements are amortised by the
effective interest method back to the revaluation reserve. If the hedged
item is derecognised, the unamortised cumulative effective hedged
portion of fair value change recognised in the income statement are
reclassified to revaluation reserve immediately.

(b) Netinvestment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity;
a gain or loss on the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
income statement. Accumulated gains and losses previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the income statement
upon disposal of the foreign operation as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

2.6  Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.7 Interest income and expense and fee and
commission income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all financial assets and financial liabilities using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Group estimates future cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (e.g.
prepayment options or incentives relating to residential mortgage loans)
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes
fees, premiums or discounts and basis points paid or received between
parties to the contract, and directly attributable origination fees and
costs which represent an integral part of the effective yield.

For all hedge transactions where interest rate is the hedged risk, interest
income or interest expense from hedged instruments such as fixed rate
debt securities are disclosed on a net basis together with net interest
income/expense arising from the hedging instrument such as interest
rate swap.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised on the written down value using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Subsequent unwinding of the discount allowance is
recognised as interest income.

Fee income from services are recognized over time at a fixed or
variable price on a systematic basis over the life of the agreement
when the contract requires services to be provided over time such as
account service and credit card fees, or recognized at a point in time
under transaction-based arrangements when service has been fully
provided to the customer such as broking services and loan syndication
arrangement.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition and
subsequently measured financial assets as: (i) at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVPL"), (i) at amortised cost (“AC") or (iii) at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”). The classification depends
on the entity’s business model for managing its financial instruments
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instruments, or the
election of fair value option. All financial assets are recognised initially at
fair value. Except for financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss, all transaction costs of financial assets are included in their initial
carrying amounts.

(1)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has three sub-categories: financial assets held for trading,
those designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception, and
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

A financial asset which has been acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term or is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and for which there
is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking is
classified as held for trading. Derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd)

(1)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Cont’d)

A financial asset can be designated as a financial asset at fair value

through profit or loss, if it meets one of the criteria set out below, and

is so designated by the Management:

o eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an accounting
mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from measuring the
financial assets or recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases; or

° applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both
that is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the group is
provided internally on that basis to the Management; or

° relates to financial assets containing one or more embedded
derivative that significantly modifies the cash flow resulting
from those financial assets.

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with transaction
costs taken directly to the income statement, and are subsequently re-
measured at fair value.

Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such assets
are reported in net trading gain/loss or net gain/loss on financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

(2) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met: (i) the financial assets
are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and (ii) the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowances
for impairment losses. Interest income which includes the amortisation
of premium or discount is calculated using the effective interest
method and is recognised in the income statement. Gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd)

(3)  Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Debt instruments are classified as subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income if both of the following
conditions are met: (i) the financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling, and (ii) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are
initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction
costs, and are subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealised gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value of investments are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, until the financial
asset is derecognised or impaired at which time the accumulated gain or
loss previously recognised in equity should be transferred to the income
statement. However, interest income which includes the amortisation of
premium and discount is calculated using the effective interest method
and is recognised in the income statement.

For equity investments, an irrevocable election can be made at initial
recognition to recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains or losses
in other comprehensive income without subsequent reclassification of
fair value gains or losses to the income statement even upon disposal
(non-recycling). Dividends on equity instruments classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognised in other operating
income when the Group’s right to receive payment is established. Equity
instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to impairment assessment.

The treatment of translation differences on fair value through other
comprehensive income securities is dealt with in Note 2.4.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.9 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following
categories: (i) trading liabilities, (ii) financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss, (iii) deposits, debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue, subordinated liabilities, and other liabilities. All
financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at
fair value, and in the case of financial liability not at fair value through
profit or loss, plus or minus transaction costs.

(1) Trading liabilities

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It is
measured at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in fair
value are recognised in the income statement.

(2) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss

A financial liability can be designated at fair value through profit or loss
if it is so designated at inception. A financial liability is so designated if
it meets one of the following criteria:

3 eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an accounting
mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from measuring the
financial liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them
on different bases; or

o applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both
that is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the Group is
provided internally on that basis to the Management; or

3 relates to financial liabilities containing one or more embedded
derivative that significantly modifies the cash flow resulting
from those financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in fair
value are recognised in the income statement.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.9 Financial liabilities (Cont'd)

(3) Deposit, debt securities and certificates of deposit
in issue, subordinated liabilities, and other liabilities

Deposits, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue,
subordinated liabilities, and other liabilities, other than those classified
as trading liabilities or designated at fair value through profit or loss are
carried at amortised cost. Any difference (if available) between proceeds
net of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period using the effective interest method.

2.10 Financial guarantee contracts and undrawn loan
commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a contract between the holder and the
debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial
liabilities and reported under “Other accounts and provisions” in the
financial statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) an ECL provision and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, accumulated
amortisation recognised over the life of the guarantee on a straight-
line basis. Any changes in the liability relating to financial guarantee
contracts are taken to the income statement.

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the
duration of the commitment, the Group is required to provide a loan
with pre-specified terms to the customer.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.11 Recognition, derecognition and modification of
financial instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets subsequently measured at
FVPL, at FVOCI and AC are recognised on the trade date, the date on
which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans and advances
and other financial assets are recognised when cash is advanced to
the counterparty. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
When the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the Group either
continues to recognise the transferred financial asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement if control remains or derecognise it if there is no
retained control. If the contractual cashflow of FVOCI or AC financial
instruments are renegotiated or modified, the modified contractual
cashflow should be discounted using the original effective interest rate,
and compared with the original amortised cost before impairment.
If the difference is material, the original financial instrument should
be derecognised and then re-recognised with the present value
aforementioned. Otherwise, the difference is adjusted to the original
carrying value and accounted for in the profit or loss.

Trading liabilities, financial liabilities designated at FVPL, debt securities
and certificates of deposit in issue and subordinated liabilities are
recognised on the trade date. Deposits that are not designated at
FVPL are recognised when money is received from customers, other
liabilities are recognised when such obligations arise. Financial liabilities
are derecognised from the balance sheet when and only when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation to
repurchase at a pre-determined price on a specified future date under
a repurchase agreement are referred to as repos. Securities and bills
purchased from a counterparty with an obligation to re-sell to the
counterparty at a pre-determined price on a specified future date under
a resale agreement are referred to as reverse repos.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.11 Recognition, derecognition and modification of
financial instruments (Cont'd)

Repos or securities lending are initially recorded as Deposits and
balances from banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate,
at the actual amount of cash received from the counterparty. Financial
assets given as collateral for repurchase agreements are not derecognised
and are recorded as investment in securities or financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Reverse repos or securities
borrowing are initially recorded in the balance sheet as Cash and
balances with banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate,
at the actual amount of cash paid to the counterparty. Financial assets
received as collateral under reverse repurchase agreements are not
recognised on the balance sheet. The difference between sale and
repurchase price is recognised as interest income or interest expense
over the life of the agreements using the effective interest method.

2.12 Fair value measurement

The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious
metals and certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in its principal market or the most advantageous
market accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses the price within the bid-offer spread that is most
representative of the fair value of financial instruments, where
appropriate, includes using on the residual of the net offsetting risk
position of portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities in cases
the Group manages such groups of financial assets and liabilities
according to their net market risk exposures. Despite the Group
measures the fair value of these groups of financial instruments on
a net basis, the underlying financial assets and financial liabilities are
separately presented in the financial statements unless the offsetting
criterias are fulfilled.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.12 Fair value measurement (Cont'd)

If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses
valuation techniques, including the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and
other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants,
that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

2.13 Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals. Precious
metals are initially recognised and subsequently re-measured at fair
value. Mark-to-market gains or losses on precious metals are included
in net trading gain/loss.

2.14 Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs)
on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost;

- debt securities measured at FVOCI; and

- loan commitments and financial guarantees issued, which are
not measured at FVPL.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including equity securities
measured at FVPL, equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling)
and derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL assessment.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments and financial guarantees outstanding,
expected cash shortfalls are measured as the difference between (i) the
contractual cash flows that would be due to the Group if the holder of
the loan commitment draws down on the loan/the beneficiary of the
financial guarantee claims on the financial guarantee and (ii) the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive if the loan is drawn down/the
financial guarantee is claimed.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted where the effect of
discounting is material. The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort.
This includes information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result
from possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; or

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from
all possible default events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

The Group will account for expected credit losses within the next
12 months as Stage 1 when those financial instruments are initially
recognised; and to recognise lifetime expected credit losses as Stage
2 when there has been significant increases in credit risk since initial
recognition. Lifetime expected credit losses will be recognised for credit-
impaired financial instruments as Stage 3 if one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred and interest will then be accrued net of
the impairment amount of the respective Stage 3 financial assets.

The Group considers that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to act on such as realising security (if any is
held); or (i) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument (including
a loan commitment and financial guarantee) has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. The Group takes
into account following information, including but not limited to:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the group.

For loan commitments and financial guarantees, the date of initial
recognition for the purpose of assessing ECLs is considered to be the
date that the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment.
In assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition of a loan commitment and financial guarantee,
the Group considers changes in the risk of default occurring on the loan
and guarantee to which the loan commitment and financial guarantee
relates.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the
financial instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in
the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in income
statement. The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account, except for investments in
debt securities that are measured at FVOCI, for which the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
fair value reserve.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note 2.7 is calculated
based on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired (Stage 3), in which case interest income
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

When a financial asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the
related allowance for impairment losses. Such assets are written off
after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount
of the loss has been determined. The assets written off are still subject
to enforcement activity. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off decrease the amount of impairment losses in the income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for impairment
losses decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised
impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed by adjusting
the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the
income statement.

Loans whose terms have been renegotiated with substantial difference
in the terms are no longer considered to be past due but are treated as
new loans.

2.15 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and non-
financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Potential indications of impairment may include significant
adverse changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment in which the assets operate or whether there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in value below their cost. “Significant”
is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged”
against the period in which the fair value has been below its original
cost.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.15 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and non-
financial assets (Cont'd)

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, impairment testing of the investment in
a subsidiary is also required upon receiving dividend from that entity
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of that entity
concerned in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of that entity in the Bank’s balance sheet exceeds the carrying
amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its consolidated
balance sheet.

2.16 Investment properties

Properties (including right-of use assets arising from leases over
leasehold land on which properties are situated) that are held for long-
term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not
occupied by the companies in the Group, are classified as investment
properties. Properties leased out within Group companies are classified
as investment properties in individual companies’ financial statements
and as premises in consolidated financial statements.

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The work in progress item is stated at fair value. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income
statement.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.16 Investment properties (Cont'd)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises, and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes
its cost for accounting purposes. If an item of premises becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any difference
resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
as a revaluation of premises under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and
Equipment”. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous revaluation
loss or impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the income statement
up to the amount previously debited.

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties (including right-of use assets arising from leases over
leasehold land on which properties are situated) are mainly branches
and office premises. Premises are shown at fair value based on
periodic, at least annually, valuations by external independent valuers
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated
against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is
restated to the revalued amount of the asset. In the intervening periods,
the directors review the carrying amount of premises, by reference to
the open market value of similar properties, and adjustments are made
when there has been a material change.

All plant and equipment and right-of-use assets other than leasehold
land are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss. Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition and installation of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or are
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The item
is stated at cost less impairment until it begins to generate economic
benefits, then the item is subsequently measured according to the
measurement basis of its respective assets class. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.17 Properties, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises
are credited to the premises revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income. Decreases that offset previous increases of the
same individual asset are charged against premises revaluation reserve
through other comprehensive income; all other decreases are expensed
in the income statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to
the income statement up to the amount previously debited, and then
to the premises revaluation reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the
relevant portion of the premises revaluation reserve realised in respect
of previous valuations is released and transferred from the premises
revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down
the cost or revalued amount of such assets over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

o Properties
Over the life of government land leases
o Plant and equipment

2 to 15 years
Right-of-use assets

Shorter of useful lives and lease terms

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at
the end of each reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources
of information are considered to determine whether there is any
indication that properties, plant and equipment, are impaired. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the
asset to its recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement except where the asset is carried at valuation
and the impairment loss does not exceed the revaluation surplus for
that same asset, in which case it is treated as a revaluation decrease.
The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through the
premises revaluation reserve or the income statement as appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount, relevant taxes and expenses. These are
recognised in the income statement on date of disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve to
retained earnings and is not reclassified to the income statement.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.18 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use over
the contract period.

(1) As a lessee

On the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-
use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at
the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term,
after taking into account payments to be made in the optional period
if the extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.

After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using the effective interest method.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is initially
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability plus any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of
the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted to their present value, less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses except for
the following types of right-of-use asset:

- right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment
property are carried at fair value; and

- right-of-use assets related to leasehold land and buildings that
do not meet the definition of investment property where the
Group is the registered owner of the leasehold interest are
carried at revalued amount.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.18 Leases (Cont'd)
(1) As a lessee (Cont'd)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
income statement if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has
been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition
of investment property in ‘Properties, plant and equipment’ and
presents lease liabilities separately in “Other accounts and provisions”.

(2) Asalessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception
whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease is
classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to the
lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

The rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with original maturity less than
three months from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances
with banks and other financial institutions, short-term bills and notes
classified as investment securities and certificates of deposit.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.21 Employee benefits
(1)  Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes
under either recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are
available to the Group’s employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and in accordance with the MPF
rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme costs are charged
to the income statement as incurred and represent contributions
payable by the Group to the schemes. Contributions made by the
Group that are forfeited by those employees who leave the ORSO
scheme prior to the full vesting of their entitlement to the contributions
are used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions or to
meet its expenses under the trust deed of the ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered funds
separate from those of the Group.

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for unused annual leave and the amount of sick leave expected
to be paid as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end
of the reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved
annual leaves are non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period’s
entitlement is not used in full. Except for unexpired annual leaves, they
do not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused entitlement on
leaving the Group.

(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability when
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made. Liabilities for bonus plans that are expected to be settled
longer than twelve months will be discounted if the amounts are
significant.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.21 Employee benefits (Cont'd)
(4) Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit plan which is unfunded. The cost
of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using
the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from actuarial gains and losses of the defined
benefit plan, is recognised immediately in the consolidated balance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to income statement in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in income statement at the earlier of:
3 the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
o the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability. The Group recognises the following changes
in the net defined benefit obligation under “interest expenses” and
“operating expenses” in the consolidated income statement by
function:

o service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs,
gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements

o net interest expense

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expenses for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted
or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period in each
jurisdiction where the Bank and the subsidiaries operate and generate
taxable income, is recognised as a current income tax expense in the
period in which profits arise.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes (Cont'd)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment
provisions, depreciation of premises and equipment, and revaluation
of certain assets including at fair value through other comprehensive
income securities and premises. However, the deferred income tax is
not recognised if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of any unused tax
credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement
except for deferred income tax relating to fair value re-measurement
of securities at fair value through other comprehensive income
and revaluation of premises which are charged or credited to other
comprehensive income, in which case the deferred income tax is also
credited or charged to other comprehensive income and is subsequently
recognised in the income statement together with the realisation of the
deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment
property is determined based on the presumption that the revaluation
amount of such investment property will be recovered through sale with
the relevant tax rate applied.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.23 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their fair
value less costs to sell and the amortised cost of the related outstanding
loans on the date of repossession, and the related loans and advances
together with the related impairment allowances are derecognised from
the balance sheet. Subsequently, repossessed assets are measured at
the lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and are reported
as “non-current assets held for sale” included in “Other assets”.

2.24 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities,
that result in its holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts and other institutions. These assets and any gains or losses arising
thereon are excluded from these financial statements, as they are not
assets of the Group.

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the probability
of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When the inflow is virtually certain, it will be recognised as an
asset.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.26 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered
to be related to the Group if that party (i) controls, jointly controls or
has significant influence over the Group; (ii) is @ member of the same
financial reporting group, such as parents, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries; (iii) is an associate or a joint venture of the Group or parent
reporting group; (iv) is a key management personnel of the Group or
parents; (v) is subject to common control with the Group; (vi) is an
entity in which a person identified in (iv) controls; and (vii) provides key
management personnel services to the Group or its parent. Related
parties may be individuals or entities.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Areas
susceptible to changes in essential estimates and judgements, which
affect the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, are set out below.
The effect of changes to either the key assumptions or other estimation
uncertainties will be presented below if it is practicable to determine. It
is possible that actual results may require material adjustments to the
estimates referred to below.

3.1 Impairment requirements on financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 across all
categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral
values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of
a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a
number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment requirements on financial assets (Cont'd)

number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable
inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that

= are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:
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The Group’s internal credit grading model, which assigns PDs to
the individual grades.

The Group’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial assets
should be measured on a lifetime ECL basis and the qualitative
assessment.

The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed
on a collective basis.

Development of ECL models, including the determination of
macroeconomic scenarios and the effect on PDs, EADs and
LGDs.

Forward-looking macroeconomic factor forecasts maintain a
consistent Group's view on future macroeconomic environment.

Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and
their probability weightings, to derive the economic inputs into
the ECL models.

It has been the Group’s policy to regularly review its models in the
context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.2 Fair values of derivative financial instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments that are not quoted in
active markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques used include discounted cash flows analysis and models
with built-in functions available in externally acquired financial analysis
or risk management systems widely used by the industry such as option
pricing models. To the extent practical, the models use observable data.
In addition, valuation adjustments may be adopted if factors such as
credit risk are not considered in the valuation models. Management
judgement and estimates are required for the selection of appropriate
valuation parameters, assumptions and modeling techniques. Further
details will be discussed in Note 5.

Carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments as at 31 December
2020 are shown in Note 21.

3.3 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets on unused tax credits are recognised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the estimation
of available tax credits and the possibility to recover such deferred tax
assets recognised.

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a
variety of business activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk,
market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity
risk. This note summarises the Group’s exposures to these risks, as well
as its objectives, risk management governance structure, policies and
processes for managing and the methods used to measure these risks.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover
all business processes and ensure various risks are properly managed
and controlled in the course of conducting business. The Group has a
robust risk management organisational structure with a comprehensive
set of policies and procedures to identify, measure, evaluate, monitor,
report, and control various risks that may arise. These risk management
policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and updated to reflect
changes in markets and business strategies. Various groups of risk
takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the
highest decision-making authority of the Group and has the ultimate
responsibility for risk management. The Board, with the assistance of
its committees, has the primary responsibility for the formulation of
risk management strategies and risk appetite, establishing a sound risk
culture and ensuring that the Group has an effective risk management
system to implement these strategies.

The Risk Management Committee, a standing committee established by
the Board of Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group’s various
types of risks, reviewing and approving high-level risk management
policies and monitoring their implementation, recommending senior risk
management organisational framework to the Board, including credit
approval authority for the Chief Executive and scope of credit approval
for the Credit Approval Committee. The Risk Management Committee
would refer any specific transaction to the Board if it is deemed so
significant that Board approval is desirable. The Risk Management
Committee, from the risk management viewpoint assesses whether
incentives created by the remuneration system are aligned with the
risk culture and risk appetite, and whether remuneration awards
appropriately reflect the level of risk-taking and consequences. It also
assists to fostering a strong risk culture within the Group. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role in overseeing the
internal control system.

The Credit Approval Committee is responsible for reviewing or
approving credit business or credit management related matters within
the authorisation granted by the Board of Directors, monitoring the
credit activities of the Group and reporting to the Risk Management
Committee regularly. The Chief Executive is responsible for organising
and implementing the risk management strategies and objectives
established by the Board of Directors, managing various risks and
approving significant risk exposures or transactions within the
authorisation granted by the Board of Directors.

#17% % % 48 4% » NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2020 ANNUAL REPORT 42§ * www.nch.com.hk

103



104

RAFS IR AR MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. <HEAREEE®)
SHEBEEERS ()
AEENTRSCAERARNARSEET - 2%
B LAREENE—EHES  MERSEEMAS
TREBEN BESERROBEEE  URE
B REAE SRR SRR R -

ARERY T AEHNHLHILR - DERIAES
BRI - A EREEER TR AR
% RFRIRE - B E B 5 B
BB EH R - R RN EE HE S
T ABESER IR -

Empa Kk kR

AT RERBT G REETENGRE - AEEE
T EXENERRBEIRAREZEEEGE - EEM
FEBED  AEESEMAEABFWHNBERYT
WHE TEENRRERBEER °

REEFSLEEEBROINEREE EmTEEN
BERBAENEEERMERMIEFE - ETEE
MEMME TIE - REEEREM B BREEBERM
EmRAE T RERBRE  BREE A2
EREFBETENER EUa EH AR EEE
TT&EZ °

BREENERRBEREMNERTHEN  EREEEM
SR e ATk B AR B B BRI ARG IR B A R
AR o AR HEAE R A A /W E R G AR
R EREMETBELRSE - RAERRFEELR
EEBESHER  FHEMA AHELTS -

HRRERTEPNMEERRAERENTTE
BHNMEEMERLR - AV AKHEEZESH
HRZEBE -

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Financial risk management framework (Cont'd)

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management
responsibilities. Business units act as the first line of defence while risk
management units, which are independent from the business units,
are responsible for the day-to-day management of different kinds
of risks. Risk management units have the primary responsibilities for
drafting, reviewing and updating various risk management policies and
procedures.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems,
including establishment of an organisational structure that sets clear
lines of authority and responsibility for monitoring compliance with
policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide
sufficient independence of the control functions from the business
areas, as well as adequate segregation of duties throughout the
organisation which helps to promote an appropriate internal control
environment.

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the
Group has a comprehensive product development and risk monitoring
system where roles and responsibilities of all related units are clearly
defined and proper due diligence processes on product development
are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the
Management, respective product management units are responsible
for formulating business and product development plans, and
proceeding to specific product development activities. The strategic
development unit shall ensure the plans are aligned with the Group’s
overall strategies. Units that are responsible for risk management, legal,
compliance and finance, etc. are accountable for risk assessment and
review.

Apart from product development, respective product management units
work closely with relevant risk evaluating units to identify and assess the
risks of new products. Risk evaluating units conduct independent review
on the risk assessment results and the corresponding risk management
measures. Products can only be launched upon completion of the
product due diligence process to the satisfaction of all risk evaluating
units.

A prudent approach is adopted in offering treasury products to our
customers. All new treasury products require approval from a specialised
committee before launching.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to
or unwilling to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the
trading book and banking book, as well as from on- and off-balance
sheet transactions of the Group. It arises principally from lending, trade
finance and treasury businesses.

Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk
management policies and procedures, and appropriate credit risk
limits to manage and control credit risk that may arise. These policies,
procedures and credit risk limits are regularly reviewed and updated to
cope with changes in market conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisational structure establishes a clear set of authority
and responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures
and limits.

The Credit and Loans Management Committee, a management
committee authorised by the Chief Executive, is responsible for the
implementation of the credit risk management strategies as well
as the approval of credit policies. It also monitors the Group’s loan
portfolio, quality of credit asset and risk concentration level. Different
units of the Group have their respective credit risk management
responsibilities. Business units act as the first line of defence. The risk
management units, which are independent from the business units,
are responsible for the day-to-day management of credit risks and have
the primary responsibilities for providing an independent due diligence
through identifying, measuring, evaluating, monitoring, reporting and
controlling credit risk to ensure an effective checks and balances, as well
as drafting, reviewing and updating credit risk management policies
and procedures. They report directly to the Chief Risk Officer, Credit
and Loans Management Committee, Chief Executive, Credit Approval
Committee and Risk Management Committee.

Nanyang Commercial Bank (China), Limited (“NCB (China)”) sets up
independent risk monitoring teams to monitor credit risk, and submits
management information and reports to the Bank on a regular basis.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 Credit risk (Cont'd)
Credit risk management framework (Cont'd)

The Board of Directors is the ultimate source of credit authority. The
Board of Directors delegates credit approval authority to the Credit
Approval Committee and the Chief Executive. Based on management
needs, the Chief Executive can further delegate to the credit-related
subordinates within the limit authorised by the Board of Directors. The
Group sets the limits of credit approval authority according to the credit
business nature, rating, the level of transaction risk, and the size of the
credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been
continuously revising its credit strategies and conducting rigorous
reviews on the concerned portfolios.

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according
to the level of risk associated with the customer, counterparty or
transaction. All credit applications are subject to thorough risk
assessment and proper approval. In general, most of the credit
applications will be reviewed and assessed by independent officer(s)
of risk management unit(s) before approval, with exceptions given to
designated advances which satisfy certain conditions. After funding
being drawn, these designated advances will be (randomly) reviewed by
designated unit(s) which is(are) independent from the front line business
units. Obligor ratings (in terms of probability of default) and facility
ratings (in terms of loss given default) are assigned to credit applications
for non-retail exposures to support credit approval. Retail internal rating
systems are deployed in the risk assessment of retail credit transactions,
including small business retail exposures, residential mortgage loans,
personal loans, etc. Loan grades, obligor and facility ratings as well as
loss estimates (if applicable) are used to support credit approval.

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates
(if applicable) to support monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit
risk. For non-retail exposures, more frequent rating review and closer
monitoring are required for higher-risk customers. For retail exposures,
monthly updated internal ratings and loss estimates are used for credit
monitoring on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is required
for obligors being identified under high-risk pools.

Regular or ad hoc credit risk management information reports are
provided to the Management, Credit Approval Committee, Risk
Management Committee and the Board of Directors to facilitate their
continuous monitoring of credit risk.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 Credit risk (Cont'd)

Credit risk measurement and control (Cont'd)
Advances (Cont’d)

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry,
geography, customer and counterparty. The Group monitors changes
in counterparty credit risk, quality of the credit portfolio and credit risk
concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group’s Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divides credit assets into
five categories with reference to the HKMA's guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is in current meeting its
repayment obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is
not in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing
difficulties which may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not
expected at this stage but could occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a
definable weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and
the Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking
into account the net realisable value of the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all
collection options (such as the realisation of collateral or the institution
of legal proceedings) have been exhausted.

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities, the obligor ratings or external credit
ratings, assessment of the underlying assets and credit limits setting
on customer/security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk
associated with the investment. For derivatives, the Group sets customer
limits to manage the credit risk involved and follows the same approval
and control processes as applied for advances. On-going monitoring
and stop-loss procedures are established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions with
counterparties and also from derivatives transactions in any situation
where a payment in cash, securities or equities is made in the failure of
a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily settlement
limits are established for each counterparty or customer to cover all
settlement risk arising from the Group’s market transactions on any
single day.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 Credit risk (Cont'd)
Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented
in the credit risk management policies and procedures which cover
acceptance criteria, validity of collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut
ratio, valuation and insurance, etc. The collateral is revalued on a regular
basis, though the frequency and the method used varies with the type
of collateral involved and the nature and the risk of the underlying
credit. The Group has established a mechanism to update the value of
its main type of collateral, real estate properties, with the use of public
indices on a portfolio basis. If necessary, collateral is insured with the
Group as the primary beneficiary.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the
guarantor’s financial condition, credit history and ability to meet
obligations.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not hold any collateral that
it was permitted to sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the
borrower (2019: Nil).

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL") Methodology

For impairment assessment, an impairment model is introduced
in compliance with HKFRS 9, it requires the recognition of ECL for
financial instrument held at amortized cost and fair value through other
comprehensive income. Under HKFRS 9, ECL is assessed in three stages
and the financial assets and commitments are classified in one of the
three stages.

Stage 1: if the financial instrument is not credit-impaired upon
origination and the credit risk on the financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the loss allowance is
measured at an amount up to 12-month ECL;

Stage 2: if the financial instrument is not credit-impaired upon
origination but the credit risk on the financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL;

Stage 3: if the financial instrument is credit-impaired, with one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred, the loss allowance is also
measured at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 Credit risk (Cont'd)
Expected Credit Loss (“ECL"”) Methodology (Cont'd)

The Group leverages the parameters implemented under Internal
Ratings-Based (“IRB”) models and internal models where feasible and
available to assess ECL. For the portfolios without models, all other
reasonable and supportable information such as historical information,
relevant loss experience or proxies are utilized. The measurement of ECL
is the product of the financial instrument’s probability of default (“PD"),
loss given default (“"LGD") and exposures at default (“EAD") discounted
at the effective interest rate to the reporting date.

ECL is measured at an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
The Group adopts three economic scenarios in the ECL measurement
to meet the requirements of HKFRS 9. The “Base case” scenario
represents a most likely outcome and the other two scenarios, referred
to as “Upside” scenario and “Downside” scenario, represent less likely
outcomes which are more optimistic or more pessimistic compared to
Base case scenario.

The Base case scenario is made reference to macroeconomics forecast
provided by internal economic research unit. For the Upside scenario
and Downside scenarios, the Group makes reference to the historical
macroeconomics data.

The macroeconomic factors in the major operating countries/regions
such as HK GDP growth rate, HK Inflation, HK unemployment
rate, HK Property price growth, China GDP growth rate and China
unemployment rate are applied in the economic scenarios. These
macroeconomic factors are considered to be important to the Group’s
ECL in statistical analysis and business opinion.

The probability assigned for each scenario reflects the Group’s view for
the economic environment, which implements the Group’s prudent
and consistent credit strategy of ensuring the adequacy of impairment
allowance. A higher probability is assigned to the Base case scenario to
reflect the most likely outcome and a lower probability is assigned to
the Upside and Downside scenarios to reflect the less likely outcomes.
The probabilities assigned are reviewed each quarter.

The ECL methodology has been validated by independent Model
Validation Unit and approved by the Risk Management Committee. The
Management is responsible to review model performance and changes
in ECL.
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4.
4.1

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL"”) Methodology (Cont'd)

Summary of credit risk by stage distribution at 31 December 2020 is, as

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Credit risk (Cont'd)

follows:
2020
REAE
Gross carrying amount
FHRER
RATREM
SRBBNER
Balances and
placements ERR
with banks Hitnikog
and other Advances SRRE HittEE BEER ERAR
financial and other Financial Other Financial Loan e
institutions accounts  investments assets guarantees  commitments Total
BT BETT BT BYTT BETT BYTR BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E—AE Stage 1 58,106,346 274,747,138 132,366,431 3,390,840 39,793,209 127,006,157 635,410,121
LR Stage 2 - 2,973,052 536,138 4,637 5,868 563,061 4,082,756
FEZMEE Stage 3 75,380 2,494,903 - 3,830 - - 2,574,113
pos] Total 58,181,726 280,215,093 132,902,569 3,399,307 39,799,077 127,569,218 642,066,990
2019
FREZE
Gross carrying amount
FHURTER
RITREAM
DRMENLE
Balances and
placements R R
with banks HiteRIa
and other Advances SRRE HiEE BIER Bk
financial and other Financial Other Financial Loan B
institutions accounts investments assets guarantees  commitments Total
BB BT BETT BT BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-RE& Stage 1 51,141,832 260,388,835 146,781,298 4,228,848 29,161,431 94,781,502 586,483,746
EREE Stage 2 = 2,962,628 = 10 3,784 91,945 3,058,367
F=RE Stage 3 70,768 1,865,454 - 3,361 = = 1,939,583
Fak Total 51,212,600 265,216,917 146,781,298 4,232,219 29,165,215 94,873,447 591,481,696




RAFS IR AR MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4., SHREREE®

41 FERREE)

A EBFFAR FIEAI B ZE 1 E 872

G B 2R AT A F A SR ST ARAR A - 0 SRR AT R
REBUBREEAEIREENRBRDE - UETE
BRI RS R BN TEERIB R EMENE
RS - WHNEBELBEBR  BEnEEE—BRE -
KglﬁﬁixhéﬂAﬁ%REW%$@ﬁ“'ﬁ

Pt R PR TERP AR D EER ENER R
SRR - ARFRTARER B EE \%ﬂmi =R KRT
ERARENELIN  BEABERARFOTRAE
HRER °

HEEH

LB - ERAREREE S AR B E AR
Al - ERERFEENERFRRE  ZENEE
TERUBEESMEEER(FIMEREE  TXA
B HEER  BEEEER)

b

N,
S
» St

= f
ZEEREBREAET  BXNTERIS - ELEM
AR — L RAREMN/ NEREBEE BT D XA
SRR REETTRIAR o

(A) EERBRERE

AEBEZ REEERBRAERAREBEMERRIE
e = Zf‘ﬂlﬂ#ﬁ’]rkﬂ SAYE - HNBEEREBERN
BE  EeEERBRAERSRERTE - HXHG
R ?%F%H A ERERAZLKAKER
RENEBNES LR - BREFAEREMEERER
MAE  SREERARAEAREEARNEHE -

AT BATH AR m R E S E B R e S R
AEEREERHEENEERE -

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 Credit risk (Cont'd)
The internal rating and PD estimation process

The Group leverages the internal rating models where possible, with
adjustments to incorporate forward looking information and the HKFRS
9 stage classification of the exposure to determine the PDs for HKFRS
9 ECL calculations. This is repeated for each economic scenario as
appropriate. The Group uses various internal rating models for its key
portfolios in which its wholesale customers or retail accounts are rated
or assigned to specific internal grades or risk pools. The internal rating
models incorporate both qualitative and quantitative information and,
in addition to information specific to the borrower, utilise supplemental
information such as borrower’s/account’s behaviour.

Wholesale lending

For wholesale lending, the repayment ability of borrowers are assessed
by designated divisions of the Group. The credit risk assessment is
based on a credit rating model that takes into account various financial
information and qualitative information (such as management quality,
industry risks, group connection, negative warning signals).

Retail lending

Retail lending comprises personal loans, overdrafts and retail mortgages.
These products along with and some of the less complex small business
lending are rated by automated scorecards or statistical PD models.

(A) Credit exposures

The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure
to the Group without taking into account any collateral held or other
credit enhancements. For on-balance sheet assets, the maximum
exposure to credit risk equals their carrying amount. For letters of
guarantee issued, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum
amount that the Group could be required to pay if the guarantees are
called upon. For loan commitment and other credit related liabilities, the
maximum exposure to credit risk is the full amount of the committed
facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and
their financial effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial
assets are as follows.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(A) Credit exposures (Contd)

Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

Collateral is generally not sought on these exposures in consideration of
the counterparty nature. However, other mitigation will be taken.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial
investments

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.

Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association, Inc. (“ISDA Master Agreement”) is the preferred
agreement for documenting derivatives activities of the Group. It
provides the contractual framework under which dealing activities of
over-the-counter (“OTC") derivative transactions are conducted, and
sets out close-out netting provisions upon termination following the
occurrence of an event of default or a termination event. In addition, if
deemed necessary, Credit Support Annex (“CSA") will be included to
form part of the Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement. Under a CSA,
margin is passed from one counterparty to another, as appropriate, to
mitigate the exposures.

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 108. Advances
and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments are
collateralised to the extent considered appropriate by the Group
taking account of the risk assessment of individual exposures. The
collateral coverage of advances to customers is analysed on pages
120 to 121. The components and nature of contingent liabilities and
commitments are disclosed in Note 36. Regarding the commitments
that are unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group
would assess the necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the
credit quality of a borrower deteriorates. For contingent liabilities and
commitments, 11.37% (2019: 11.69%) was covered by collateral as at
31 December 2020.



RAFS IR AR MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. <HEAREEE®)

41 fEERBRE)

(B) HEEHRAMEE

1R BB EE (S BT 2 M B R R L A BRI R R B
mr

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are
summarised by product type as follows:

2020 2019
BT T BT T
HKS$' 000 HK$'000
XFEEX Advances to customers
&A Personal
— %15 — Mortgages 29,167,672 26,262,424
—EAF — Credit cards 57,024 73,191
— Ef — Others 28,633,974 25,978,247
~A] Corporate
— HEER — Commercial loans 214,086,093 200,628,952
— BomE — Trade finance 7,777,808 10,160,418
279,722,571 263,103,232
B 525 Trade bills 390,401 2,017,812
IRITREM S MEEER Advances to banks and other financial institutions 102,121 95,873
280,215,093 265,216,917

BREIHAZER

C HHASHH B BB IR

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when

B BIZIEBERE R - Ao BEEZER &
Hp—kpHERE BB RNAEE - AFIEaHE
B o BHHEE  EREERBRAREETAEA
BERARZETER  AEXR—HBLHERAER
Mz HEEFREE - N5 (Em AR o

BRE-EYZEEMHHBREORRRSRELETH
MFE  AEREHRAERRERE - ERRER
EWHETE RE —B%Ex ANRFZ A AYEREB 90 R IA |
B MERAAREEEZZENAKENER - A
%Iﬂﬂx{gﬁ&au /WEEM c

the principal or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances
repayable by regular instalments are classified as overdue when
an instalment payment is past due and remains unpaid. Advances
repayable on demand are classified as overdue either when a demand
for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has not
been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances
have continuously exceeded the approved limit that was advised to the
borrower.

Advances are credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows have occurred.
Credit-impaired advances are classified as Stage 3. The Group identifies
the advances as impaired if the exposure is past due for more than 90
days or the borrower is unlikely to pay in full for the credit obligations
to the Group
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)

(@) Advances neither overdue nor credit-impaired

Advances that were neither overdue nor credit-impaired are analysed by
internal credit grade as follows:

2020
EEBE RS T
=i Special Substandard 5t
Pass mention or below Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
XEER Advances to customers
@A Personal
— %5 - Mortgages 28,896,196 20,649 - 28,916,845
— ERF — Credit cards 54,923 - - 54,923
— HAh — Others 28,372,829 32,055 - 28,404,884
NG Corporate
— BEEX — Commercial loans 209,852,398 935,832 - 210,788,230
— B5@E — Trade finance 7,433,123 27,079 - 7,460,202
274,609,469 1,015,615 - 275,625,084
B5EE Trade bills 390,401 - - 390,401
274,999,870 1,015,615 - 276,015,485
2019
SEME R IAT
a1 Special Substandard HaEt
Pass mention or below Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REEX Advances to customers
A Personal
— %18 — Mortgages 25,819,818 26,189 — 25,846,007
— 2R — Credit cards 67,814 3 = 67,817
— Hith — Others 25,677,779 24,382 = 25,702,161
NG Corporate
— FEER — Commercial loans 196,177,066 2,244,651 = 198,421,717
— BHmE — Trade finance 10,137,179 19,449 - 10,156,628
257,879,656 2,314,674 = 260,194,330
B 525 Trade bills 2,017,812 = = 2,017,812
259,897,468 2,314,674 = 262,212,142
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4. ZRIBEREEE
41 FERRE)

(B) HEHRAMEKE#)
b)  BEFEEREE
BERREAREERSTNT :

4.
4.1
(B)
(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Credit risk (Cont'd)

Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)

Advances overdue but not credit-impaired

The gross amount of advances overdue but not credit-impaired is

analysed as follows:

2020
31@A 61@A
EFBB BEFEB
BH3EA 61 A 14
HLUT  Overdue for Overdue
Overdue six months for one gt
for three orless  year or less HB1E
months but over but over Overdue for st
or less three months six months over one year Total
BEET T BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
XFEEXR Advances to customers
fEA Personal
— &5 — Mortgages 182,320 - - - 182,320
— AR — Credit cards 1,271 - - - 1,271
— Efth — Others 204,932 - - - 204,932
NG| Corporate
— BEEWN — Commercial loans 1,316,182 - - - 1,316,182
1,704,705 - - - 1,704,705
2019
B BB B 160 BB B
3{EA 6 1&H
BREE BREE
1 HA 3 A 6 & A 14
AT Overdue for Overdue
Overdue six months for one 1 HR
for three or less year or less B F
months but over but over Overdue for BEt
orless  three months six months  over one year Total
BT BT BT BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFER Advances to customers
fEA Personal
— &8 - Mortgages 311,502 - - = 311,502
— EAR — Credit cards 2,500 = = = 2,500
— HAh — Others 255,937 - - = 255,937
NG| Corporate
— AEEX — Commercial loans 569,382 = = - 569,382
1,139,321 - - - 1,139,321
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4. TEEREE® 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 EERRE) 4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) HEFRAEMEEE) (B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)

(c) JAEE © Impaired advances

EERIEBREE FIRE BRI AT Advances individually identified to be impaired are analysed by product

type as follows:

2020 2019
BHmATE IR E
HWEX Market BER Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
XFEEX Advances to customers
BEA Personal
— &5 — Mortgages 68,507 191,615 104,915 265,166
— AR — Credit cards 830 - 2,874 =
— Hftp — Others 24,158 44,955 20,149 51,841
NG| Corporate
— AEEXR — Commercial loans 1,981,681 554,497 1,637,853 232,674
— BoRE — Trade finance 317,606 2,024 3,790 =
2,392,782 793,091 1,769,581 549,681
SRITREAM & mEEE R Advances to banks and
other financial institutions 102,121 - 95,873 -
2,494,903 793,091 1,865,454 549,681
F=[EBR 2 REEE Impairment allowances —
Stage 3 1,804,583 1,411,506
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$°000
M EERRESHN Current market value of collateral held
EFERZERMTE against the covered portion of
such advances to customers 793,091 549,681
FitEEIFREEZZEFPER  Covered portion of such advances to customers 552,798 263,484
R EEEREEZ 2 EFER  Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 1,839,984 1,506,097
R EEIAREZ ZiR7T/  Uncovered portion of such advances to banks and
Hih & g E R other financial institutions 102,121 95,873
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4. SERERERE®

41 EERRGE)

(B) HEHRAMEEE)

©  REEHE)
MEEEDEE L RER ERREE -

R2020F 12 A31H  REREZESHERE(20194F

&) o

FENBRBEZEFPERDIMT

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)

(©) Impaired advances (Cont’d)

The impairment allowances were made after taking into account the

value of collateral in respect of such advances.

As at 31 December 2020, there were no impaired trade bills (2019: Nil).

Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:

2020 2019
BEET T PRI IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
REDHIREZ Gross classified or impaired
RPEER4EEE advances to customers 2,392,782 1,769,581
HEABIRBELEPER Gross classified or impaired advances to
BMEBHE P ERARELE customers as a percentage of gross
advances to customers 0.86% 0.67%
F=REE O RELERE Impairment allowances — Stage 3 1,702,462 1,315,633

QF /\7k

HRE B P ER SRR EREER
B R ﬁ&l [RAFH[EE] - HE=FEERN

HEH
B -

Classified or impaired advances to customers represent advances which

are either classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss”
Group's classification of loan quality, or classified as Stage 3.

under the
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4. SEEREE@ 4,
41 EERRE) 4.1
(B) HBENREMARE (&) (B)
(d)  EEEB3EAZEX ()

BEAERIA 3 B A 2 EREEATIAT -

analysed as follows:

2020

HEFER
BERDL
% of gross

Advances overdue for more than three months

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Credit risk (Cont'd)

Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is

2019

EEFER
BEA
% of gross

£%  advances to G| advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
XEEAREE - Gross advances to customers
B2 which have been overdue for:
— wWBB3EAE — six months or less but
THEB 6 1E A over three months 31,102 0.01% 13,501 0.01%
— HBiBe AR — one year or less but
THEB 14 over six months 94,566 0.03% 494,515 0.19%
— BiB1F — over one year 259,019 0.09% 218,974 0.08%
AHREIEA ZER Advances overdue for over
three months 384,687 0.14% 726,990 0.28%
FRERZBELER Impairment allowances — Stage 3 258,891 582,435
2020 2019
BT T BT I
HK$'000 HK$'000
REMEERRESN Current market value of collateral held
EPERZERmMmME against the covered portion of such
advances to customers 250,172 226,851
LB EEREEZEFPERK  Covered portion of such advances to customers 103,029 95,466
RS BEIFRES 2 EFER Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 281,658 631,524

BRERIBEEFNERREEBEARREFA
THEREENBERETET AAREFPETH

EEIBYE

MR2020F 12 A31H R EAHBAIMACESE

(20194 « £E) »

Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally
represented by charges over business assets such as commercial and

residential premises for corporate loans and mortgages over residential
properties for personal loans.

than three months (2019: Nil).

As at 31 December 2020, there were no trade bills overdue for more
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4., SHREREE®
41 FERREE)
(B) HBEFREMEEE)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)

(e) B E (e) Rescheduled advances
2020 2019
HEFEN HEFPER
BERSL wWEEDL
% of gross % of gross
€%  advancesto k- advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RERBRFEFFE Rescheduled advances to
(BHREER customers net of amounts
[ EfER3EA 2 included in “Advances overdue
B3 #9) for more than three months” 90,110 0.03% 317,854 0.12%

KREMAERDEEFPERM RN RELE MR
R MERITEEFETRBERNERENEZE
o MZEREETNERGER(RENSSERH
R)BIEREEM - BRI ERF 8RR 2 L EAE RN
BEE3EA - Aedk alEe3EA c&Ex]
A o

Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured
or renegotiated between the bank and borrowers because of
deterioration in the financial position of the borrower or of the inability
of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule, and the
revised repayment terms, either of interest or the repayment period, are
“non-commercial” to the Group. Rescheduled advances, which have
been overdue for more than three months under the revised repayment
terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more than three months”.
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4. SEEREE@ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 FEERKE) 4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEFRAEMEEE) (B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)
() EEENEHRE ) Concentration of advances to customers
(i) BITEN B2 EFERERE (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
UTHREFERBRBZITESBRON - HITES The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry
N2RBEBEFRBH 2 E RHKRAERE MR sector is based on the categories with reference to the completion
&l o instructions for the HKMA return of loans and advances.
2020
ERREEL FoRBr F-NE-ER
Btk BESE EERE ZREEE
EFERAE % Covered by R Impairment Impairment
Gross advances collateral or Classified or bk allowances- allowances-
to customers  other security impaired Overdue Stage3  Stage 1and2
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EEBERZER Loans for use in Hong Kong

IRsRE Industrial, commercial and financial
- MEER — Property development 27,990,244 16.02% - - - 165,523
- MERE — Property investment 26,111,852 71.22% - 3,544 - 111,870
- EE - Financial concerns 17,617,652 8.21% - 18,168 - 37,490
- REEL - Stockbrokers 373,590 100.00% - - - 40
- HERTEZ - Wholesale and retail trade 11,124,157 62.56% 248,681 1,523,638 88,849 65,935
- g% - Manufacturing 8,184,730 33.43% 135,339 141,356 108,271 61,927
- ERREERE — Transport and transport equipment 4,840,456 4.95% - - - 15,232
o GE] — Recreational activities 2,008 40.93% - - - 3
- BB ~ Information technology 862,037 451% - - - 11,656
- Hft - Others 20,104,284 60.77% - 3,124 - 61,619
fHA Individuals
- BEEERH — Loans for the purchase of flats
ExtEl - FA in Home Ownership Scheme,
KR2REE Private Sector Participation
FEIREEE Scheme and Tenants Purchase
EEGEIRT Scheme
LEH 235,082 99.88% 95 1,258 - 84
- BEEMAT ~ Loans for purchase of other
NxZER residential properties 11,218,032 99.75% 1,457 48,360 - 7,831
- FRFER — Credit card advances 487 0.00% - - - 58
— £t - Others 21,851,449 93.19% 948 149,907 812 27,441
EARBFERE7E®  Total loans for use in Hong Kong 150,516,060 52.41% 386,520 1,889,355 197,932 566,709
BHRE Trade finance 7,777,808 24.82% 317,606 317,606 137,727 25,255
EAAUIMERZEF  Loans for use outside Hong Kong 121,428,703 45.57% 1,688,656 1,528,925 1,366,803 733374
EPEaE Gross advances to customers 279,722,511 48.67% 2,392,782 3,735,886 1,702,462 1325338
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4. SEEREE@ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 FEERKE) 4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEFNREMEREE) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)
(") EEENEHE (&) 6] Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) RITEDBEzEFPERERE (B) 0) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (Cont'd)
2019
BRREEL F-BBr E-NE-RE
BAl BEAE FEER LREESE
REEFEE % Covered by KAl Impairment Impairment
Gross advances collateral or Classified or i allowances- allowances-
to customers other security impaired QOverdue Stage3  Stageland2
BETT BETT BETTL BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBERZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
THsaEE Industrial, commercial and financial
- WEEE ~ Property development 21,391,495 1037% - 246,968 . 119,059
— MERE - Property investment 23,852,305 65.23% 9,891 28,565 898 208,599
- tR%E ~ Financial concerns 13,199,323 7.19% - = - 36,104
- RE&R ~ Stockbrokers 190,593 100.00% = = = 24
- WERTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 11,420,922 54.76% 22,367 12,133 14,209 67,008
— g% - Manufacturing 14,999,257 14.12% 198,130 5,505 164,112 58,264
- BRRERRE ~Transport and transport equipment 3,428,490 15.65% - - - 27,853
— KEES — Recreational activities 2,550 34.29% - - - 8
— BB ~ Information technology 2,467,905 1.68% - = - 13,143
- i - Others 20,356,221 55.27% 1,515 10,333 - 86,929
fAA Individuals
- BEEERH — Loans for the purchase of flats
BitEl - fA in Home Ownership Scheme,
BE2EERE Private Sector Participation
SEREEE Scheme and Tenants Purchase
HEGEIEF Scheme
L8R 201,928 99.58% 195 3,367 - 66
- BEEMAT ~ Loans for purchase of other
MEZER residential properties 11,158,468 99.66% 8,427 95,164 - 4,067
- ERRER — Credit card advances 654 0.00% - = - 37
- Hfty - Others 20,082,698 91.67% 4,774 215,051 300 26,991
EEBFERZEZEE  Total loans for use in Hong Kong 142,752,809 48.23% 245,299 617,086 179,519 648,152
ZHRE Trade finance 10,160,418 18.24% 3,790 3,790 3,790 42,979
EBRUIMERZEFR  Loans for use outside Hong Kong 110,190,005 40.01% 1,520,492 1,651,901 1,132,324 700,929
EPEFER Gross advances to customers 263,103,232 43.63% 1,769,581 2,272,777 1,315,633 1,392,060
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4. ZRIBEREEE

41 FERRE)

(B) HEFNREMEREE)

() EFENFEFE (&)

(i) BITED B2 RFERBRE (8)

R R EBE 2 TR EEE - REFHIEEES
SOREERINT

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)

) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (Cont'd)

The amounts of new impairment allowances charged to the income
statement, and classified or impaired loans written off during the year
are shown below:

2020 2019
Y DEEL
iR WEER Gk DERIEBEEN
WE%EHE  Classified or EZEE Classified or
New impaired New impaired
impairment loans impairment loans
allowances written off allowances written off
BET T BET T BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBERZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TSR Industrial, commercial and financial
— MEER — Property development 79,244 - 98,799 -
— MEKE — Property investment 93,256 640 193,050 =
— SRhE — Financial concerns 30,210 - 24,534 =
— IRELL — Stockbrokers 40 - 24 -
— HERTEHE — Wholesale and retail trade 126,803 - 41,863 25,000
— BlE% — Manufacturing 129,194 1,179 180,325 267,702
— B BRI — Transport and transport
equipment 6,205 - 16,427 -
— KEEE — Recreational activities - - 8 =
— BB — Information technology 5,732 - 11,188 =
— Hits - Others 32,598 - 45,922 54,749
EA Individuals
-~ BEEEAH — Loans for the purchase of
EFtEl - FAKE flats in Home Ownership
SEEREER Scheme, Private Sector
HEBHEEIET Participation Scheme and
Z B Tenants Purchase Scheme 54 - 27 =
— BEEMEEYE — Loans for purchase of other
2B residential properties 5,484 - 1,688 -
— EAREX — Credit card advances 21 - 38 =
— Hits — Others 18,838 211 17,478 1,798
EEBGERZENRBE Total loans for use in Hong Kong 527,679 2,030 631,371 349,249
BHME Trade finance 154,780 - 39,187 60,653
ERBAIMER 2 B Loans for use outside Hong Kong 1,002,395 1,137,495 1,522,544 860,800
EEERREE Gross advances to customers 1,684,854 1,139,525 2,193,102 1,270,702
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4. SERERERE®

41 FEERKE)

(B) #BEHRAMEEE)

N EBEENESEE)

(iy HEEESEIRFEREE
THERESERZ HEREANERERIEHFY
FifEit  YEERRREBESZ - EXFERZIER
AFTEMETEREN TR - ARBSEBREERA
2R

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)

) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers

The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based
on the locations of the counterparties, after taking into account the

transfer of risk. For an advance to customer guaranteed by a party

situated in a country different from the customer, the risk will be

transferred to the country of the guarantor.

EE BN Gross advances to customers
2020 2019
BEET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
s Hong Kong 177,130,215 166,065,160
P B A3t Mainland of China 87,480,107 80,923,274
HAfth Others 15,112,249 16,114,798
279,722,571 263,103,232

BEFEAABRRIEE —ME —[ERZBEER

Imparirment allowances - stage 7 and 2 in respect of the gross advances

lo customers

2020 2019
BT T BT IT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BB Hong Kong 653,261 658,245
R B A Mainland of China 550,306 544,527
i) Others 121,771 189,288
1,325,338 1,392,060
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4., SHREREE®
41 FERREE)
(B) HEFREMEEE)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)

() EEENEHE (&) ) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont'd)
(ii) IR D B B (&) (ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (Cont'd)
BHEIE Overdue advances
2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 1,940,582 773,334
Hh B Mainland of China 1,786,220 1,214,302
Hitb Others 9,084 285,141
3,735,886 2,272,777

BOEIE N EE =B 2 Bl (B2

Impainment allowances — Stage 3 in respect of the overaue advances

2020 2019
BT T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

B Hong Kong 287,554 243,516
R B i Mainland of China 1,060,965 559,040
1,348,519 802,556

BB R EE — B R 2 R

Impalrment allowances — Stage 7 and 2 in respect of the overadue

2020 2019

BT T BT IT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BE Hong Kong 33,057 13,268
PR A, Mainland of China 7,252 8,332
HAth Others 15 3,655
40,324 25,255
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4. ZRIBEREEE

41 FERRE)

(B) HEHRAMEKE#)

O EPEHESE (&)

(i)  RBEESETREEREE(K)
BES BRI REE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)

) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (Cont'd)

Gassifed or imparred advances

2020 2019
BEET T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BB Hong Kong 539,116 529,818
R i Mainland of China 1,850,893 1,239,763
Hi Others 2,773 =
2,392,782 1,769,581

BOEIE N EE =B 2 Bl (B2

Impalrment allowances — Stage 3 1n respect of the overaue advances

2020 2019
BET T BT IT

HK$'000 HK$'000

B Hong Kong 297,395 444,119
AR At Mainland of China 1,405,067 871,514
1,702,462 1,315,633

O HEEE

RN - A SRR 8 217 B S E TS
TR12A31 BEANEE - HEEREEELRD
T~

(C) Repossessed assets

During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of

collateral held as security. The nature and carrying value of these assets

held as at 31 December are summarised as follows:

2020 2019

BET T BETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

EEXUES Commercial properties 1,372 =
ERStES Residential properties 1,683 10,852
3,055 10,852

AEBEM2020F 12 A31 BFEMKEIEE ZGEA
75 % 26,151,000 7T (2019 4F : 7% 20,367,000 7T ) °
ERREAEBEBBH RIS EESIEH RN ME
(nEBEEEEFREF AR HEREE R NES)
MEBERARNBEFEITE DR

The estimated market value of repossessed assets held by the Group
as at 31 December 2020 amounted to HK$26,151,000 (2019:
HK$20,367,000). The repossessed assets comprise properties in respect
of which the Group has acquired access or control (e.g. through court
proceedings or voluntary actions by the proprietors concerned) for
release in full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.
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4., SHREREE®

41 FERREE)

Q) KEIEZE &)
HUWEIEENBIE N TR EE - NEEBIRBR
AT R

—  AERLEER

- ERERSE—HHEER

- RYEBSEA

(D) HERITREAMEHMEBIEZEGR

TRAERITMEMSREENIFBERREZ
RRERRIFRIN 12 A 31 BIRAT RS 2 FTAR DT -

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(C)  Repossessed assets (Cont'd)

When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into cash, the
Group may consider the following alternatives:

- adjusting the selling prices

- selling the loans together with the assets

- arranging loan restructuring

(D) Balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions

The following tables present an analysis of balances and placements
with banks and other financial institutions that are neither overdue nor
credit-impaired as at 31 December by rating agency designation.

2020
A3 BT

AaaEA3 Lower TR st

Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

BT T BT T BT T BT T

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FRRIRTT Central banks 17,678,912 - - 17,678,912
R1T R H AL RS Banks and other

financial institutions 27,777,302 4,300,552 8,349,580 40,427,434

45,456,214 4,300,552 8,349,580 58,106,346

2019
A3LAT

Aaa = A3 Lower E AT AN @Et

Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

BT T BT T BT T TS T IT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HRERTT Central banks 20,596,585 = = 20,596,585
RIT R EH A £ B iE Banks and other

financial institutions 13,910,588 10,128,538 6,506,121 30,545,247

34,507,173 10,128,538 6,506,121 51,141,832
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4., SHREREE® 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 [FERRE) 4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(D) FHEHRITREMEHEENLZGRIZS (&) (D) Balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions (Contc)
TR AERTREMS GRS H S Bl sl = B R E > 45 The following tables present an analysis of overdue or credit-impaired
S RTEZA 12 B 31 BIRSFARMRE 7 ST o balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions as
at 31 December by rating agency designation.

2020
A3 BT
AaaEA3 Lower i #Et
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BEET T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIT R E A & RS Banks and other
financial institutions - - 75,380 75,380
- - 75,380 75,380
2019
A3LATN
AaaE A3 Lower £ “ast
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIT R E A S RS Banks and other
financial institutions - - 70,768 70,768
- - 70,768 70,768
2020 2019
BT T BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
PAERTT R ELfth & BB Y Impairment allowances — Stage 1 and 2
HEAR R ERIERE — in respect of the balances and placements
F PR ZREZEE with banks and other financial institutions 1,977 824
FAEIRTT K Efth & BRI Y Impairment allowances — Stage 3
HERRTFRIEE=BER 2 in respect of the balances and placements
B2 with banks and other financial institutions 75,380 70,768
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TRBABITHENIN 2 ERERRFR
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A

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The following tables present an analysis of the carrying values of debt
securities and certificates of deposit by issue rating. In the absence of

such issue ratings, the ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

2020

Aal1ZE Aa3 AMZA3 A3 |/TR b
Aaa Aa1to Aa3 A1to A3  Lower than A3 Unrated Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AR EREEA At fair value through other
b0l e comprehensive income 6,693,660 32,812,662 73,128,592 11,978,982 5,442,141 130,056,037
AR AR 2 At amortised cost - - 1,884,988 - - 1,884,988
INAAER(TABE  Atfairvalue through profit or loss - 6,497,759 - - - 6,497,759
Bt Total 6,693,660 39,310,421 75,013,580 11,978,982 5,442,141 138,438,784

2019

Aal EAa3 AMEA3 A3BAT e a5t
Aaa Aalto Aa3 Al1to A3 Lower than A3 Unrated Total
Voot BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

IAREEEEA At fair value through other
b2k comprehensive income 7,918,889 45,664,815 73,876,190 10,929,257 4,472,839 142,861,990
AR A ERT 2 At amortised cost = = 2,562,564 = = 2,562,564
AR EEIGEAEE At fair value through profit or loss - 6,662,582 = = = 6,662,582
st Total 7,918,889 52,327,397 76,438,754 10,929,257 4,472,839 152,087,136
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4. SERERERE® 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 FERREE) 4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(E) (EEEBFREFEFEZE) (E)  Debt securities and certificates of deposit (Cont'd)

TRAIEBESE AREZ BEBESRFREN 124 The following tables present an analysis of debt securities and

31 BIRBITARZ DT - EEEATRNELT » 8l certificates of deposit neither overdue nor credit-impaired as at

SRET AN RHRS 31 December by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the
ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

2020

Aal1ZAa3 AEA3 A3UT fiE @t
Aaa Aa1to Aa3 A1to A3 Lower than A3 Unrated Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

IRAEE A At fair value through other
Efb2EME comprehensive income 6,693,660 32,812,662 73,128,592 11,978,982 5,442,141 130,056,037
DR A2 At amortised cost - - 1,884,988 - - 1,884,988
AR ESLATAESE  Atfair value through profit or loss - 6,497,759 - - - 6,497,759
6,693,660 39,310,421 75,013,580 11,978,982 5,442,141 138,438,784

2019

Aal EAa3 AMEA3 AUT ETR &5t
Aaa Aal to Aa3 ATto A3 Lower than A3 Unrated Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

YNTEE 2PN At fair value through other
Hir2ElE comprehensive income 7,918,889 45,664,815 73,876,190 10,929,257 4,472,839 142,861,990
IESRR A ERE At amortised cost - - 2,562,564 - - 2,562,564
DAAREZ{EEAER  Atfair value through profit or loss - 6,662,582 = = = 6,662,582
7,918,889 52,327,397 76,438,754 10,929,257 4,472,839 152,087,136
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4. TEEREE® 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

41 EERRE) 4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(E) (EEEBFREFFEZE) (E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (Cont'd)
TRBEARESERERE S 2 ETARAN - £ The following tables present an analysis of credit-impaired or overdue
EBATIARRE R T - AISIREIT ARIREAR RS © debt securities by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the

ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

2020
REE
Carrying values
Her:
EitHERE
Of which
accumulated
Aal E Aa3 AMZA3 A3 U |TR #5  impairment
Aaa  AafltoAa3 A1to A3 Lower than A3 Unrated Total  allowances

ARTR ARTR ARTR ARTR ARTR ARTR ARTR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

L 2PN Debt securities at fair value
At 2ENE L through other comprehensive
[EHES income - - - - - - 181,024
He: ZEHRESEE  Of which accumulated
impairment allowances - - - - 181,024 181,024
2019
REE
Carrying values
HA
ZiTREER
Of which
accumulated
Aal & Aa3 AT EA3 A3 AT |TR @5 impairment
Aaa Aal to Aa3 Alto A3 Lower than A3 Unrated Total allowances

ARTT ARTT ARTT ARTT ARTT ARTT ARTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AARBEEA Debt securities at fair value
At 2ERRZ through other comprehensive
ERES income = = = = = = 181,868

Hep: ZEHEEEE  Of which accumulated
impairment allowances - - - - 181,868 181,868

72020 12 A318  BAERES S 2 FRE As at 31 December 2020, there were no impaired or overdue certificates
(20194F : #&) o of deposit (2019: Nil).
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41 FERRE)

(F) 2019 BHREEREEEREBEIZE
EHE2019BMRREREBFEEHRER  AEEEE
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EEHBCRABMIERNERERT(E - BESH
KEBERARBUEY G - REE MEPERME
T WHnsEREFHE - kETHREZEREFE
2L - INBXRBFENTE - AKEE B
REE - BIRBEHREFREPKERMBIRRHE
& REFRERFGRERE - I8 REUR R &R
M AREBIRITESL R - B H20200FF—F
BERE_FE  NEEESREAF RN T EI
MEE - LA 2019 B mSRE R EERAR - A
RIEEE  BEEBMEXATRLETNEETE -

ERMERBRELTE  AREESFERRBLE
AZBRAARBIREEERHEX - AR EKHEES
MR REEHAELERR - BEREE BRI T
BERTSDATENEEN - AUt ERBREERNLSES
SR - ARBRIBREBR -

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(F) The impact of COVID-19 on credit risk

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic which spread across the world,
the Group actively facilitated the relief measures rolled out by the
Central People’s Government and the Government of the HKSAR during
the pandemic and assisted customers affected by the pandemic. Please
refer to Business Review of Additional Information for brief explanations
of the Group’s relief measures.

The Group continues to manage its business operations during the
pandemic, and closely monitor and reduce the impact of the pandemic
on customers. For loans and advances, the Group comprehensively
strengthens and enhances pre-approval and post-lending risk
management practice, adopts appropriate measures in response to the
latest economic conditions, strengthens portfolio and customer level
monitoring and communications with borrowers in order to have better
understanding on changes in creditworthiness of borrowers in a more
timely manner. For industries that are more vulnerable to the pandemic,
the Group will strengthen portfolio review, pay special attention to the
impact of the pandemic on the operation and financial status of these
borrowers, perform risk assessment in a timely manner, and take instant
risk mitigation measures to safeguard the Bank’s interest. In the first
and second quarter of 2020, the Group included an additional scenario
in regular stress tests to assess the potential impact of the pandemic
on credit risk, risk-weighted assets, impairment allowances and capital
adequacy ratio.

For expected credit loss model, the Group updates the forecasts
of macroeconomic factors and review the probability of economic
scenarios on a quarterly basis. Relevant economic forecasts have been
updated to the expected credit loss model in response to the latest
economic environment and outlook. The management considered that
there are still uncertainties in the economic outlook under the pandemic
and prudential probability weights on each economic scenario have
been maintained to reflect the relevant situation.
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MEAREERR  EREAKENRRRTNES
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AEERETSEREREIERE - BRE5 - &8 -
EDRIMIZERI TSR - TERREFEMEEREEDT
[RAEMBRE - ILI8F - O - BRI R
DT (BEHEE)F -  T2ARESNREREERTE
o RNERR  HhHEREREZES  EEAR
ERZEeRSEEEABIE  SEMMARIR
BT 5 e FE AR AN R SR S0 [ W R 375

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value
of foreign exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions
held by the Group due to the volatility of financial market price (foreign
exchange rate, interest rate, equity price, commodity price). The Group
adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a balance between
risk and return.

The Group’s objective in managing market risk is to secure healthy
growth of the treasury business, by effective management of potential
market risk in the Group’s business, according to the Group’s overall
risk appetite and strategy of treasury business on the basis of a well-
established risk management regime and related management
measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles
in respect of risk management, the Board and Risk Management
Committee, Senior Management and functional units perform their
duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s market risk. The risk
management units are responsible for assisting Senior Management to
perform their day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the market
risk profile and compliance of management policies and limits of the
Group, to ensure that the aggregate and individual market risks are
within acceptable levels. Independent units are assigned to monitor
the risk exposure against risk limits on a daily basis, together with
profit and loss reports submitted to Senior Management on a regular
basis, while limit excess will be reported to Senior Management at
once when it occurs. NCB (China) sets up independent risk monitoring
teams to monitor daily market risk and limit compliance, and submit
management information and reports to the Bank on a regular basis.

The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure,
monitor and control market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include
but not limited to VAR (Value-at-Risk), Stop Loss, Open Position,
Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis (Basis Point Value). To meet
management requirements, major risk indicators and limits are classified
into four levels, and are approved by the Risk Management Committee,
Asset and Liability Management Committee or Senior Management
respectively. Treasury business units are required to conduct their
business within approved market risk indicators and limits.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
(A) VAR

The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks

to the Risk Management Committee and Senior Management on a

periodic basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VAR calculation model,

using a historical simulation approach and two years of historical
market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group and the Bank over one-
day holding period with a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR
limit of the Group and the Bank.

The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk
exposure' of the Group.

25 X3 E=x:3
R12A318 REE BE¥E FH8E
4 At Minimum for Maximum for  Average for
Year 31 December the year the year the year
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
eHmERRERE VAR for all market risk 2020 4,264 1,451 5,127 3,921
2019 1,741 897 2,941 1,584
P R e 2 o B VAR for foreign exchange risk 2020 4,126 163 4,829 3,693
2019 169 90 1,601 420
MEER 2 ARE VAR for interest rate risk 2020 1,056 611 2,506 1,472
2019 1,614 762 2,867 1,442
AR EkE VAR for commodity risk 2020 - - 1,589 615
2019 570 - 908 489
Fia Note:
1. TEELEMERONRBRE - 1. Structural positions have been excluded.

#17% % % 48 4% » NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2020 ANNUAL REPORT 42§ * www.nch.com.hk

133



134

RAFS IR AR MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SERERERE®

42 THiEEK(E)

(A) [EfEE %)
RARRELBETSRARN —BEEKE  BihE
HBRM - flan -

- BRAE LTS BB A R KB RER LR N PR
AIREMIRAIEN - LHRE —LEumiEh

- —RFA B BT ARR A BRI A IAKE
—BAERSE N - BREBERAVETERER
miZAR - LEEMSREEREE - Al
ME—RFEARANER KEPAEE

- BRIBEESE  BHRA9% BEKFE - BIARE
ZEAEUBEEKFURIIEHBRAEE - AR

- 2\ a2 (B 2 DA & 2 B ) A R B O SR AR ST B A
% Fb A —E R R Z R R AR E R o

AEBZED THRERERFNRBRE - Bt §IET
BRI EIE MR B AR A A B IR E R (BT AL ZEHY
miBREKR - Ti5EREDNHHRTREREEK
BRILIE R FATE SRR IE AR - UREELEHNER
DT ©

(B) SMEEEE
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
(A) VAR (Cont’d)

Although VAR is a valuable guide to risk, it should always be viewed in
the context of its limitations. For example:

- the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future
events may not encompass all potential events, particularly
those which are extreme in nature;

- the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions
can be liquidated or hedged in one day. This may not fully
reflect the market risk arising at times of severe illiquidity, when
a one-day holding period may be insufficient to liquidate or
hedge all positions fully;

- the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not
take into account losses that might occur beyond this level of
confidence; and

- VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the
close of business and therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-
day exposures.

The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress test
indicators and limits to assess and manage the market risk not covered
by VAR. The market risk stress testing includes sensitivity testing on
changes in risk factors with various degrees of severity, as well as
scenario analysis on historical events.

(B)  Currency risk

The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies,
particularly the HK dollar, the US dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the
currency risk exposure of the Group is managed at an acceptable level,
risk limits (e.g. Position and VAR limit) are used to serve as a monitoring
tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the gap between assets
and liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts (e.g.
FX swaps) are usually used to manage FX risk associated with foreign
currency-denominated assets and liabilities.



RAFS IR AR MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SERERERE®

42 THiEEK(E)

(B) SMNEEE(E)
TRIMAEMEE LR S  FALZHREEIER
BMELE T EINERRE - Y2REWHEINER
N2 B RBMRMERIERMAES -

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
(B)  Currency risk (Cont'd)

The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency
exposures arising from trading, non-trading and structural positions and
is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
return of foreign currency position.

2020
BT TEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

HAt s SN HBER

EPH AK¥ Other foreign Total foreign

US Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies

REEE Spot assets 104,828,483 152,426,161 23,541,049 280,795,693
REAE Spot liabilities (102,885,199) (147,965,798) (15,038,893) (265,889,890)
REIEA Forward purchases 34,429,022 16,698,101 5,155,560 56,282,683
EHEH Forward sales (34,703,679)  (19,421,336)  (13,400,132)  (67,525,147)
RBFE Net long position 1,668,627 1,737,128 257,584 3,663,339
EEEE R Net structural position 9,436,650 14,613,792 - 24,050,442

2019
BT TSR
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

HA gt SNk 1B R

ET AR BIL  Other foreign Total foreign

US Dollars Renminbi EUR Dollars currencies currencies

BEEE Spot assets 95,831,319 135,879,395 8,982,786 13,605,445 254,298,945
REaE Spot liabilities (108,848,125)  (123,698,337) (7,002,592)  (10,322,376)  (249,871,430)

REHEA Forward purchases 31,027,006 8,163,164 480,373 2,304,468 41,975,011
RHEN Forward sales (18,392,067) (18,418,780) (2,705,777) (5,506,334) (45,022,958)

CAVE=5:% Net (short)/long position (381,867) 1,925,442 (245,210) 81,203 1,379,568

REHERFE Net structural position 9,437,210 12,987,685 = = 22,424,895
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
(C) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk in Banking Book (“IRRBB"”) means the risks to a bank’s
earnings and economic value arising from movements in interest
rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and liability positions.
The Group’s interest rate risk exposures in Banking Book are mainly
structural. The major types of interest rate risk in Banking Book from
structural positions are:

- IRR Gapping risk: arising from the changes in the interest rates
on assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items of different
maturities and different repricing tenors. The extent of gapping
risk depends on whether changes to the term structure of
interest rates occur consistently across the yield curve (parallel
risk) or differentially by period (non-parallel risk);

- Basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions
resulting that the yield on assets and cost of liabilities may
change by different amounts within the same repricing period;

- Option risk: arising from interest rate option derivatives or from
optional elements embedded in an Al's assets, liabilities and off-
balance sheet items, where the Al or its customer can alter the
level and timing of their cash flows. Option risk can be further
characterised into automatic option risk and behavioural option
risk.

The Group’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate
risk management in banking book. The Asset and Liability Management
Committee exercises its oversight of interest rate risk in accordance with
the “Banking Book Interest Rate Risk Management Policy” approved by
Risk Management Committee. Asset and Liability Management Division
is responsible for banking book interest rate risk management. With the
cooperation of the Treasury Division, Asset and Liability Management
Division assists the Asset and Liability Management Committee to
perform day-to-day banking book interest rate risk management. Its
roles include, but are not limited to, the formulation of management
policies, selection of methodologies, setting of risk indicators and limits,
assessment of target balance sheet, monitoring of the compliance
with policies and limits, and submission of banking book interest rate
risk management reports to the Management and Risk Management
Committee.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
(C) Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

The Group’s Internal Audit Department acts as the independent audit
on interest rate risk in banking book, supervises the related departments
to execute the interest rate risk function according to the policy in order
to effectively control the risk. The Group’s Model Validation Division
preforms independent model validation regularly for interest rate risk in
banking book.

In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual
IR-1 “Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book” issued by the HKMA in
2018, the Group sets interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify,
measure, monitor and control interest rate risk. The Group’s key risk
indicators, the Net Interest Income impact and the Economic Value
of Equity impact, reflect the impact of interest rate movement on the
Group’s net interest income and capital base respectively. The former
assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net interest income
as a percentage to the projected net interest income for the year. The
latter assesses the impact of interest rate movement on economic values
as a percentage to the latest capital base. The risk appetites and limits
of these two indicators are set by the Board and Risk Management
Committee respectively to monitor and control the Group’s banking
book interest rate risk. In addition, the Group monitors the interest rate
risk in banking book through indicators and limits including, but are
not limited to, interest rate sensitivity gap limits, basis risk, duration and
price value of a basis point (“PVBP").

The Group’s indicators and limits are classified into three levels, which
are approved by the Risk Management Committee, Asset and Liability
Management Committee and Chief Financial Officer respectively. Risk-
taking business units are required to conduct their business within
the banking book interest rate risk limits. In addition, risk mitigation
measures including, but not limited to, the use of interest rate
derivatives, adjustment of portfolio duration, etc. as approved by ALCO,
are effectively used to mitigate the IRRBB. Before launching a new
product or business in the banking book, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the
assessment of underlying interest rate risk and consideration of the
adequacy of current risk monitoring mechanism. Any material impact
on banking book interest rate risk noted during the risk assessment
process will be submitted to Risk Management Committee for approval.
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4. SERERERE®

42 THiEEK(E)

Q) FIEREEEE)

AEBRABS SNBSS = - &R
TRTRATALRZ R ER - 158 D FE B
R AR EEERE B RITER KA

2/ 48
=2

AEEFEEEHEBT ELRARBFERRR - #2
2020F12 A31 A - IBAB BB ERIRITERA
ERBIZEIERER - FHEEAFERERBEET
HFF B RASB L BEEENZE - ERBHEM
ERfERR kT AER RRIEL T - Z6 @EF=
HEBE 8 (WFTRL: QFTAT : QR
AR (@EEM - G)EER L ()X T -

EFEREEENTZER  FNERERNAERSH
FNEREMNEIRR - AR 2 g ST
EPEETRARRELRE

(1) AT RETEERFETR G UE L SR
BREZODEEFEARTERARRHEHRFH -
HAENBAGTROA EGRFERZBERE
H o A2020F 12 A31H B hkELEZE

LRFEEGERNEHFRD B A1.65EA Kk 1.22
BA - sEAEHRFHA3EA

REEEXITENTEENF

[=]
%ﬂiﬁi%ﬁ%”@éﬂé% HAE’J}EWB“ % o

EREKRNEHTNE2REERENRELIER -
BeEFEREER TAMREBEESHBRTRA
HIBRME

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
(C) Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking
book interest rate risk that the Group would face under adverse
circumstances. Scenario analyses and stress tests are also used to assess
the impact on net interest income arising from the optionality of savings
deposits.

The Group is principally exposed to HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi
in terms of interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2020, according to
the new standard IRRBB framework of HKMA, the Group assesses
the impact of changes in the Group’s net interest income (“ANII")
and economic value (“AEVE") respectively under 6 interest rate shock
scenarios, in which optionality and behavioural assumptions of certain
products will also be estimated in the exposure measurement. The 6
interest rate shock scenarios include: (1) Parallel up; (2) Parallel down; (3)
Steepener; (4) Flattener; (5) Short rates up; and (6) Short rates down.

When calculating AEVE, commercial margins and other spread
components are included in the cash flows and discounted by the risk-
free rates. The key behavioural assumptions include:

(1) Part of the current account and savings account deposits
("CASA") in HKD and USD are classified into core stable deposit
based on historical data which would be assigned a longer
interest rate sensitive tenor while the interest rate sensitive tenor
of other non-maturity deposits is considered as “Next day”. As
at 31 December 2020, the average interest rate sensitive tenors
of HKD and USD CASA is 1.65 months and 1.22 months, and
the longest interest rate sensitive tenor is 3 months.

(2) For retail term deposits and retail fixed rate loans subject to
early redemption without significant penalty, early redemption
rates are calculated under different portfolios.

Methods of aggregation across currencies strictly follow the IRRBB
Standardised Framework. The aggregate EVE losses across all applicable
currencies are calculated as the maximum loss across the six interest
rate shock scenarios.
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4. ZRIBEREEE 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
42 TEERERREE) 4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
CQ FIEEEE) (C) Interest rate risk (Cont'd)
2020
KEEESE FANERA2E
AEVE ANII
BETIT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi7IA £ Parallel up 3,739,133 (633,076)
FATR T Parallel down 40,229 633,461
SUBRY Steepener 865,250 @A (N/A)
&R Flattener 421,928 EF (N/A)
SEuay Short rate up 1,244,498 TSEF (N/A)
HRT[E Short rate down 52,683 T3 A (N/A)
=3 Maximum 3,739,133 633,461
2019
KEEEFE  FHBRARS
AEVE ANII
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi7mEE Parallel up 1,773,666 (745,846)
SESIEEN Parallel down 266,548 746,309
BYER Steepener 391,746 TEF (N/A)
BiE (M Flattener 379,359 TEAN/A)
=R Short rate up 935,369 NEA (N/A)
R Short rate down 531,202 TEF (N/A)
&= Maximum 1,773,666 746,309

At HEAREZE

M20205F 12 A31 B - EARMBEFTE NERT -
FrEEBRFHN WAL REK633(8L(2019
FBKT7461ET)  KBEEENZANEAZEEE
RAMEHGEFTREER KBEEENZERAE
37.39{8 L (20194 : B 17.74{8 7T ) - B120194F
12 A31 BAELL - REBFR SWAFZER 11318
M BEEMNZABHETZEEMI9.65E  EEZRK
BEBES -

TREL T AEER12 A31 BZEEABRAKNF
KERAYE - RAARRAENREERBE - WRE
HWEFTEEAHHIIEA (AREERE) DM -

Remarks: Positive values indicate losses under the alternative scenarios.

As at 31 December 2020, the net interest income impact for all
currencies is HK$633 million (2019: HK$746 million) under the interest
rate parallel down scenario. The maximum negative impact on AEVE is
3,739 million (2019: HK$1,774 million) under the interest rate parallel
up scenario. Compared with 31 December 2019, the Group’s net
interest income impact for all currencies is dropped by 113 million and
maximum negative impact on AEVE is increased by 1,965 million with
investment in fixed rate bond.

The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure
to interest rate risk as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the
assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of
contractual repricing date and maturity date.
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4., TREREE @) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
42 THWIEER(E) 4.2  Market risk (Cont'd)
Q) FEEEE) (C) Interest rate risk (Cont'd)
2020
-BAR -E=@F Z=Et=f@A it RENE -\
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over  Non-interest &zt
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
EFRERFERET  Cashand balances with banks and
REMSRkE other financial institutions
il 52,778,399 - - - - 5394911 58,173,310
ERORE R Placements with banks and
BE—Z+-AR  otherfinancial institutions
HEz e R maturing between one and
twelve months - 337,676 218,303 - - - 555,979
DAESFABE  Finandal assets at fair value
LEREE through profit or loss 1,498,520 3,874,604 17,540,189 - - - 22913313
fEEMTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,031,063 1,031,063
ERRE MR Advances and other accounts 193,234,131  35384,885 31,891,916 14,600,174 1,974,027 - 277,085,133
CRRE Financial investments
— ARER(IA - Atfair value through other
AthZEYER comprehensive income 15383276 28,527,507 28,514,033 55,862,458 1,768,763 54,109 130,110,146
— DABRRNEETE - Atamortised cost - - 2,779,095 - - - 2,779,095
RENF Investment properties - - - - - 341,080 341,080
I ERE NS Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 8,220,738 8,220,738
i EE (REET Other assets (including deferred
HAgE) tax assets) - - - - - 40488304 4488304
BENAH Total assets 262,894,326 68,124,672 80,943,536 70,462,632 3,742,790 19,530,205 505,698,161
af Liabilities
FAREMEBEE L Deposits and balances from banks
B RE and other financial institutions 14,010,156 12,007,788 4,568,817 - - 2471555 33,064,316
DAERIABREZ  Finandial liabilties at fair value
SRAR through profit or loss 2159973 2576898 1,914,116 . - - 6,650,987
fEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,882,953 1,882,953
REEH Deposits from customers 181,768,498 67,449,733 76,009,321 11,339,764 95,348 14,967,264 351,629,928
BETEBELR Debt securities and certificates of
FaE deposit in issue - 9,664,888 4,682,608 9,666,939 - - 24,014,435
EthARIE R Other accounts and provisions
(BREENFER (including current and deferred
FERBEE) tax liabilities) 3,157,297 3,719,697 5,855,254 1,418,081 22,155 5,838,947 20,011,431
L Subordinated liabilities - - - - 5416390 - 5416390
SELAE Total liabilities 201,095,924 95,419,004 93,030,116 22,424,784 5,533,893 25,166,719 442,670,440
FEGRERD Interest sensitivity gap 61,798,402  (27,294,332)  (12,086,580) 48,037,848  (1,791,103)  (5,636,514) 63,027,721
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4., SHREREE®
4.2 THWHEKE(E)
Q) FIEREE (&)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)

(C) Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

2019
—fARA  —Z=fF =Zt=f#A —Z2TfF RERE TEE
Upto 1103 3t 12 Tt05 Over  Non-interest e
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
EFRSRERET  Cashand balances with banks and
REfMSRkE other financial institutions
il 35,513,372 - - - - 5813889 41,327,261
ERORE R Placements with banks and
BE—Z+-AR  otherfinancial institutions
HEz e R maturing between one and
twelve months - 6,917,705 3,538,642 - - - 10,456,347
DREZGIABRZ  Financial assets at fair value
EREE through profit or loss 3,033,958 2,549,381 8,987,958 - - 83,050 14,654,347
fTEEMTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 589,616 589,616
ERRE MR Advances and other accounts 187,111,392 40,417,704 25006280 8,389,106 1,488,698 - 262,413,180
SRRE Financial investments
— ARER(IA - Atfair value through other
At 2EKE comprehensive income 16,263,111 28,807,011 46,996,284 48,610,048 2,185,536 31,163 142,893,153
— DBBRAETE - Atamortised cost - - 1171679 2,694,105 - - 3865784
RENE Investment properties - - - - - 355,230 355,230
mE - BMRRE Properties, plant and equipment - - - - = 8,602,036 8,602,036
At AR (RHERK Other assets (including current
RENEERALE)  and deferred tax assets) = = = = = 4,431,893 4,431,893
BELS Total assets 241,921,833 78,691,801 85,700,843 59,693,259 3,674,234 19,906,877 489,588,847
A Liabilities
FAREMEREE L Deposits and balances from banks
BFRRkEH and other financial institutions 15,079,279 10,069,439 3,758,472 - - 2,076,931 30,984,121
DAERIABREZ  Finandial liabilties at fair value
SREE through profit or loss 3,789,576 913,499 345,484 = = = 5,048,559
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 587,563 587,563
RPEH Deposits from customers 149,873,210 74,133,540 96,134,192 14,216,178 346,180 11,184,482 345,887,782
BETEBEAR Debt securities and certificates of
FaE deposit in issue 330,652 2,154,910 2,863,001 10,122,553 - - 15,471,116
A AhARIE R Other accounts and provisions
(DREEAFER (including current and deferred
FEREEE) tax liabilities) 3,265,249 2,103,980 5,696,282 1,024,600 79,755 15,210,662 27,380,528
#ERE Subordinated liabilities - - - - 5438386 - 543838
BEES Total liabilities 172,337,966 89,375,368 108,797,431 25,363,331 5,804,321 29,059,638 430,798,055
FEGRERD Interest sensitivity gap 69,583,867  (10,683567)  (23,096,588) 34329928  (2,190,087)  (9,152,761) 58,790,792
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4. <HEAREEE®)
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to
grow assets or pay due obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable
loss. The Group maintains sound liquidity risk appetite to provide stable,
reliable and adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity needs under
normal circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net
positive cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting
the HKMA to act as the lender of last resort.

The Group’s liquidity risk management objective is to effectively
manage the liquidity of on- and off-balance sheet items with
reasonable cost based on the liquidity risk appetite to achieve sound
operation and sustainable profitability. Deposits from customers are
the Group’s primary source of funds, in which 44% is retail deposits.
To ensure stable and sufficient source of funds are in place, the Group
actively attracts new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains
supplementary funding from the interbank market. According to
different term maturities and the results of funding needs estimated
from stressed scenarios, the Group adjusts its asset structure (including
loans, bonds investment, interbank placement, etc.) to maintain
sufficient liquid assets which provides adequate funds in support
of normal business needs and ensure its ability to raise funds at a
reasonable cost to serve external claims in case of emergency. The
Group is committed to diversify the source of funds and the use of
funds to avoid excessive concentration of assets and liabilities and
prevent triggering liquidity risk due to the break of funding strand when
problem occurred in one concentrated funding source. The Group has
established intra-group liquidity risk management guideline to manage
the liquidity funding among different entities within the Group, and
to restrict their reliance of funding on each other. The Group also pays
attention to manage liquidity risk created by off-balance sheet activities,
such as loan commitments and derivatives. The Group has an overall
liquidity risk management strategy to cover the liquidity management
of foreign currency assets and liabilities, collateral, intra-day liquidity,
intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from other risks, etc., and
has formulated corresponding contingency plan.

Risk Management Committee (“RMC") is the decision-making authority
of liquidity risk management, and assumes the ultimate responsibility
of liquidity risk management. As authorised by RMC, the Asset and
Liability Management Committee (ALCO) exercises its oversight of
liquidity risk and ensures the daily operations of the Group are in
accordance with risk appetite and policies as set by RMC. Asset and
Liability Management Division is responsible for overseeing the Group's
liquidity risk. It cooperates with Treasury Division to assist the ALCO
to perform liquidity management functions according to their specific
responsibilities.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to
identify, measure, monitor and control liquidity risk on daily basis. These
indicators and limits include, but are not limited to liquidity coverage
ratio (“LCR"), net stable funding ratio (“NSFR"), loan-to-deposit ratio,
Maximum Cumulative Cash Outflow (“MCO"), liquidity buffer asset
portfolio and depositor concentration limit. The Group applies cash
flow analysis to assess the Group’s liquidity condition under normal
conditions and also performs a liquidity stress test (including institution
specific, general market crisis and combined crisis) at least on monthly
basis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand various severe
liquidity crises. Also, the Assets and Liabilities Management System is
developed to provide data and the preparation for regular management
reports to facilitate liquidity risk management duties.

In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2
“Sound Systems and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by
the HKMA in 2016, the Group has implemented behaviour model and
assumptions of cash flow analysis and stress test to enhance the Group’s
cash flow analysis under both normal and stressed conditions. In cash
flow analysis under normal circumstances, assumptions have been made
relating to on-balance sheet items (such as deposits from customers)
and off-balance sheet items (such as loan commitments). According
to various characteristics of the assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet
items, the Group forecasts the future cash flow based on contractual
maturity date and the assumptions of customer behaviour and balance
sheet changes. The Group establishes MCO indicator which predicts
the future 30-day maximum cumulative net cash outflow in normal
situations based on the above assumptions, to assess if the Group
has sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow gap in order
to achieve the objective of continuing operation. As at 31 December
2020, before taking the cash inflow through the sale of outstanding
marketable securities into consideration, the Bank’s 30-day cumulative
cash flow was a net cash inflow amounting to HK$5,893,712,000 (2019:
HK$4,670,594,000) and was in compliance with the internal limit
requirements.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and
combined crisis scenario has been set up, combined crisis scenario
is a combination of institution specific and general market crisis to
assess the Group’s capability to withstand a more severe liquidity crisis,
with a more stringent set of assumptions being adopted. Stress test
assumptions include the run-off rate of retail, wholesale and interbank
deposits; drawdown rate of loan commitments and trade-related
contingent liabilities; delinquency ratio and rollover rate of customer
loans; and haircut of interbank placement and marketable securities.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group was able to maintain a positive
cash flow under the three stressed scenarios, indicating the Group
has the ability to meet financing needs under stressed conditions. In
addition, the Group has a policy in place to maintain a liquidity cushion
which includes high quality or comparable quality marketable securities
issued or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector entities
or multilateral development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight or
marketable securities issued or guaranteed by non-financial corporate
with a corresponding external credit rating of A- or above to ensure
funding needs even under stressed scenarios. As at 31 December 2020,
the Bank’s liquidity cushion (before haircut) was HK$41,405,089,000
(2019: HK$61,246,448,000). A contingency plan is being established
which details the conditions to trigger the plan based on stress test
results and early warning indicators, the action plans and relevant
procedures and responsibility of various departments. The Group
tests and updates the Plan annually to ensure its effectiveness and
operational feasibility.

The LCR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules
effective from 1 January 2015 and the NSFR is effective from 1 January
2018. The Group, being classified as category 1 authorised institution
by the HKMA, is required to calculate LCR and NSFR on consolidated
basis. The Group is required to maintain LCR and NSFR not less than
100%.

By maintaining a ratio in excess of minimum regulatory requirements,
the LCR seeks to ensure that the Group holds adequate liquidity assets
to mitigate a short-term liquidity stress and the NSFR ensures the Group
maintaining sufficient stable funding sources to cover their long-term
assets.

In certain derivative contracts, the counterparties have right to request
from the Group additional collateral if they have concerns about the
Group'’s creditworthiness.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or
business developments. Before launching a new product or business,
the relevant departments are required to go through a risk assessment
process, which includes the assessment of underlying liquidity risk
and consideration of the adequacy of the current risk management
mechanism. Any material impact on liquidity risk noted during the risk
assessment process will be reported to Risk Management Committee
for approval.

The Group has established a set of uniform liquidity risk management
policies. On the basis of the Group’s uniform policy, the principal
banking subsidiary develops its own liquidity management policies
according to its own characteristics, and assumes its own liquidity
risk management responsibility, executes its daily risk management
processes independently, and reports to the Group’s Management on a
regular basis.

The information of liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio
disclosures are available under “Unaudited Supplementary Financial
Information — 1. Liquidity Coverage Ratio and Net Stable Funding Ratio”
and section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.
nch.com.hk.
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4.
4.3
(A)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Maturity analysis

The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at
31 December into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining

period at balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.

2020
-BAR  -Z=fR =Et=fiA
L Upto 1t03 3t0 12 -Z5f RENE FEEAH &t
On demand 1 month months months ~ 1to5years  Over5years Indefinite Total
A8t AET AET TR BT BT AETr A8Tr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
EFRERERSTR Cash and balances with banks
Hire g and other financial insttutions 27,565,169 30,608,141 - - - - - 5873310
ERORA S kR Placements with banks and
—2t-AREIE ofher financial insttutions
T maturing between one and
twelve months - - 337,676 218,303 - - - 555,979
MERG A ER Financial assets at fair value
SREE through profit or loss
-2t ~Trading
- BfES - Debt securities - - 2,739,339 3,758,420 - - - 6,497,759
— BHMNALE ~ Mandatorily measured at
Bt g fair value through
RGN profitor loss
non trading
- - Others - 1,498,520 1,135,265 13,781,769 - - - 16,415,554
TEERTA Derivative finandial instruments 266,944 98,118 154,500 385,639 125,862 - - 1,031,063
ERREMEE Advances and other accounts
- BPER - Advances to customers 27,085,817 568899 24194159 47302076 115168007 56,624,608 631,106 276,694,771
- 853k - Trade bills 6 112,788 262373 15,195 - - - 390,362
SREA Financial investments
UL DN ~ At fair value through other
B EERE comprehensive income
- EEES - Debt securities - 5,098,969 10,971,693 26,019,602 76,552,439 1,792,106 - 120,434,809
- - Certifcates of deposit - 1,150,375 4,243,333 3,319,765 907,755 - - 9,621,228
- WEsuAfE - At amortised cost
- BHES - Debt securities - - - 1,768,208 - - - 1,768,208
- RFiE ~ Certificates of deposit - 1,006 - 115,774 - - - 116,780
- Hft - Others - - - 894,107 - - - 894,107
- RhES - Equity securities - - - - - - 54,109 54,109
REmE Investment properties - - - - - - 341,080 341,080
W% SMEE Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - - 8,220,738 8,220,738
HtraE (REEL Other assets (including deferred
HEAE) fax assets) 2,694,513 1,261,574 30,083 105,781 365,301 - 31,052 4,488,304
EESE Total assets 57,612,449 45,518,489 44,068,421 97,684,639 193,119,364 58,416,714 9,278,085 505,698,161




RAFS IR AR MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4., TREREE @) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
43 REBESER(E) 4.3  Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
(A) FHHZH () (A)  Maturity analysis (Cont'd)
2020
—fEAR -2z ZEt=fiA
il Upto 1t03 3t0 12 -Z5f RENE  FEEAH &t
On demand 1 month months months  1to5years  Over5years Indefinite Total
BT AETR BT ABTT ABTT BRI BT AETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
8% Liabilities
KTk REEL Deposits and balances from
FRRkER banks and other financial
institutions 3,136,326 13,351,254 12,007,919 4,568,817 - - - 33,064,316
MBER R Financialliabilties at fair value
SHER through profit or loss - 2,159,973 2,576,898 1,914,116 - - - 6,650,987
ITHEEMIA Derivative finandial instruments 87,292 374,686 334,686 597,326 487,056 1,907 - 1,882,953
RFER Deposits from customers 135,638,027 61,105,318 67,449,562 76,002,051 11,339,622 95,348 - 351,629,928
BENEEEFRGHE  Debt securties and certificates
of deposit in issue 139,761 119,247 2,065,633 8,022,045 13,667,749 - - 24,014,435
EtRERER Other accounts and provisions
(AEERRER (incluing current and
ERHERR) deferred tax iabiltes) 5,581,171 1,879,592 3,956,498 6,263,966 2,191,071 155,002 BM1T 2001431
fERE Subordinated libilties - - - - - 5,416,390 - 5,416,390
BfEER Total liabilities 144583177 78990070 88391196 97368321 27,685,498 5,668,737 B 442,670,440
EESHO Net liquidity gap (86,930,728)  (33,471,581) (44,322,775 316,318 165,433,866 52,741,917 9,254,644 63,027,721
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4., TREREE @) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
43 REBESER(E) 4.3  Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
(A) FRHZH (&) (A)  Maturity analysis (Cont'd)
2019
-BAR  -E=f@R =Z+=fA
il Upto 1103 3to12 —20fF RENE PMEERE &t
On demand 1 month months months Tto5years  Over5years Indefinite Total
AETT AT BT BETT BETT BT AETT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
B S REHETR Cash and balances with banks
HineRiEENES and other finandial insttutions 25,185,000 16,142,261 - - - - - 4137261
EROREtSRER Placements with banks and
—Er-EAREE other finania institutions
T maturing between one and
twelve months - - 6,917,705 3,538,642 - - - 10,456,347
MrERE AR Financial assets at far value
REE through profit or loss
- 2ot ~Trading
- EBEs - Debt securities - 2,230,031 1,138,024 3294527 - - - 6,662,582
- BHMIALE - Mandatorily measured at
Bt AR fair value through
R profit or loss,
non trading
- Kt - Others - 519,625 798,985 6,590,105 - - - 7,908,715
- k&S - Equity securities - - - - - - 83,050 83,050
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments 253,681 39,863 164,303 64,387 62,154 5228 - 589,616
ERREMEE Advances and other accounts
- RFER - Advances to customers 23,406,408 6,959,463 16,311,040 50,977,315 111,145,709 51,318,441 277,163 260,395,539
- 85285 - Trade bills 2 299,658 1,417,740 300,241 - - - 2,017,641
SHRE Financial investments
- DRRERIEA - At fair value through
A2 Eks other comprehensive income
- EBES - Debt securiies - 8901448 12202634 36106293 61,646,059 2,232,465 - 121108899
- e - Certifcates of deposit - 1,307,132 4644197 12,759,261 3,042,501 - - 753091
- BB AR ~ At amortised cost
- EhES - Delt securities - - - 385,784 2,020,340 - - 2406124
- i ~ Certificates of deposit - 1,011 - 39,854 115,575 - - 156,440
- Hfh - Others - - - 490,930 812,290 - - 1,303,220
- khE% - Equity securities - - - - - - 31,163 31,163
e Investment properties = = - - = = 355,230 355,230
ERE B Properties, plant and equipment = = - - - - 8,602,036 8,602,036
Htr A% (BEEWHER  Other assets (including current
EREHEAE) and deferred tax assets) 666,974 3,560,535 27,853 (62,888) 162,837 1338 75,244 4,431,893
BELE Total assets 49,512,065 39,961,027 43,642,481 114,484,451 179,007,465 53,557,472 9423836 439,588 847
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4. <HEAREEE®)
43 REBELERE(E)
(A) FEHADE)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
(A) Maturity analysis (Cont'd)

2019
—fBARM —2=fif =Zt=fiA
il Upto 1103 3to12 —20fF RENE PMEERE &t
On demand 1 month months months Tto5years  Over5years Indefinite Total
AR AT BETT AT BT YT AR BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
8 Liabilties
KIREMEREEL Deposits and halances from
FRRkER banks and other financial
institutions 3,135,046 14,021,165 10,069,438 3758472 - - - 30,984,121
MhERE AR Financial liabliies at fai value
faii=( through profit or loss - 3,789,576 913499 345,484 - - - 5,048,559
THEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 86,597 56,593 171,971 100,310 172,09 - - 587,563
RPHEH Deposits from customers 11516860 49354429 74057087 9640003 14213192 346,180 - 345887782
BEIREBERR Debt securities and certificates
FE of deposit in issue = 330,652 2,155,133 2,862,718 10,122,553 - - 15471116
EtEARER Other accounts and provisions
(BEERRER (incluing current and
EEHEAR) deferred tax liabilites) 4,888 661 11,877,126 2,358,736 6,210,505 1961,316 79,755 4,429 27,380,528
EaE Subordinated libiltes - - - - - 5,438,386 - 543838
BEER Totalliablities 119627164 79429541 89725864 109677583 26469153 5,864,321 4429 430,798,055
HEERHA Net liquidity gap (70,115099)  (39,468514)  (46,083,383) 4,806,868 152,538,312 47,693,151 9,419,457 58,790,792

EIBIEI R DR TIRIRCIRTT S (KB ) SRR Z BRI
XiMiwme - AEER BT EBVERZEE - W
RN ERE ﬁﬁ‘J?%FEﬂE;ﬁJ BE - HIRIL T RIFE
N HEECEE ZEETEREH 8O m
%ﬁf’ﬁi@%ﬁ HAdR 'JHEZ*B DDA R BRI R AR 2

EREUZEECBEFARE - AIRZERA
E‘JZ%fTﬁEEEI,HHJ EHHRZ B EC R4
B (0E) -

RHBI R RHEBES 2O RBRECRITE (B
) BRI 1ERE 1%?@332&%8’] PERBE RIS
EHFBRAEERIHA

The above maturity classifications have been prepared in accordance
with relevant provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The Group
has reported assets such as advances and debt securities which have
been overdue for not more than one month as “On demand”. In the
case of an asset that is repayable by different payments or instalments,
only that portion of the asset that is actually overdue is reported as
overdue. Any part of the asset that is not due is reported according to
the residual maturity unless the repayment of the asset is in doubt in
which case the amount is reported as “Indefinite”. The above assets are
stated after deduction of provisions, if any.

The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to maturity is
disclosed in order to comply with relevant provisions under the Banking
(Disclosure) Rules. The disclosure does not imply that the securities will
be held to maturity.
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4., SHREREE®
43 REBELERE(E)

(B) BEXNIHAZHZATREEZR

@  HTETAZHZR
TR T REEN12 831 B ZETESREENA
Fira DB BEITRZIRET °

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

(B)  Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual
maturities

(@) Non-derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31

December for non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual

maturity.
2020
-fBAR  -E=fA Z=Zt+=fA ik RENE
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over THREAH b
1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
BRI BETT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial liabilities
FAREMEREEL  Deposits and balances from banks
FRREH and other financial institutions 16,498,604 12,024,268 4,577,299 - - - 33,100,171
AREZ{ABRZ  Financal liabilities at fair value
ERER through profit or loss 2,160,000 2,577,000 1,914,500 - - - 6,651,500
BFER Deposits from customers 196,887,366 67,954,496 77,757,984 12,341,969 95,705 - 355,037,520
BRETEFERR Debt securities and certificates
i of deposit in issue 274734 2,105,599 8593438 14,730,677 - - 25,704,448
kEEE Subordinated liabilities - - 206,191 824,765 6,217,672 - 7,248,628
Hirepas Other financial liabilities 6,721,793 3,723,043 5,863,079 1,287,821 155,092 2385  17,773173
SREREER Total financial liabilities 22,542,497 88,384,406 98,912,491 29,185,232 6,468,469 22,345 445,515,440
2019
—fBER  —Z=EF =Zt-f@RA —Z21F RERE
Upto 1103 3t012 1105 Over  ARERH &t
1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SHaE Financial liabilities
FAOREMERBEIEL  Deposits and balances from banks
GRRER and other financial institutions 17,164,124 10,094,531 3,758,196 - - - 31,016,851
MEZ(ABREZ  Finandal liabilities at fair value
SHERE through profit or loss 3,791,500 917,000 350,000 - - - 5,058,500
RFER Deposits from customers 160,919,553 74,366,567  97,547445 15,694,024 408,382 - 348935971
BETEFEFR Debt securities and certificates
g of deposit in issue 331,073 2,165,041 2,901,837 11,265,385 - - 16,663,336
kERE Subordinated liabilities - - 207,140 828,558 6,450,493 - 7,486,191
HindmAR Other financial liabilities 16,218,685 2,107,455 5,704,523 1,024,600 79,755 4353 25139371
SHBELES Total financial liabilities 198424935 89,650,504 110,469,141 28,812,567 6,938,630 4353 434,300,220
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4., SHREREE®
43 REBELERE(E)
(B) BRI BH H W2 KT BB L7 (&)

(b) ETAZEER

TREMTAREER12A31 BARSKRE DA
JIRZBEER  BREFREELGEZITESRA
B KRB REBEELEEZITASRTA(THE
HEHWBEENAE) - RESPTETRNAARET!
TN TREENEMSBH/ALTENSRRES

32
Vi

AEERFRRELE 2 TESR T AT REEMNX
BH MRAREEGE AR TATEEREE
KEMR GBS -

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

(B)  Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual
maturities (Contq)

(b) Derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining
contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities
that will be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial
instruments that will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether
the contract is in an asset or liability position. The amounts disclosed
in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, except for
certain derivatives which are disclosed at fair value.

The Group’s derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a
net basis mainly include interest rate swaps whereas derivative financial
instruments that will be settled on a gross basis mainly include currency
forwards and currency swaps.

2020
—fEAR -2=ff =Zt+=f@A -ZHE RENE
Upto 1t03 3to 12 1to5 Over act
1 month months months years 5 years Total
BETT BETT BRI BETT BETT BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REFERELE Y Derivative financial liabilities settled
fTEeRAR on a net basis (93,648) (9,546) (53,811) (122,757) (290) (280,052)
REERELE Y Derivative financial instruments settled
fTEemIA on a gross basis
@R Total inflow 20,162,296 16,529,023 19,825,166 - - 56,516,485
Fbirte Total outflow (20,446,247) (16,748,791) (20,071,073) - - (57,266,111)
2019
—EAR —ZZf8 ZEt=fA —ZhF REE
Upto 1103 3t012 1105 Over &t
1 month months months years 5 years Total
BT BETT BETT BETT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RFEEELE Y Derivative financial liabilities settled
ITEeRaR on a net basis 168,387 92 (90) (41,534) 2,172) 124,683
REERELE Y Derivative financial instruments settled
{TEemIA on a gross basis
ZRA Total inflow 20,828,220 9,548,509 13,895,141 3,144,846 - 47,416,716
ik Total outflow (20,886,517) (10,136,847) (14,260,317) (3,133,199) - (48,416,380)
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4., SHREREE®
43 REBELERE(E)
(B) BHBE H W KT R BE L7 (&)

© BEBEXIEH
B R IE

BEREANEER2020F 12 A3 BREFAZLERE
EREMBMEZRIIEMTE  HANSHEABE
127,569,218,000 7t (20194 : &% 123,699,299,000
7T) - WEERURE AT —F AR

SRR EMISHE

AEBR2020F 12 A3 B2 U B EREE MG
B & & 58 A& #33,002,671,000 7T (2019 4F « 78 #&
24,500,563,0007T) * HEHIH DR —4F -

44 EFXERE
REEERNEIRNF E B IR R R E R Ak
MAEBHEARTERKE - FRFAREFREARH
ﬁﬁfﬁﬁa LB e PR ANEEEREE Wi

TREITRABARFEER - BIREERT B A) &
1%%%10

AEEEERUTER - EABNEAEEBRRMG
RS - L ERFIRERBESRHEBEERNORFE -
MREEEARRENER - BEABEEZEER
f%ﬁ SENEARTRME - ARBERSEFRABR
TEBNTASBELERMEEEARE - 70D

K%IEL?‘Eifgﬁéﬁ% AT R E LG RAAE
KA I8 %MIZ*E%UH RAEFENEAREREARER R
PRAANERME A G EDART B INE RA X8 — R 5E R
éz}xgﬂé:ﬁ I*ETF(%ETT%(QZK) HAIEE 317C 15&
&8 %Tﬁt/ﬁ%%u BeBIENEM O EENTHEAR

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

(B)  Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual
maturities (Contq)

(@) Off-balance sheet items
Loan commitments

The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial
instruments as at 31 December 2020 that the Group commits to extend
credit to customers and other facilities totalled HK$127,569,218,000
(2019: HK$123,699,299,000). Those loan commitments can be drawn
within one year.

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group
as at 31 December 2020 totalled HK$33,002,671,000 (2019:
HK$24,500,563,000) are maturing no later than one year.

4.4 Capital management

The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise
total shareholders’ return while maintaining a capital adequacy position
in relation to the Group’s overall risk profile. The ALCO periodically
reviews the Group’s capital structure and adjusts the capital mix where
appropriate to maintain an optimal balance among risk, return and
capital adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework
of policies and controls on capital management to support the
development of the Group’s business and to meet the statutory capital
adequacy ratio. The ALCO monitors the Group’s capital adequacy. The
Group has complied with all the statutory capital requirements of the
HKMA for the reported periods in respect of banking operation as
further elaborated below.

In prior years, the Group adopted the foundation internal ratings-
based (“FIRB”) approach to calculate the credit risk capital charge for
the majority of its non-securitisation exposures and the internal models
("IMM") approach to calculate the general market risk capital charge
for foreign exchange and interest rate exposures and, with the approval
from the HKMA, excluded its structural FX positions pursuant to section
317C of the Banking (Capital) Rules in the calculation of the market risk
capital charge.
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4. SEEREE@

44 EFXEHE(E)

202051 A1 B - AEBERARKAEESARER)
STEERIZE(MIBRR) S EED B EERRBRE
ARERK N TIGEREARENR -

AEBEERAGRECERGEIEDEATEREREER
HEABRRBNRIZHFERERRIFTE (EHIRIE
R St BT ERERREARER ©

S ERN 2020 FEBIRA A EE AT B A2 FF A
AL EREERRTMEEEERERF | AHEK -
T EREE _ENIES  RBEAT AR
TEANFEEE —XETRERER RN BRENE
RERFAFBOEIER - MR EAEEREEBK
B—REARLE  E-RERLELRERERL
K o [ - AEBE AT ) B AL RERE T EER
%*Mi%%%%@*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ§$mﬁ&@% o AR

ERBANREART RN GIEFE —ERFENELRE
EL&'I e B & e R E AR M E BB &
RREBRBEENERE -
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N AEBEFHEFEEARE  AEEAEE
Eifig BZREBEEHE  BERRBNEBR

CBRER - BRELT - ERR - BEERES
’&E%1ﬁﬂéﬁ$ﬁi\iﬁﬁ$&; EmIAARREART
KEEARR - RSB REGR RIFWEART RN
RETAEHER  EAXBER  RERK - m¥RE
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)

From 1 January 2020, the Group has migrated to adopt standardised
(credit risk) (“STC") approach and standardised (market risk) (“STM")
approach to calculate the credit risk capital charge and the market risk
capital charge respectively.

The Group continues to adopt the standardised credit valuation
adjustment (“CVA") method to calculate the capital charge for the CVA
risk of the counterparty and the standardised (operational risk) (“STO")
approach to calculate the operational risk capital charge.

The Group has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy
assessment process (“ICAAP”) to comply with the HKMA's requirements
in the Supervisory Policy Manual “Supervisory Review Process” in 2020.
Based on the HKMA's guidelines on Pillar Il, ICAAP has been initiated to
assess the extra capital needed to cover the material risks not captured
or not adequately captured under Pillar I, and therefore minimum
Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and
minimum Total capital ratio are determined. Meanwhile, operating
ranges for the aforementioned capital ratios have also been established
which enable the flexibility for future business growth and efficiency
of capital utilisation. The Group considers this ICAAP as an on-going
process for capital management and periodically reviews and adjusts its
capital structure where appropriate in relation to the overall risk profile.

In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up annually and then
submitted to the Board for approval after endorsement of the ALCO.
The plan is built up by assessing the implications of various factors
upon capital adequacy such as the business strategies, return on equity,
risk appetite, credit rating, as well as regulatory requirements. Hence,
the future capital requirement is determined and capital sources are
identified also. The plan is to ensure the Group maintains adequate
capital and appropriate capital structure which align with its business
development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance among risk,
return and capital adequacy.
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4., SHREREE®

44 EXREE(HE)
(A) EELGZASER#

EEAERRA KR SRIBCRTE CAK) AN
TR - ERE IR
m&%@%%%&%@mgAwg K

RITRES
BHmE -

SEREEZHBR

REHN [ —ARTZMBRAF]

BRESHEIGAHE MIEREEERESRS
HEANHMB AR ZFFBENT

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)

(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation

The consolidation basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions
of the Bank and certain subsidiaries specified by the HKMA in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. For accounting purposes,
subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance with HKFRSs and the list of
subsidiaries is set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the Bank”.

The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting
scope of consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of
consolidation are as follows:

2020 2019
BEEHAE ERBE BERE BR4REE
Total assets  Total equity Total assets Total equity
BT BT BT BT
£ Name HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEERITEE Nanyang Commercial
BRAT] Bank Trustee Limited 16,746 16,637 16,678 16,561
EFEEEEBERAT Kwong Li Nam Investment
Agency Limited 4,914 4,561 4,948 4,551
FF R EERIT (RIEA) Nanyang Commercial Bank
BRAT] (Nominees) Limited 1,441 1,441 1,449 1,449
A BB ARIREZHEBEHN [MIer — ARR17, 2018 The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in “Appendix

A7 -

72020412 A31 8 WA AHIB A 7

EEHTRAMNE MIeREe
(20194 : #E) o

R2020F 12 A31H » MEEAHEB AR R EIE

REEE
SHERRAEE

— Subsidiaries of the Bank”.
There were no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory
scope of consolidation but not included within the accounting scope of

consolidation as at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Neither were there any subsidiaries which are included within both

gt ERNETREFeBEMER T REZS HE the accounting scope of consolidation and the regulatory scope
(20194 : &) © of consolidation where the methods of consolidation differ as at
31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

B) HEXRE (B) Capital ratio

2020 2019
LRRE—REAR CET1 capital ratio 12.89% 14.58%
—ARE AR Tier 1 capital ratio 15.61% 17.99%
FE= NS Total capital ratio 19.26% 21.73%
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4., SHREREE®
44 EXREE(E)
(B) EAXLEZEGE)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)
(B) Capital ratio (Cont'd)

FRRETE A EE AR E 2 MBE GRS B RNEREDT The consolidated capital base after deductions used in the calculation of

R the above capital ratios is analysed as follows:
2020 2019
BT T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
LB E—RAN  ZIE N {EE  CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
BEETHNAERER Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
et — R ERFRE instruments 3,144,517 3,144,517
REE = Retained earnings 40,738,381 37,165,269
B ENFEE Disclosed reserves 9,821,320 9,157,646
EEHRL 2RI m CET1 capital before regulatory
Bt — AR A AN deductions 53,704,218 49,467,432
TRRE—REAN  BEEHR CET1 capital: requlatory deductions
HEAE Valuation adjustments (118) (39)
EHREERIBEER Deferred tax assets net of deferred
BIERIA & B tax liabilities (430,257) (58,000)
RAFEERENAER Gains and losses due to changes in own
REH(= R RS credit risk on fair valued liabilities
EEHER (2,133) (1,420)
At REE(BEAR Cumulative fair value gains arising from
HERR)EITEAERN the revaluation of land and buildings
MEANRBEAFEE KD (own-use and investment properties) (6,781,431) (6,899,837)
—RRIRTT TSR fR BB h Regulatory reserve for general banking risks (2,453,479) (2,694,377)
T mRE—RERY Total regulatory deductions to
EEHIR A CET1 capital (9,667,418) (9,653,673)
TERE—RER CET1 capital 44,036,800 39,813,759
FIN—MRE R Additional Tier 1 capital 9,314,890 9,314,890
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4. SHERERE® 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
44 EFXEHE(E) 4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)
(B) EAXLZEGE) (B) Capital ratio (Cont'd)
2020 2019
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
— AR Tier 1 capital 53,351,690 49,128,649
TRHRER  ERREERES Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
BEEZRERZEEM Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments plus
ARG ®E any related share premium 5,392,907 5,414,796
BERF AR ERRI LS Collective impairment allowances and

RERE R —RIRTTER regulatory reserve for general banking

BEEEE risks eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 capital 4,020,931 1,697,544
ELEHR Z BT A) — B AR Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions 9,413,838 7,112,340
THREDR : BB Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions

neE& BT AZRERD Add back of cumulative fair value gains

A i M EREY (BA R arising from the revaluation of land and

HERR)EITEEER buildings (own-use and investment properties)

MEARNREATFEE K eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 capital 3,051,644 3,104,927
HoMEANEEHRAE Total regulatory deductions to Tier 2 capital 3,051,644 3,104,927
ZHREXR Tier 2 capital 12,465,482 10,217,267
BmE R Total capital 65,817,172 59,345,916
PrEEEEALESFTAT The capital buffer ratios are analysed as follows:

#2020 F 2019 4F

12A31H 12HA31H

At At

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

B E AL = Capital conservation buffer ratio 2.5% 2.5%
PREMEHEARL X Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 0.61% 1.11%
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4. ZRIBEREEE

44 EBEFXREEE)

(B) EXHFE#E)

RIECERITZE (BAR) RE) - )R 2016 22019 FH P&
BB AP EEEHEAR([CCBLLR ) - B HRHERIETT
EXZBRESN B RBRIMEEEZ22.5% 287 o i
AREEEAR([CCyBELE]) BIZAERREEER
RE - AUEEEERBERBRERKHEBL - &
BEREERAMB S EBANEEREHEAS
12019410 A 14 B % 202043 A 16 B # 5 5l & &
B nEEEZ 2.00% &% 1.00% °

FEREABRENAAEMNTRARITHEE

www.nch.com.hk  [ESE K EE | —£1 2% o

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)

(B) Capital ratio (Cont'd)

In accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules, the phase-in from 2016
to 2019 of the Capital Conservation Buffer (“CCB") is designed to
ensure banks build up capital outside periods of stress of 2.5% of risk-
weighted assets (“RWAs"). The Countercyclical Capital Buffer (“CCyB")
which is set on an individual country basis and is built up during periods
of excess credit growth to protect against future losses. The HKMA
announced a CCyB for Hong Kong of 2.00% and 1.00% of RWAs from
14 October 2019 and 16 March 2020 respectively.

The additional information of capital disclosures is available
under section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’'s website at
www.ncb.com.hk.

) FEBEREE (C) Leverage ratio
2020 2019
BT T BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
—RER Tier 1 capital 53,351,690 49,128,649
TER b ZR @ B A Leverage ratio exposure 533,313,515 512,744,692
TEARLL 3 Leverage ratio 10.00% 9.58%

ERERELERENHBTENAIRARITEA

www.ncb.com.hk P [ESE R | —E0 3% -

The additional information of leverage ratio disclosures is available
under section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at
www.ncb.com.hk.
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5. BENAREBNARE

FEUAR ERRENBRENBRBENEAERE
- REBMBEREERE 35K [ Do EHE] 0
TE - RAABEBRENDE - RIS WEHLRIHE
TEFRANEREZ TRREREAN - LR
RAREHBEEARE REERRRRET

- F—E&  HREEXABLRRETST R
BOREHE) - KERBRELETRMOES
OB EITNER LA  ETIHARZHNT
ERHREDE -

- FBA : DENEERMAIRANSERER
RAE(ARFHERBAAEAEREATE
AREEREREE - KERBERLDS
SNRZHIDTER K ~ R EIRGH M ER(E
R ERE S MFE - AR IEEL AR
MMERFRET T TEAFBNESE LY
=,

- F=RB  DENGERMATRAOKERER
RR(FAEFHEBOAEFEAEATE
BAAHER - WERBRAEATAERERA
FHIFEMERE - BABRNEEE - R
ERHABRENTSETET T EAFED
UE

URUNBEEERARVBRERNEERBE &
SEeRNE - MBERERMNEEBEHNTHED
REREEBRBAAEFEFEAXEZZEERE
) MREESEAAEER LMELE -

51 UAAREFENSHRIA
REERY T TENAABEERARIERZEE - AnE
IR B NIRRT BN FEE IR E - SIEHIE
NBERYZEIGES Z(HEERIERNAAEE
B At EEtiEFr BB RN GHELSE -
BEAHESTEENEIREMER -

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”. The categorisation
are determined with reference to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in the valuation methods and based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities. This category includes listed
equity shares, debt instruments issued by certain governments,
certain exchange-traded derivative contracts and precious
metals.

- Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly. This category includes
majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt securities and
certificates of deposit with quote from pricing services vendors.
It also includes precious metals and properties with insignificant
adjustments made to observable market inputs.

- Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable. This category includes unlisted equity investment,
rediscounted bills and forfeiting with significant unobservable
components. It also includes properties with significant
adjustments made to observable market inputs.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group has an established governance structure and controls
framework to ensure that fair values are either determined or validated
by control units independent of the front offices. Control units
have overall responsibility for independent verification of valuation
results from front line businesses and all other significant fair value
measurements. Specific controls include verification of observable
pricing inputs. Significant valuation issues are reported to the
Management.
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5. BENMEBBHNARE®E

51 LUAREBERENSEIRGE
EEAN AL EBRER - AEBEB—LHE
R XoBcABRBESRTANAR
(@ o

HRAEEFAEN ST A - AAERMTERNE
R2YBEESFER NE EX EaMBEEE
1®ORE RSBUFEENEREM  TBHARA
MBI N ERN2H -

RUAEEATEMTAARENGETENT

EHTA - & BYE - FEZ

HRTANAAERRSH  X5ERINEBLIAE
RS ERREHAOTIZREKERBRRRSREE D
IRE - MRBSRER R —ERABETARKRE
o R—ER TS EERURRO TAMEREE
BEZBRERL—RUARRAEERKZNELE
% FAR2ZREABIMKENBRAE - FLBH
RIS LR BSE i A RN A BRI EERE

g o

PTETA

BINZ GEINTET B G X BIEINE - RS mAE
H IR HAR HARE A 4 - STHE TEAHMBIREEHEL
RN MER R AT ERE S ERMEE © FiE
AR AR BRI BEMGEE - AJERMR
HEEMNE - EEX - FRERKERE - TAERNS
FON B = A Al AR RER S IET KT IER 558
EHWHREED B EEHNITAETESDN - AR
EIRER /R ZIREBER -

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)
5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations to
determine the fair value of financial instruments when unable to obtain
the open market quotation in active markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial
instruments held by the Group include bond prices, interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices, volatilities, counterparty
credit spreads and others, which are mostly observable and obtainable
from open market.

The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial
instruments is as below:

Debt instruments, certificates of deposit, rediscounted
bills and forfeiting

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted
market prices from exchange, dealer or independent pricing service
vendors or using discounted cash flow technique. Discounted cash
flow model is a valuation technique that measures present value using
estimated expected future cash flows from the instruments and then
discounts these flows using a discount margin that reflects the credit
spreads required by the market for instruments with similar risk or
a discount rate which is referred to the transaction interest rate of
instruments with similar risk as at the end of the month and inter-bank
bid rate as the final discount rate. These inputs are observable or can be
corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.

Derivatives

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts
on foreign exchange, interest rate or commodity. The fair values of
these contracts are mainly measured using valuation techniques such as
discounted cash flow models and option pricing models. The inputs can
be observable or unobservable market data. Observable inputs include
interest rate, foreign exchange rates, commodity prices and volatilities.
Unobservable inputs such as volatility surface may be used for less
commonly traded option products which are embedded in structured
deposits. For certain complex derivative contracts, the fair values are
determined based on broker/dealer price quotations.
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5. EENMBEBMNARE®) 5.
51 LUAREFENESETA(E) 5.1
FTETE ()

AEEHSIRGOITETAER TEEBERABR
ERHERR - ARDHIRBRETSEEAZEE 5
HFEEREBESEES
ERE-XSHETF - WRKREHROD - BOXRMKE

EHHIE - GAARIR

Derivatives (Cont'd)

FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont’d)

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVA"”) and debit valuation adjustments
("DVA") are applied to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments
reflect market factors movement, expectations of counterparty
creditworthiness and the Group’s own credit spread respectively. They

HEETE o are mainly determined for each counterparty and are dependent on
expected future values of exposures, default probabilities and recovery
rates.

(A) RAREHER (A)  Fair value hierarchy

2020
EF—ER E-ER EZEBR st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THMEE Financial assets
AREE LT A BR Financial assets at fair value through
Z&mEE (FiFE20) profit or loss (Note 20)
- X514 — Trading
— E%ES — Debt securities - 6,497,759 - 6,497,759
— BHIEAR R ERE — Mandatorily measured at fair
FTABEE  ERFHM value through profit or loss,
non trading
— Hfth — Others - - 16,415,554 16,415,554
PTEemIT A (FizE21) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 21) 267,649 763,414 - 1,031,063
AR EECEAEMEE  Financial investments at fair value
RS RIS E (Ff5£23)  through other comprehensive
income (Note 23)
— BBFESFREFRE — Debt securities and certificates
of deposit 1,162,689 128,893,348 - 130,056,037
— BhEH — Equity securities - - 54,109 54,109
SRIBE Financial liabilities
ARBEZEE AEE Financial liabilities at fair value
Ze@mBemEPE27) through profit or loss (Note 27)
- X5 ~ Trading - 6,650,987 - 6,650,987
PTEemIA (FEE21) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 21) 88,464 1,794,489 - 1,882,953
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5. BENMEBBHNARE®E

51 LUAREFENESETA(E)

(A) KARERIERE)

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont’d)

(A) Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)

2019
= = FE=ER HEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T AT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRIEE Financial assets
AREE LT ABR Financial assets at fair value through
Z @& E (K:E20) profit or loss (Note 20)
— X5 — Trading
— EBES — Debt securities - 6,662,582 - 6,662,582
— AR AR EEE — Mandatorily measured at fair
AR RGN value through profit or loss,
non trading
& 10 F % — Equity securities 83,050 - - 83,050
— Efth — Others - - 7,908,715 7,908,715
PTESRT A (KEE21) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 21) 257,665 331,951 - 589,616
AR REZECF AEMEE  Financial investments at fair value
W% E (f7£23)  through other comprehensive
income (Note 23)
— BEE S RIFRE — Debt securities and certificates
of deposit - 142,861,990 - 142,861,990
— RinFE S — Equity securities - - 31,163 31,163
SREE Financial liabilities
AREE LT ABR Financial liabilities at fair value
ZemBEFE27) through profit or loss (Note 27)
- R — Trading = 5,048,559 - 5,048,559
PTHESRT A (FEE21) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 21) 88,985 498,578 - 587,563

AEBZeREERAENFAYREE —BREE

—EBR 2 ERERE (20194 : &) -

level 2 for the Group during the year (2019: Nil).

There were no financial asset and liability transfers between level 1 and

#17% % % 48 4% » NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2020 ANNUAL REPORT 42§ * www.nch.com.hk

161



162

RAFS IR AR MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

5. EENAGHNAARE® 5.  FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)
51 HUAAREFENESBIAE) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)
(B) ZE=[EARKHEEZE (B)  Reconciliation of level 3 items
2020
SREE
Financial assets
REIMUA A A RERA
Bt ABHE Hih2mEkz
Mandatorily K& iR E
measured at Financial
fair value investments
through profit at fair value
orloss  through other
kXHMH comprehensive
Non trading income
Hit I35
Others Equity securities
BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000
RK2020F1 A1 H At 1 January 2020 7,908,715 31,163
g Gains
— WEmxk — Income statement 450,003 -
— Hb 2 EE — Other comprehensive income
— AARER AEAM — Change in fair value of financial assets
2HEWER©F at fair value through other comprehensive
BEZAREE income - 22,946
— [EHZEH — Exchange difference 545,912 -
BA Purchases 100,853,300 -
=Hih Sales (93,342,376) -
K2020%12 A31H At 31 December 2020 16,415,554 54,109
K2020F 12 A31 HEFEER Total unrealised gain for the period included in income
TRIEER NG AR statement for financial assets held as
HAREIR W R at 31 December 2020 21,583 -
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5. BENMEBBHNARE®E 5.

(Cont'd)
51 LUAREFENESETA(E) 5.1
(B) ZE=EARHEEZE (&) (B)

Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont'd)

FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont’d)

2019

Financial assets
EHIMELAR R E A AR EETA
BbEt A\Bs Hh 2 E M=
Mandatorily eI E
measured at Financial
fair value investments
through profit at fair value

or loss through other
JEX S comprehensive
Non trading income
B fib &0 7& %
Others*  Equity securities
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RK2019F 1 A1H At 1 January 2019 3,786,290 31,833
Iezs,/ (B18) Gains/(losses)
— WEmxk — Income statement 145,053 -
— Hb 2 EE — Other comprehensive income
— URARETAHEM — Change in fair value of financial assets
2HEWER©F at fair value through other comprehensive
BEZAAEEZE income = (670)
— ERERE — Exchange difference (187,440) =
A Purchases 77,273,560 =
=Hih Sales (73,108,748) =
K20194 12 A31H At 31 December 2019 7,908,715 31,163
K20194F 12 A31 HEFEER Total unrealised gain for the period included in income
EEENANGT AREE statement for financial assets held as
MARER WA at 31 December 2019 17,032 =
* REERFERY]  BAOLRESEEET ° 3 Certain comparative amounts have been restated according to the current

M2020F12 A31H &2019F 128318 2 A
FoESNSBRTATEAUAABEERLABRZ

EREERIFLTRE -

year presentation.

value through profit or loss and unlisted equity shares.

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, financial instruments
categorised as level 3 are mainly comprised of financial assets at fair
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5. BENMEBBHNARE®E

51 LUAREBERENSEIRGE
(B) FE=[ERAEEEE (&)
HRRLERBERMARREREFABEMAR
REFARMEANSEZSREE  ~EBERXZY
FRAE  EARENFTERERA THHEELSE
FENTABR28 AAKERELSRTA
BENEF=ER - AEEDRABEABENIEFE
ZEE SRR T EARD

FELEMBRENRAEBTZZAHLEERN EHRRZF
BTE/ BIEE - HEREAENHLERARF] -
AREEEFEETE - ARBERLETUAAABENE
BEESFHHARMGARENRNERABEFET
RANERTAEESET

fhER % EXTABRZE

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont’d)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont'd)

For certain illiquid others financial assets classified as fair value through
profit or loss and fair value through other comprehensive income, the
Group obtains valuation guotations from counterparties which may be
based on unobservable inputs with significant impact on the valuation.
Therefore, these instruments have been classified by the Group as level
3. The Group has established internal control procedures to control the
Group's exposure to such financial instruments.

The fair values of unlisted equity shares are determined with reference
to multiples of comparable listed companies, such as average of the
price/earning ratios of comparables, or net asset value, if appropriate
comparables are not available. The significant unobservable inputs
applied in the fair values measurement of the Group’s unlisted fair value
through other comprehensive income equity shares are as follows:

#E THEESHE
ARENBEER
Relationship of
unobservable inputs

Valuation method Significant unobservable inputs Range to fair value
TS EOA 1B,/ BFIEE 7.0-52.7 Mg/ BiEgEs

Market comparison approach Price/earning ratios

EEETEHE B HATFIE

EV/EBITDA

BN RE7K
Liquidity discount

BEFE TEA
Net asset value N/A

(2019: N/A) ARERS
The higher the price/earning ratios,
the higher the fair value.

0.08 - 34.29 BB,/ BB & R AT
(2019: N/A) AR AnEDS
The higher the EV/EBITDA ratios,
the higher the fair value.

30% MENERDKES - AR ERR
(2019: N/A) The higher the liquidity discount,

the lower the fair value.

TER NEH
N/A N/A
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5. BENMEBBHNARE®E

51 HUAAREFENESBIAE)

(B) ZE=[ERpEEZE (&)
ARERBEERA 2 AILLERNE, S8 R EE
B/ HEIERBEAFE  EEFEFELRNS
% o HEANBER ENERTAIEBR2E0E M,
W 5% ¢ BIZASEH A WU A 0, R S
2,705,0007c(2019412 A31H : ##1,558,0007T) °
EUAREEFEAEEH T ALMEEKES 2 IEE
TMRERGHARBEZIZR BN T EELIY
FER I ERBRAETRSMELENTE
M & TF 2 Bt -

52 FUQAAEFENEEMIA
ARERAE—FERFHIZBETHERN L TR SR
TAZERREE - AT ZERBRERERS)
ARFHERERIAZARE-

R HRIRITREAMEBBEZEHRES
S

ARbDz EBMEEMBERNGEERE—FAIE
HEmERAAERES °

FEFEH
REA 2 EFPERZFBNE - 2T 5
g HRREESRQAERE -

& 5 R

e A e BRyEH T A
AR ANMERTEMN B TR Z A A EEEE EM T
510 AR EENEBTARRAZIERR -

EFEH
RED 2 BEPFFENERE BR—FAZIE - HRE
ERAAERS -

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont’d)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont'd)

The fair value is positively correlated to the price/earning ratios and
EV/EBITDA of appropriate comparables or net asset values. Had the
significant unobservable inputs applied on the valuation techniques
increased/decreased by 5% (31 December 2019: 5%), the Group’s
other comprehensive income would have increased/decreased by
HK$2,705,000 (31 December 2019: HK$1,558,000). When the fair
value of the unlisted fair value through other comprehensive income
equity shares is affected by more than one unobservable input, the
aforesaid impact reflects the most favourable or the most unfavourable
change from varying inputs individually.

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on
relevant market information and information about various financial
instruments. The following methods and assumptions have been used
to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument as far as
practicable.

Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions
and trade bills

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one
year from the balance sheet date and their carrying value approximates
fair value.

Advances to customers

Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating rate terms,
bear interest at prevailing market interest rates and their carrying value
approximates fair value.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

The fair value of debt instruments at amortisation cost is determined by
using the same approach as those debt instruments measured at fair
value as described in Note 5.1.

Deposits from customers

Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year
from the balance sheet date and their carrying value approximates fair
value.
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5. BENMEBBHNARE®E

52 FURAAEFENERIAGE

ERITEBESRFHE

HETREZ AAEEEEMZES 1 ANRAREFER
BT ERFHERA 2 IAER -

RIEAE

HRTAZAAEEERNES1RARREFER
BT ERFHRERAZIAER e

B LEREAEEARERENERTAIN TR
FEURAEFENERITAZRHENAAE °

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

5.2  Financial instruments not measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue

The fair value of these instruments is determined by using the same
approach as those debt instruments and certificates of deposit
measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.

Subordinated liabilities

The fair value of the instrument is determined by using the same
approach as those debt instruments and certificates of deposit
measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.

The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the
financial instruments not measured at fair value, except for the above
with their carrying values being approximation of fair values.

2020 2019
BREE ARE BREE DRE
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
LA SRR A ERT 2/ Debt instruments at
BEHITA amortised cost 2,779,095 2,859,873 3,865,784 3,934,640
SRBeE Financial liabilities
BEITEBESFMFRE Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue 24,014,435 24,178,199 15,471,116 15,659,408
RIEAE Subordinated liabilities 5,416,390 5,622,606 5,438,386 5,514,042
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5. EENAGHNAARE® 5.  FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

52 FUAABEFENESRTAEGE) 5.2  Financial instruments not measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

TRIFEBREEARENSRIEZ AR EESR The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial

instruments with fair values disclosed.

2020
E—BR EEBR E=ZBHR st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
SWMEE Financial assets
LABESRRN A VEET £ HYETE T A Debt instruments at amortised cost - 1,898,476 961,397 2,859,873
TRIEE Financial liabilities
BEITEBIHRFRE Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue - 24,178,199 - 24,178,199
BIEAE Subordinated liabilities - 5,622,606 - 5,622,606
2019
E—ER FE_EBR FEHK 45T
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
PR T PR T BT T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRIEE Financial assets
LABE SRR ANERTE BYE7S T A Debt instruments at amortised cost = 2,578,375 1,356,265 3,934,640
TRIEE Financial liabilities
BEITEEBE S RFRE Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue - 15,659,408 - 15,659,408
‘RIEEE Subordinated liabilities = 5,514,042 = 5,514,042
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5. BENMEBBHNARE®E

53 LAREENFEMTIA
AEERBG - LEERMSEET S REREE IS
BTANAARE -

REWFEREE

REBZOEA D RENEMEE - MAEAKEZ
KRENMENFEECETER - MEHRBFIFIEE
HOTRIGHERTTER A RIETT - BB R BT EREAM
BeEREXEBREXSEERZAR  YHMKE
MEMRLRRER LHEEER - EHENSEFR
MERETR  AEBERES RS/ wEET
* o HERKREESER - HEIEZRFRRER

5 o

() FE_ERAA B ER ARG ETZRFE

WABRFE_BRZMENRAE - HREALERY)
FOOIHERRE (MSLEE) K2 ETHRE R
BERMEER(BABARZE) - BYHATLBYERBHEY)
ERNZRFLEE AR - L ERERBRLERE
SAEUTMEREATE -

AEBZMEBUNBERAM 2 BT @ KBH
ERRNMERANMETS IHLEYMEZLEER ™
BHEREMER—RGAIEHLEN S EREEKHE
EERER -

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)
5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices in active
market to determine the fair value of non-financial instruments.

Investment properties and premises

The Group's properties can be divided into investment properties and
premises. All of the Group's investment properties and premises were
revalued. The valuations were carried out by an independent firm of
chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited, who have among their
staff Fellow and Members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with
recent experience in the locations and categories of properties being
valued. The Group’s Management had discussions with the surveyors
on the valuation methods, valuation assumptions and valuation results
when the valuation is performed at each interim and annual reporting
date. There has been no change in valuation methods during the year.

(i) Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using
either the market comparison approach by reference to recent sales
price of comparable properties or the income capitalisation approach
by reference to market rent and capitalisation rate, with appropriate
adjustments to reflect the differences between the comparable
properties and the subject properties. These adjustments are considered
as insignificant to the entire measurement.

The Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong and major cities in the
PRC where the property markets are considered active and transparent.
Sales price, market rent and capitalisation rate of comparable properties
are generally observable either directly or indirectly in these markets.
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5. EENMBEBMNARE®)
53 LUARBEHBHNISEBIAH)

REYWEREE (&)

(i)  BEFE=ERAAEGSEAEN

WO BRBE=EHFNAEEYMEZ AAEHRATS
HEORRMABARL - BIRAKEMEEH R A LR
YEZEEFIMEERBREE -

AN REAAREFERHERIERF BRI AKE
MERBNGEEITDERERTABRERE :

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

Investment properties and premises (Cont'd)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 is

determined using either the market comparison approach or the income

capitalisation approach, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific

to the features of the Group’s properties compared to the comparable

properties.

The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the
fair value measurement of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3
are as follows:

FBERER
P R DNABNEE

HER % BATABRERE Weighted Relationship of unobservable
Valuation method Significant unobservable inputs average inputs to fair value

Hiohx ML EEFBMAEARE MERHTT L BYERENE -4.3% nEYS - ARESE

Other properties Market comparison approach or 2 (4118 /BB (2019: +2.4%) The higher the discount,

(Discount)/premium on features
of the property compared to
comparable properties

income capitalisation approach

the lower the fair value.

REEE  AAEES -
The higher the premium,
the higher the fair value.

YERS A LLRMEENE L 2%E/ (FE) H2E
HATLLEMEATRRERZ ENER - PIIIKRIRZ T
Ry LE - EEN - BRRN BE - mE-
REMETE °
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Premium/(discount) on features of a property is determined after taken
into account various factors, such as time for market movement,
location, accessibility, building age/condition, floor level, size, layout,
with reference to the differences in features with comparable properties.
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5. EENEENLD

53 LARBERENFEMIAGE)

BB

BBz AR ERRERMSRERAE THBND

REW® 5.

5.3

FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Cont'd)

Non-financial instruments measured at fair value

(Cont'd)

Precious metals

The fair values of precious metals are determined by obtaining

quoted market prices in active market or market quote with certain
adjustments.

(A) DA ERIZFR (A) Fair value hierarchy
2020
E—BR EEBR E=ZER st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEREE Non-financial assets
WA (HiFE24) Investment properties (Note 24) - 13,400 327,680 341,080
Y%~ 230 K& (MIaE25)  Properties, plant and equipment
(Note 25)
— FE — Premises - 1,621,200 5,598,890 7,220,090
& E (FiaE26) Other assets (Note 26)
- E2B — Precious metals 157,558 247,160 - 404,718
2019
E—ER EF_ER E=ER HET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
PR T PR T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERMEE Non-financial assets
"B (175 24) Investment properties (Note 24) = 6,810 348,420 355,230
D - 22 K& (BisE25)  Properties, plant and equipment
(Note 25)
- BE — Premises - 327,345 7,154,208 7,481,553
HinEE (st 26) Other assets (Note 26)
— B8 — Precious metals 81,541 183,224 - 264,765

AEBZIFEREERNFNREE —EBERARE_BR

2 R (20194F « &) -

for the Group during the year (2019: Nil).

There were no non-financial asset transfers between level 1 and level 2
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5. EENAGHNAARE® 5.  FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)
53 UQAAEFENEESRTIAGE) 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)
BB (&) Precious metals (Cont'd)
(B) FE=ERAIEF ZE) (B) Reconciliation of level 3 items
2020
FEMEE
Non-financial assets
M - BMR
=B
Properties,
plant and
REWE equipment
Investment EE
properties Premises
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
R2020F1 A1 H At 1 January 2020 348,420 7,154,208
s Gains
— — Income statement
— BEMEAAEFAE — Net loss from fair value adjustments
ZEEE on investment properties (2,950) -
— BEhEEZFEE — Net loss from revaluation of premises - (6,686)
— Ht 2 EE — Other comprehensive income
— BEZf — Revaluation of premises - (101,107)
wE Additions - 6,341
e Depreciation - (103,833)
g Reclassification (17,790) 17,790
g Transfer out - (1,415,143)
MEH =58 Exchange difference - 47,320
#2020 12 4318 At 31 December 2020 327,680 5,598,890
K2020F 12 A31 BHEFEER Total unrealised losses for the year included in income
FERMEENFRNGTA statement for non-financial assets held as
Wk AR EREEERE at 31 December 2020
— REMEARERE — Net loss from fair value adjustments
TR on investment properties (2,950) -
— EMFEEZFEE — Net loss from revaluation of premises - (6,686)
(2,950) (6,686)

178 % 4 44 « NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2020 ANNUAL REPORT 44§ » www.ncb.com.hk 171



172

RAFS IR AR MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

5. EENAGHNAARE® 5.  FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)
53 MAREFENFERMIAME) 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)
BB (#) Precious metals (Cont'd)
(B) FE=ERAIEL EE) (E) (B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont’d)
2019
FEmEE
Non-financial assets
Y - /MR
B
Properties,
plant and
HEYZE equipment
Investment BE
properties Premises
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R2019F1 A1 H At 1 January 2019 331,942 7,334,171
s Gains
— — Income statement
— REMELARERE — Net gain from fair value adjustments
el G on investment properties 16,478 =
— BEftEE2F W= — Net gain from revaluation of premises - 2,384
— Hb 2 EWE — Other comprehensive income
— FEEH — Revaluation of premises = 130,022
s Depreciation = (124,472)
Ee Additions - 74,801
i Transfer out = (251,400)
PE =58 Exchange difference = (11,298)
R2019F 12 A31H At 31 December 2019 348,420 7,154,208
RK2019F 12 A31 HIF AW Total unrealised gains for the year included in income
FEHMEERFRNETA statement for non-financial assets held as
Wk ARER =B at 31 December 2019
— REMERAREHE — Net gain from fair value adjustments
2 F W on investment properties 16,478 =
— EfEE2FRE — Net gain from revaluation of premises - 2,384
16,478 2,384
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5. EENMBEBMNARE®)
53 LUARBEHBHNISEBIAH)

BB (#)

B  EZERNEEEEZ(E)

BARBHE =ZBENMERDEZERMEEYERY
HA LB EENE F 28/ (B REALRE
1EFaIER - WE E2EE, (ITE) HBEURRKREEYD
REIHRRZALBYFEEME LMER - ANE
FREAHATISRR Z TLLBRYEDE NERR - #
EYEEALRYEELE E2RE(FE)EH
EESFEMEL  KMHABENNERRMETZ
WBZEBRNETEHE2E(L - SIRYERBARE R
E=ER -

6. FFREWA

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

Precious metals (Cont'd)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 jitems (Cont’d)

The transfer of properties into and out of level 3 is due to change in
the premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject and
comparable properties during the year. Premium/(discount) on features
is determined with reference to differences in features between the
subject properties and the comparable properties recently transacted
in the market. As comparable properties that come from recent market
transactions may be different in each year, the premium/(discount) on
features applied between the subject and comparable properties would
change from year to year accordingly. As a result, the significance of
adjustments made to observable market inputs may vary and lead to
the transfer of properties into and out of level 3.

6. NET INTEREST INCOME

2020 2019
BEET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FIE WA Interest income
TR EZERE S BhkE Due from banks and other financial institutions 546,025 1,174,566
HIRIE

EFEEX Advances to customers 9,067,041 10,120,750
SRIEE Financial investments 2,864,290 3,621,916
HAth Others 21,883 18,843
12,499,239 14,936,075

FE X H Interest expense
B3 N E A& R B TFMAFIE  Due to banks and other financial institutions (332,917) (1,010,619)
EEFM Deposits from customers (4,788,758) (6,461,391)
BB TES B S R FRE Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue (615,134) (539,384)
‘REAE Subordinated liabilities (209,386) (24,007)
HEAE Lease liabilities (18,838) (23,233)
HAh Others (165,719) (227,252)
(6,130,752) (8,285,886)
R E WA Net interest income 6,368,487 6,650,189

HZE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE 2 A BRABERKRE
AIREE T F S U A S 3,179,000 7T (2019

F : 7% 1,351,0007T) °

Included within interest income is HK$3,179,000 (2019: HK$1,351,000)
of interest with respect to income accrued on advances classified as
impaired for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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6. FERNEWA @

FEURAR BT ABRZ CRHEERS BB EME
A K F B U R FI B 32 H 5 Bl A7 85 12,499,239,000
JC(20194 : % %14,936,075,0007T ) K B ¥
6,130,752,0007T(20194F : 7% 8,285,886,0007T) °

6. NET INTEREST INCOME (Cont'd)

Included within interest income and interest expense are
HK$12,499,239,000 (2019: HK$14,936,075,000) and HK$6,130,752,000
(2019: HK$8,285,886,000) for financial assets and financial liabilities that
are not recognised at fair value through profit or loss respectively.

7. EERBERAEASBA 7. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BREERASKRA Fee and commission income
BEaAe Loan commissions 611,581 527,406
BHEL Securities brokerage 304,096 184,513
IRBe2 Insurance 200,961 268,683
EERHE Bills commissions 158,908 167,856
HE D Funds distribution 130,461 125,507
B AR TS Payment services 44,788 53,953
REM Safe deposit box 40,570 38,865
EFE B IR Trust and custody services 24,535 12,738
ERRES Credit card business 6,120 20,969
BEEEK Currency exchange 391 714
HAb Others 184,855 198,787
1,707,266 1,599,991
REERAE Fee and commission expense
BHELR Securities brokerage (41,205) (26,665)
ERRER Credit card business (3,284) (6,368)
R Payment services (1) 3)
HAth Others (43,320) (37,833)
(87,810) (70,869)
FREERAESWA Net fee and commission income 1,619,456 1,529,122
HARE Of which arise from
— EARARER L AR — financial assets or financial liabilities not at fair value
ZeMEESERAE through profit or loss
— RiEE RAES WA — Fee and commission income 615,823 528,743
— RSB NS H — Fee and commission expense (4,699) (1,635)
611,124 527,108
— [ErEREAMZFEIEE) — trust and other fiduciary activities
— lREE KA A — Fee and commission income 24,535 12,738
— REERAESH — Fee and commission expense (1,351) (1,293)
23,184 11,445
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8. FEXFMWzE 8. NET TRADING GAIN
2020 2019
BET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B (BB RE Net gain/(loss) from
— INER 5 RINESZ 5 E — foreign exchange and foreign exchange products 130,523 154,656
— METERARBEL — interest rate instruments and items under (47,150) 54,354
#918 B fair value hedge
— &M — commodities (2,506) (26,495)
80,867 182,515
9. HMEMEEZFW=SE 9. NET GAIN ON OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
2020 2019
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ARAAREE T AR 2EUWES  Net gain on financial investments measured at fair value
B & IR E 2 R E through other comprehensive income 261,805 221,044
Hh > Others* (12,036) (1,981)
249,769 219,063
* HAOUBSHEEFTOBEEUAA BRI ABEZS 3 Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to Net gain on financial

BMTRFREATAARE 2RI

instruments at fair value through profit or loss to conform with the current

year'’s presentation.

10. Huib&&UR A 10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

BAHRERSWA Dividend income from investment in securities

— I EMEHEE — Unlisted investments 2,165 2,315
LB A BIRA Gross rental income from investment properties 10,071 11,790
B BRREYE SN Less: Outgoings in respect of investment properties (980) (979)
Hth Others 7,332 9,586
18,588 22,712

[BRAREME XY | BREFAREHRKENE ZE Included in the “Outgoings in respect of investment properties” is
iS5 % 146,000 7T (2019 4F « %% 103,000 HK$146,000 (2019: HK$103,000) of direct operating expenses related
JT) ° to investment properties that were not let during the year.

FREERATEEBEE[REDEZHSRARA ]
(20194 : &) o

There was no contingent rent included in the “Gross rental income
from investment properties” during the year (2019: Nil).
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1. REEEFRE 11. NET CHARGE OF IMPAIRMENT
ALLOWANCES
2020
E—RER EREER E=REER et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BET T BET T BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHERTT RE M & ks Balances with banks and other (1,116) - - (1,116)
EOfES financial institutions
BRI E MR Advances and other accounts 120,711 (13,388) (1,377,044) (1,269,721)
T ERE Financial investments 29,623 (55,322) 844 (24,855)
Hib&EE Other assets (995) (18) 12 (1,001)
BATSIEIR Financial guarantees (38,484) (26) - (38,510)
BERdE Loan commitments (23,351) (593) - (23,944)
BUEEEFO R () Net reversal/(charge)
of impairment allowances 86,388 (69,347) (1,376,188) (1,359,147)
2019
FPEER B FRER E=PEER HET
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT T PR TIT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRERTT R HE M€ RS Balances with banks and other 640 = (70,768) (70,128)
K5 R financial institutions
SR HMARIA Advances and other accounts 152,344 93,870 (1,423,578) (1,177,364)
SRS E Financial investments (49) = 1,039 990
Hih &= Other assets (162) 11 (5,647) (5,798)
B SR Financial guarantees 61,615 = = 61,615
BRRE Loan commitments 30,624 (18) = 30,606
RIBZEEF R (EE) Net reversal/(charge)
of impairment allowances 245,012 93,863 (1,498,954) (1,160,079)
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12. REXH 12. OPERATING EXPENSES
2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
AZER(BREESEH2) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
— R EMmE A — Salaries and other costs 1,640,892 1,694,620
— BRIREA — Pension cost 184,355 187,193
— R RIRER — Supplementary retirement benefits 4,910 5,240
1,830,157 1,887,053
FEMEHESZH (NEIEHTE)  Premises and equipment expenses (excluding depreciation)
— g REEEENE — leases of short-term or low-value assets 3,801 8,244
— &R — Information technology 63,071 90,834
— Hfth — Others 62,929 87,506
129,801 186,584
e Depreciation 519,134 495,555
IZEREM BN & Auditor’s remuneration
— BERHRTE — Audit services 10,349 10,335
— AT RS — Non-audit services 3,276 7,447
Hib & Other operating expenses
— ¥BINEE — Outsourcing activities fee 350,418 390,081
— Hfth — Others 341,476 405,509
3,184,611 3,382,564
13. REVEALAAERAEBZF 13. NET (LOSS)/GAIN FROM FAIR VALUE
(5 18) ks ADJUSTMENTS ON INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES
2020 2019
BEET T BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
REMEAAEARZF Net (loss)/gain from fair value adjustments
(E18) Wz on investment properties (2,950) 16,573
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14. HE ERfYE  BHRREZ 14.

NET (LOSS)/GAIN FROM DISPOSAL/

F(F8) = REVALUATION OF PROPERTIES, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT
2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEREZ FEE Net loss from disposal of premises - (608)
MERE - BERREE Net loss from disposal of equipment, fixtures and fittings (1,213) (1,411)
ZFEE
BHEEEZE(BR) WS Net (loss)/gain from revaluation of premises (6,686) 2,384
(7,899) 365
15. BB 15. TAXATION
gk A2 BIEAERKEAT Taxation in the income statement represents:
2020 2019
BT T EETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
NEAFRIE Current tax
BEBNED Hong Kong profits tax
— EREARIE — Current year taxation 449,802 453743
— FFREEEE — Qver-provision in prior years (19,497) (11,384)
430,305 442,359
I TR Overseas taxation
— FRFFATIEA — Current year taxation 221,747 88,283
— FERR(HBE) BE — Under/(over)-provision in prior years 4,043 (3,888)
656,095 526,754
RIEFRIE Deferred tax
TR ERR 2 EE R Origination and reversal of temporary differences
MAFRAFERR and unused tax credits (252,959) (1,357)
403,136 525,397

EB B RGBTz B A G [ (5 51 1B SR BioR FK B R
16.5% (20194F : 16.5%) Fe # o /B INE F 2 B ZUE
RBAF (LM RS AR AR B E EHAERK
ZIBATBERETHE o

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on
the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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15. BIE@®)
AEBBRBARFIECOBREIE  BREESHE
BRSEOBEZENT :

15. TAXATION (Cont'd)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation that differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong
Kong is as follows:

2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FREE R &= A Profit before taxation 4,218,406 4,476,693
%R 16.5% (20194 : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) 696,037 738,654
FTEATIA
EmERFEEENTE Effect of different taxation rates in other countries (21,723) 21,219
R ZWA Income not subject to taxation (190,507) (186,038)
s E R AI R 2 F s Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 10,215 44,453
RERTHEE Tax losses not recognised 2 1
FREFRERNTIEER Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses 9) 7)
T BRERE Over-provision in prior years (15,454) (15,272)
TEINELRRT Foreign withholding tax 1,323 (10)
XNFEIERT AR SR Adjustment in respect of distribution payment
for additional equity instruments (76,748) (77,603)
AT ARIE Taxation charge 403,136 525,397
BRI Effective tax rate 9.56% 11.74%
16. RRE 16. DIVIDENDS
2020 2019
K i & k)
il BET T ot BT T
Per share Total Per share Total
HKS$ HK$°000 HK$ HK$'000
(g Dividends - - - -

2020 FWWES RS (2019 4F : £) °

No dividend has been declared for the year ended 31 December 2020

(2019: Nil).
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17. EBRHEREBERRAK

(@) FEftsta
AEEGSTARER S THRTHRBIEE BE(R
S IEHI)EA R 2 B2 R (R8I R SRR LS 5 2878
S8 - RIERERKEE - EEAAREEKE
T EAERAREATS Y 5%  METZ S ALK
BEBEARBE5%E15% 7% (B TEE 2 RE
EH) - BEAENEN - IRATERKERBAILE
FRAS4E &% 10 4 S A_E S50 TURER 100% 2 (B 4
R RBMIFEIFMET BEMERMRILE
FIHA G BNRS ARIBRR SN + ATUHRER 30% FE90% 2 B
e o BEWIRMBEMER  BICRHEAEST
{5451 VRIS o

BEZ(RIBE S EHI )N 200012 A1 BB - NEE
N2 B RRBAE HoRTES T8 KT B2 ZEA B
FIRERIRBERBEEERAR  REEBEABTIR
SRR HEEESEARAT o

# Z=2020F 12 A31H + 7 0k %% % 560,000 7T
(20194F : #)76H 1,684,000 70) 2 8 W it 317% - B %
RN E| 2 BB L) 5B 46,822,000 7T (2019
F: #H)B%42,182,0007T) © MASEERBESFE
AR B4 A7 5 13,199,000 7T (20194 : 4975
#12,696,0007T) °

(b) RERZEFTE

AEERE T —BFFEESNAEMNEENE T
PIEERIRET - E4TEIT - BTEB ZENREHN
BREREZEE  BERMREMEKRER

At B E N R R KR IKE T 2 TRt an iR o @
s -

FUE MR A AEREZ & — HMBEEER 2020
F12A31 BATEPR R BN EMBEGETEE -

17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

(a) Defined contribution schemes

Defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO
schemes exempted under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-
Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme. Under the ORSO schemes,
employees make monthly contributions to the ORSO schemes equal
to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes monthly
contributions equal to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic
salaries, depending on years of service. The employees are entitled to
receive 100% of the employer’s contributions upon retirement, early
retirement or termination of employment after completing 10 years of
service. Employees with 3 to 9 years of service are entitled to receive
the employer’s contributions at a scale ranging from 30% to 90% upon
termination of employment for other reasons other than summary
dismissal. All employer’s contributions received by employee are subject
to MPF Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on
1 December 2000, the Group also participates in the BOC-Prudential
Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which the trustee is BOCI-Prudential
Trustee and the investment manager is BOCI-Prudential Manager.

The Group's total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for the year
ended 31 December 2020 amounting to approximately HK$46,822,000
(2019: approximately HK$42,182,000), after a deduction of forfeited
contributions of approximately HK$560,000 (2019: approximately
HK$1,684,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group contributed
approximately HK$13,199,000 (2019: approximately HK$12,696,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

(b) Defined benefit schemes

The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its retired
employees. Under the plan, the employees are entitled to retirement
benefits which included fully redeemed medical care, housing allowance
and other retirement benefits.

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk and the risk of changes in the
life expectancy for pensioners.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined
benefit obligations were carried out at 31 December 2020 by using the
projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.
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17. BIKRBRIEA @)
(b) REFZE (@)

ERREHRMERZ EERERRLOT ¢

17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Cont'd)
(b) Defined benefit schemes (Cont'd)

period are as follows:

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting

2020 2019

IRE (%) Discount rate (%) 1.3 1.8

T8 BB R B ST 1R R 3R (%) Expected rate of medical insurance cost increases (%) 6.0 6.0

TE BB AR R BN AS B 1L R R (%) Expected rate of social entertainment cost increases (%) 0.0 0.0

TEHRRIRAC S MBI IR K (%)  Expected rate of retirement souvenir cost increases (%) 0.0 0.0

TEHIE IR E (%) Expected rate of rental increases (%) 3.0 3.0

TE AR R (%) Expected rate of withdrawal (%) 3.0-18.0 3.0-18.0
TEARSE TR Expected death rate EBAQERR ABALLESD

Hong Kong Hong Kong

Life Tables 2019  Life Tables 2018

EARRENARY T ERERRZGUREDTAOT

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at the
end of the reporting period is shown below:

2020

REFREF REFZBEA

AiEZ gz

#m,/ (Rd) i/ GRd)

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)

Eb 212 10 in defined L RF D in defined

Increase benefit Decrease benefit

in rate obligations in rate obligations

% BET T % BT T

HK$'000 HK$’000

iR = Discount rate 0.1 (3,130) 0.1 3,450
TRH R R AT SR Expected rate of medical insurance cost 0.5 15,790 0.5 (13,720)

2019

FE A A FE N w4 A

EEZ EEZ

#m,/ Cid) #in,/ ()

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

[z S: i in defined L &g A in defined

Increase benefit Decrease benefit

in rate obligations in rate obligations

% BT % BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

B Discount rate 0.1 (2,660) 0.1 2,740
TE R B R B A S R X Expected rate of medical insurance cost 0.5 13,450 0.5 (11,690)
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17. ERBERRA @)

(b) RERZEE(E)

FRBBMEANT S RBERR T ERR s AR S BEY
HRTFSBRREZ

17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Cont'd)
(b) Defined benefit schemes (Cont'd)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method

that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligations as a result
of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the

reporting period.

TEfr e W R NTER AN E The total expenses recognised in the consolidated income statement in
KRBT ¢ respect of the plan is as follows:
2020 2019
BT T T IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
?ﬂ‘ﬁﬂ =&l Defined benefit schemes
& HRARAS A A — Current service cost 3,020 2,540
— BEMRBEALA — Past service cost
— FrElzRE — plan amendment (440) 120
— FFEEH — Net interest cost 2,330 2,580
Fbgun] Total expenses 4,910 5,240

EiRa2HBERABERABINERIT

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income in respect of the plan is as follows:

2020 2019
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
AEMz=ctE Defined benefit schemes

— RRBEEZHEENBERLR — Actuarial gains arising from changes in Assumptions - =
— KRR EERIEEERE — Actuarial losses arising from experience adjustments 21,720 15,760

REmBERERNFRE®A  Components of defined benefit costs recognised
FANER in comprehensive income 21,720 15,760
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17. SRIRERIBKA () 17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Cont'd)
(b) HRERIZEFEE) (b) Defined benefit schemes (Cont'd)
ARETEIRREZFHIT ¢ The movement in respect of the plan is as follows:
2020 2019
BT T T IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BAEE Benefit liability
®1A1H At 1 January 131,330 113,900
& HIRTE A A Current service cost 3,020 2,540
1B K RRIERC AR Past service cost
— FrEIE — plan amendment (440) 120
FHEEH Net interest cost 2,330 2,580
B TEREEE Actuarial losses on remeasurement 21,720 15,760
BRI R Benefit paid (3,800) (3,570)
Mm12A31H At 31 December 154,160 131,330
AAEMNZEFETEIERK 2B AT ¢ Expected payment to the defined benefit plan in future years are as
follows:
2020 2019
BT PR T IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R 12 @A AR Within the next 12 months 3,210 3,260
2FESF Between 2 and 5 years 14,380 14,200
6FE104F Between 6 and 10 years 19,920 19,690
10F LA E Over 10 years 271,740 255,380
TEARERISE Total expected payments 309,250 292,530
AEF BRI ABEEREHR 2 FHARE21F - The average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the end of

the reporting period is 21 years.
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18. EE  SEEBAEBRFEAE
[ [

() E=M<

REEREBRANRITESARNRITREENE AR

Rt 2 R7S 2 AT RE YR 2 B 5B T -

18. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
AND KEY PERSONNEL'S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the directors of the
Bank in respect of their services rendered for the Bank and managing

the subsidiaries within the Group during the year are as follows:

2020 2019

BT T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

e Fees 2,912 2,737
H A B < Other emoluments 11,754 11,124
14,666 13,861

(b) CGS5TEREBAERTEASNHH (b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key

Personnel under CG-5
EEEREN 2 CG-5 (BRENEFMFIEIES) - AF
BEAEBZSHRERBABREEAENFHFFBL

Pursuant to CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System issued
by the HKMA, details of the remuneration for Senior Management and

N Key Personnel of the Group during the year are as follows:
(i)  RERXETFHIE (i) Remuneration awarded during the year
2020
BRERAR TEAE
Senior Management Key Personnel
FEE B b FEL B o
Non-deferred Deferred Total  Non-deferred Deferred Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B HH Fived remuneration
Re Cash 27,101 - 27,101 30,649 - 30,649
L Qther forms 3,963 - 3,963 2,835 - 2,835
FEDHEN Variable remuneration
R Cash 10,483 5,972 16,455 13,714 3,996 17,710
41,547 5,972 47,519 47,198 3,996 51,194
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18. EE aEEEBABRITEAE 18. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S AND
M€ &) KEY PERSONNEL'S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)
(b) CGSTEREEAERFTEASNHMH (b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key
(5&) Personnel under CG-5 (Cont'd)
(i) REABRTFHFH &) (i)  Remuneration awarded during the year (Cont'd)
2019
BRERAE FEAB
Senior Management Key Personnel
FHEE B et FHEE B Bt
Non-deferred Deferred Total Non-deferred Deferred Total
BETT BT BETT YT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B EH Fived remuneration
Be Cash 24,965 = 24,965 21,742 = 21,742
Hfy Other forms 4,180 = 4,180 1,938 - 1938
2 Variable remuneration
R Cash 8,494 9,887 18,381 10,066 4,225 14,291
37,639 9,887 47526 33,746 4,225 37,971

A EHEEE1182 (201945  132)aREEBAER The remuneration above includes 11 (2019: 13) members of Senior
174 (20194 : 128 ) EE A8 © 220204 12 A 31 Management and 17 (2019: 12) members of Key Personnel. The list of

AR B & BIEgET -

members is as of 31 December 2020.

(i)  EAEFE (i)  Deferred remuneration
2020 2019
SHREEAS SREEAE
Senior FEAE Senior FEAE
Management Key Personnel Management  Key Personnel
BT T BT T BT BT
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i IS A Deferred remuneration
ERE Vested 8,172 3,691 6,625 2,544
B Unvested 17,343 8,086 19,543 7,781
25,515 11,777 26,168 10,325
®1A18 At 1 January 19,543 7,781 16,281 6,100
BT Awarded 5,972 3,996 9,887 4,225
[BAL Paid out (6,217) (3,194) (5,396) (1,989)
BER(FAEER Paid out for members not in this
EBZERIAR) category at the end of this year (1,955) (497) (1,229) (555)
®12A31H At 31 December 17,343 8,086 19,543 7,781
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18. EX SEEEAERITEAER 18. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S AND
< KEY PERSONNEL'S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)
(b) CGSTEREEAERFTEASNHMH (b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key
(&) Personnel under CG-5 (Cont'd)
(i) BEEZFHM (E) (i)  Deferred remuneration (Cont'd)
REFAR AT REERASREEAERFEAER For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel
TiRIE & B B R F NG E 85 )ER - mentioned in this section are defined according to the HKMA's

Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System.

- BREIEANE ESSEETENSAEEA = Senior Management: The senior executives directly managed by
B rBF4 aﬁﬁﬁkiéx%i‘k @?‘E%ﬂﬁ% the Board who are responsible for oversight of the firm-wide
=Y BIRE - MBeE  REkEE & strategy or material business lines, including Executive Director,
B AEE - ANEREE - %QW%&% Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives, Chief Financial
T2 ERABAEIE o Officer, Chief Risk Officer, Chief Information Officer, Chief

Human Resources Officer, Board Secretary and Head of Audit
Department.

= FEAE - AAFBEB T RERRERBRAE - = Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business
HEREZRFEATE  EABSHERE activities involve the assumption of material risk which may
BEHEE  EAFE  IHBIEEETLEN have significant impact on risk exposure, or whose individual
AB - BREFEBRENRESANELEE - £ responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
EMBRARE—BEARRRERE AR management, or those who have direct influence to the
ﬁ%%ﬁ‘ﬂﬁ!%@i ME AR E B e K profit, including heads of material business lines, heads of

- IS EpARARIR - ATRHRERAAKIE - EIE major subsidiaries, General Manager of Risk Management
Ai@*ﬁi@%ﬁ EHDNEREERANER Department, General Manager of Credit Management
s - Department, General Manager of Basel Management

Department, General Manager of Finance Department, General
Manager of Information Technology Department, General
Manager of Operation Management Department, General
Manager of Chief Executive’s Office as well as General Manager
of Human Resources Department.

é%i% HEIIEIRRMEBERBE  FHTES & As of the date of these issuance of consolidated financial statements,

BEBABREEAEBHZE2020F12 A31HIEFE the above compensation packages including performance based bonus
E’] BEMEAREE - ARBERERE R HE for executive directors, senior management and key personnel for the
PR S ENEE I AR AES SRk year ended 31 December 2020 has not been finalised. Management of
EEEATE - the Group believes that the difference between the final emoluments

and that disclosed above will not have significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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19. EEEE  EHRREHRBITEHR 19.

CASH, BALANCES AND PLACEMENTS

ft & BB VA R WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS
2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EFR e RTHERTT R H AL Cash and balances with banks and other
S RIEIERN S financial institutions
— EFER® - Cash 624,920 642,600
— FE RIRITR AR — Balances with central banks 17,678,912 20,596,585
— BERERTT R E M€ B — Balances with banks and other financial institutions
B A5 R 9,261,377 3,945,837
— FEIRTT R EM S RS — Placements with banks and other financial institutions
—{8 A REIE 2z EHITE R maturing within one month 30,685,326 16,213,179
58,250,535 41,398,201
TREZEM Impairment allowances (77.225) (70,940)
58,173,310 41,327,261
ERTREMERIEIE—S Placements with banks and other financial institutions
+ = 1@ A MEIH 2 FE BITF maturing between one and twelve months 556,111 10,456,999
BEZEE Impairment allowances (132) (652)
555,979 10,456,347
58,729,289 51,783,608
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19. BEREHE  EHRREREBETRE
fth& BB ISR ()

HEREEEZEITIT

19. CASH, BALANCES AND PLACEMENTS

WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL

INSTITUTIONS (Cont'd)

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances is,

as follows:
PR FEREER H=E st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BET T BET T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7R2020F1 A1 H At 1 January 2020 (824) - (70,768) (71,592)
il Addition (1,916) - - (1,916)
RIFERNER Derecognised or repaid
(EIEMEE) (excluding written off) 803 - - 803
BT g & Changes to model used
for impairment calculations (1,618) - - (1,618)
VERIEESE ol = Changes to inputs used
for impairment calculations 1,615 - - 1,615
b =R Exchange difference (37) - (4,612) (4,649)
7®2020F 12 A31H At 31 December 2020 (1,977) - (75,380) (77,357)
FE—FRER FEPEER FE=[EE wmaEt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
PR T ST IT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1201941418 At 1 January 2019 (2,518) - - 2,518)
N Addition (803) = = (803)
RIEERSERE Derecognised or repaid
(“EFEMEH) (excluding written off) 1,302 = = 1,302
BEEE =REER Transfers to Stage 3 142 = (142) =
HR A - BR 2 PR B B i Impact on period end ECLs
BT HIRTE AR R of exposures transferred
0f-7 between stages during the period - = (70,626) (70,626)
BESHAEE Changes to inputs used
for impairment calculations (1) - - (1)
E H Z=RE Exchange difference 1,054 = = 1,054
R20194 12 A31H At 31 December 2019 (824) - (70,768) (71,592)
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20. DAEBELHABRECZEMEE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Mandatorily measured at fair value

BHMNDA
ER{LAER

through profit or loss

Ratt FR At -

Trading Non trading Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
BETT BB BETT BT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RAREIE At fair value

E% Treasury bills 6,497,759 6,662,582 - - 6,497,759 6,662,582
Bl Equity securities - - - 83,050 - 83,050
Hify Others - - 16,415,554 7,908,715 16,415,554 7,908,715
6,497,759 6,662,582 16,415,554 7,991,765 22,913,313 14,654,347

12020 12 A31H @ )2BRTEAUAREBEELETA

B eREE (2019 ) °

AAERBFHABEZ SREER EHt 2 5810

As at 31 December 2020, there were no financial assets designated at

fair value through profit or loss (2019: Nil).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are analysed by place

T ¢ of listing as follows:
REIMELLA 7
=L -2 PN =F
Mandatorily measured at
fair value through
profit or loss
X5 FRH M
Trading Non trading
2020 2019 2020 2019
BT T BETT BT T BT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
B 5 Debt securities
— JELT — Unlisted 6,497,759 6,662,582 - -
&5 75 5 Equity securities
— REBEABLAINET — Listed outside Hong Kong - = - 83,050
HAt Others
— JELET — Unlisted - - 16,415,554 7,908,715
6,497,759 6,662,582 16,415,554 7,991,765
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20. AARERMLITAERZERMEE

(&)
ARERCH ARG eREERETHRIBEZ 2B
™

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Cont'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are analysed by type
of issuer as follows:

BREIMELAR S
BT ABE
Mandatorily measured at
fair value through
profit or loss

5% FERF M

Trading Non trading
2020 2019 2020 2019
BT T BT BT T ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
BLERE Sovereigns 6,497,759 6,662,582 - =
SRIT M E Ath & miik IS Banks and other financial institutions - - 16,415,554 7,908,715
NI Corporate entities - = - 83,050
6,497,759 6,662,582 16,415,554 7,991,765

21. TSR T ERYPEE

SEFTZTIER  FMEXEREREENTESRMTA
BRFEERERER A

B EPRENARRE — B R E S EINE A G o

g% MR EBREAREXBTRRSRKE M
HEGE - BHINBREXBARER - ME (WEE
MEREZHN X)X ESE (WRSEH) FA LRI
Be (MRXEBNEEH) - RREEEIEHSH

N RERGBHERIEARE

SNERRIE I ENE T (L&) RE (AN 2
HERRE R E R HZRR - ERHARNENE
REE(REE) REL (ROEHE) —EHENT
B T AR (M IFAGR) B — i - & RBEISMNER
B BENESEBETRR-ENTEE - ARE
HIENREBHF HESIMBREEK °

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING

The Group enters into the following exchange rate, interest rate and
commodity related derivative financial instrument contracts for trading
and risk management purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign
currency on a future date.

Currency, interest rate and precious metal swaps are commitments
to exchange one set of cash flows or commodity for another. Swaps
result in an exchange of currencies, interest rates (for example, fixed
rate for floating rate), or precious metals (for example, gold swaps) or
a combination of all these (for example, cross-currency interest rate
swaps). Except for certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of
principal takes place.

Foreign currency options are contractual agreements under which
the seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right, but not
the obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at
or by a set date or during a set period, a specific amount of the
financial instrument at a predetermined price. In consideration for the
assumption of foreign exchange risk, the seller receives a premium from
the purchaser. Options are negotiated over-the-counter between the
Group and its counterparty.
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21. PTAESmIAER¥YYE:w

AR ITESRMIASH AEEEREDAERN
FIRTR - SRR ESMTANAL BEHEERT
REEABRARTHZRZE  METEHMIAZ
AR/ BEBEARE T —(EREERBRAMER
MAREEEXBENHLER - B2 EX TR
PSR ARRMBSRAERNAARE - EfETE
REASBEAEBRNESRBRETISER  BEEET
AT ASHGTEENER TEHERESE
EBRERNKE  ITESBTANGEREEELET
(BE)SAHM(BBE)NPE  SLPEARETRBR
RBABAHKE -

(a) PTEEWMIA
AEFBETHIMTEERMR SN T EENERREP
1% - KREERXP MRAEMSRMHNITEERR ST
FEREENASEZHARAREERRIAE -

PTEEMMERRERRTRON AR - RAER
HWEZERBE LHANITEERS ATETRS ° B
PTAEE MR 5 2 A ) B f i B R BUE AR IRz -
W HFTRZOREHIR - BRITEEMRZ H WAL
RIEERN RS ETEE  mH8IE  mERE

o
7T
TI ©

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial
instruments held by the Group are set out in the following tables. The
contract/notional amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding at the balance sheet dates and certain of them
provide a basis for comparison with fair value instruments recognised
on the balance sheet. However, they do not necessarily indicate the
amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair values of
the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure
to credit or market risks. The derivative financial instruments become
favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations
in foreign exchange rates, market interest rates or metal prices
relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial
instruments can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

(a) Derivative financial instruments

The Group trades OTC derivative products mainly for customer business.
The Group strictly follows risk management policies and requirement
in providing derivative products to our customers and in trading of
derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking
book. A derivative instrument must be included in the approved product
list before any transactions for that instrument can be made. There are
limits to control the notional amount of exposure arising from derivative
transactions, and the maximum tenor of the deal is set. Every derivative
transaction must be input into the relevant system for settlement, mark-
to-market revaluation, reporting and control.
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21. PTAESmIAER¥YYE:w

(@) fTE2BIAE)
TREFAREISTESRTEANI12 AN BZAL,/ %

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(a) Derivative financial instruments (Cont'd)

The following tables summarise the contract/notional amounts of each

FHE class of derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:
2020
FREERA
g EE
Not qualified
EE BB E for hedge st
Trading Hedging accounting Total
BET T BEET T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
[ERALY Exchange rate contracts
BIHEA N = AR Spot and forwards 10,760,031 - - 10,760,031
1= B8 Swaps 56,549,856 - - 56,549,856
HINE R 5 B Foreign currency options
— B A — Options purchased 2,499,871 - - 2,499,871
— B — Options written 2,499,871 - - 2,499,871
72,309,629 - - 72,309,629
MEEL Interest rate contracts
= H Swaps 84,751,010 7,060,413 - 91,811,423
Ema s Commodity contracts 219,806 - - 219,806
157,280,445 7,060,413 - 164,340,858
2019
TEEERA
$heshA
Not qualified
BE [ B 3 e for hedge 5t
Trading Hedging accounting Total
BT T BT T BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RS Exchange rate contracts
BNEA R i 2R Spot and forwards 11,329,574 = = 11,329,574
2 B Swaps 36,650,129 = = 36,650,129
AN ZZ 5 FR e Foreign currency options
— BEAHRE - Options purchased 387,576 - - 387,576
— B AR — Options written 387,576 = = 387,576
48,754,855 - - 48,754,855
FIZEEH) Interest rate contracts
= 5 Swaps 58,101,554 5,886,578 = 63,988,132
Ema & Commodity contracts 1,159,194 = = 1,159,194
108,015,603 5,886,578 - 113,902,181

192




RAFS IR AR MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

21. TSR T AR PE(

(a) FTEEMIAE)

THEFALE e

PTETEEHA -

TRBESEITESR TR

A I REBEGRITE (BE)RAD
B BBEURBEITARALE RS
BEUARABERKNGRAERNSRTAE—HE f@g’j

BB - B8R

W12 A3 BZARE

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(a) Derivative financial instruments (Cont'd)

Not qualified for hedge accounting: derivative contracts which do
not qualify as hedges for accounting purposes but are managed in
conjunction with the financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss are separately disclosed in compliance with the
requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.

The following tables summarise the fair values of each class of derivative
financial instrument as at 31 December:

2020
MEEE MESE
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
THERA THARR
Hhgit Hineitit
Not qualified Not qualified
EE -ty for hedge @t EE ey for hedge @t
Trading Hedging  accounting Total Trading Hedging  accounting Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EZ54 Exchange rate contracts
DERGE Spot and forwards 350,164 - - 350,164 (225,290) - - (225,290)
i Swaps 404,544 - - 404,544 (1,002,025) - - (1,002,025)
HNER 5 Foreign currency options
- EAHiE - Options purchased 104,597 - - 104,597 (17,786) - - (17,786)
- B - Options written 192 - - 192 (87,146) - - (87,146)
859,497 - - 859,497 (1,33.247) - - (1332247
= 0EE Interest rate contracts Swaps 170,885 - - 170,885 (184,707) (362,268) - (546,975)
Bmal) Commodity contracts 681 - - 681 (3731 - - 3731)
1,031,063 - - 1,031,063 (1,520,685) (362,268) - (1,882,953)
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21. PTHEES@MTITAEREHPEE(

(a) PTEEWMIAE)

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(a) Derivative financial instruments (Cont'd)

MEEE MrERE
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
MiagA MrafA
et Hirestk
Not qualified Not qualified
g% ekl for hedge @it EE ElcEa for hedge @
Trading Hedging accounting Total Trading Hedging accounting Total
BT BRI BRI BRI BT BBTT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EZ5H) Exchange rate contracts
PERAE Spot and forwards 358,527 - - 358,527 (169.442) - - (169.442)
&5 Swaps 77474 - - 71474 (240,102) - - (240,102)
G Foreign currency options
- B\ - Options purchased 4,104 - - 4,104 (87) - - 87)
EidE - Options written 2,696 - - 2,69 (6,715) - - (6,715)
442,801 - - 442 801 (416,346) - - (416,346)
eSS Interest rate contracts Swaps 41,188 10,183 - 51,371 (41,540) (126,366) = (167,906)
Bnah Commodity contracts 95,444 - - 95,444 (331) - - (331)
579,433 10,183 - 589,616 (461,197) (126,366) - (587,563)
TRINETEEMT A EERBINESRE - WK The table below gives the credit risk-weighted amounts of the derivative

EREARFTRLERZ B RBMRNERIE T MRS

financial instruments and is prepared with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of capital adequacy ratio.

2020 2019
BT T BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
MERES4) Exchange rate contracts

B Forwards 130,271 218,327
2 A Swaps 285,633 195,473

SN R 5 B i Foreign currency options
— B AHA#E — Options purchased 105,236 8,163
521,140 421,963
MZEE K= 5 Interest rate contracts Swaps 151,110 24,529
Ema Commodity contracts - 7,884
672,250 454,376
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21. PTESRMTI BRI ( 21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)
(a) TTESRT A (E) (a) Derivative financial instruments (Cont'd)
= BRI ESREERITTE (BR) RADTE The credit risk-weighted amounts are calculated in accordance with the
&t%ﬁ(%ﬁiﬂl&ﬁ’t\x%ﬂiz|ﬁﬁ&%’£ﬁé\@2ﬂﬂﬁﬁ% Banking (Capital) Rules. The amounts are dependent upon the status
M o of the counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of
contract.
REBERERERFELERZBEBAOTERS The total fair values of derivatives subject to valid bilateral netting

A Jt B 48 58 A 75 15 376,298,000 70 (2019 F 7 ¥ agreements for the Group amounted to HK$376,298,000 (2019:
292,678,0007T) * A E R FHELEERZNARES HK$292,678,000) and the effect of valid bilateral netting agreements

#192,426,000 7T (20194 &% 116,171,0007T) ° amounted to HK$192,426,000 (2019: HK$116,171,000).
(b) Hhest (b) Hedge accounting
AV/=E P Fair value hedges
BT B AR B & 4 B 5 A R 5| B £ &l The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge against change in fair
BEAREZE - value of financial assets arising from movements in market interest
rates.
TR T R 20204F 12 A 31 HAFIBRA LOEIHR S The table below summarises the contract/notional amounts of the
TZERTARAER, B hedging instruments as at 31 December 2020 by remaining contractual
maturity.
2020
AR -2z ZEt=f88 -E5f BENE
Upto 1t03 3t0 12 1to5 Over o
1 month months months years 5years Total
BETT BETTL BT BETT BET BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ME =8 Interest rate swaps - - 863,794 6,018,333 178,286 7,060,413
2019
—fEAR —2=flf =Et=féA —EhE RENE
Upto 1103 3t012 1105 Over &t
1 month months months years 5 years Total
BB BETT BB BB BETT BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
kst Interest rate swaps - - - 5,425,887 460,691 5,886,578
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21. PTESRMIAR¥EHEE @ 21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)
(b) ¥HEF(H) (b) Hedge accounting (Cont'd)
RIEEF () Fair value hedges (Cont'd)
REREHATAEZIEASENAT - The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments are as
follows:
2020
FA AR R
i3 iy god
DRE DAERE
Fair values Change in
&8/ fair value
BEREE used for
Contract/ recognising
notional BE =i hedge
amounts Assets Liabilities ineffectiveness
BET T BETT BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
PTESRMTIA Derivative financial instruments
7532 2 Interest rate swaps 7,060,413 - 362,268 -
2019
FAATRER S
BHEHSZ
“ifE DREE
Fair values Change in
a8/ fair value
REETE used for
Contract/ recognising
notional BE af& hedge
amounts Assets Liabilities  ineffectiveness
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TESBMIA Derivative financial instruments
)5t B Interest rate swaps 5,886,578 10,183 (126,366) =
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21. fTHESmMIAREHEFF @ 21.

(b) EHEF ()

RAEHM (&)

WEHIRE ZEBE ST

HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)
(b) Hedge accounting (Cont'd)

Fair value hedges (Cont'd)

The amounts relating to hedged items are as follows:

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND

2020

sTABREEMN

AFEEHH
WA AR
Accumulated R I
amount of fair ZEEZEH
value hedge Change in
adjustment  value used for
BREE included in the recognising
Carrying carrying hedge
amounts amounts ineffectiveness
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

SRR E Financial investments
BESES RERF Debt securities and certificates of deposit 7,497,077 307,522 -
2019

T ABREER

NFEE
ARG FA DATERR
Accumulated SRS 7
amount of fair 2 EEZE
value hedge Change in
adjustment value used for
BRE{E  included in the recognising
Carrying carrying hedge
amounts amounts ineffectiveness
BT BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EERE Financial investments

BI5 7 5 RIFE Debt securities and certificates of deposit 6,102,166 106,946 =
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21. PTAESmIAER¥YYE:w

(b) HWEF )
RAEHM (&)
AL BB AT

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(b) Hedge accounting (Cont'd)

Fair value hedges (Cont'd)

Hedge ineffectiveness recognised is as follows:

2020 2019
BETT BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000

FR G MW Net trading gain

(0 EXERRKE
EEHEERBREZSBARAEENKL UTE
BRERB 2% AREIEEFEHEHRELTEH
FEHFE o RIRITHOL)NEEREEN KN ERFT -
W AEAMKRAEREEER - SEBECDRAEEY
BRELAF N - BAFHERE 39 FMBBI 5
WELEQFE 75 (RIEFT) R ERERL - £4
SEE RS ENENEE SRR - AEEATRR
MERBIRAMEENRF - BEET -

AEENESTEAEEZRERA T SRR LN EEER
BRI K+ RITMBERITRZFBMAE  BRFRRER
Sh - BEEMISEMNBERIEE - REBEE@ERINE
FB - LA B2 2R 2 AT B T e L At EEHiE Rl g

HEFEREEAREERSERR - ZEE LES
PIERAER o BLEREEETRN A TER

. ERYURTARETERAGARENENS
MRESMNTSR HHFRTHITEEDH?
RER

. REEN XN EEHMBRIMBE TS - 2
AEERERPHROT R

. AREZE R K S BB ) R D M E R R A K
RZnE It A NI BRMELTISE SR
T RHYE B AR

(c) Interest rate benchmark reform

Following the decision by global regulators to phase out the existing
interest rate benchmarks and replace them with risk-free rates (“RFRs”),
the Group is evaluating the impact on its existing hedge relationships.
The Bank forms a team to manage the Interest rate benchmark reform
process and reports to Chief Risk Officer twice a month. The Group has
adopted the temporary reliefs provided by the amendments to HKFRS
9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 which enable the hedge accounting of the
Group to continue during the period of uncertainty, which is before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with an RFR.

The Group’s hedge accounting relationships are exposed to the
following significant interest rate benchmarks subject to cessation: US
dollar LIBOR. In addition to interest rate risk, the Group is also exposed
to foreign exchange risk and potentially in the future, additional basis
risk as market conventions develop and evolve.

IBOR reform exposes the Group to various risks, which the project is
managing and monitoring closely. These risks include but are not limited
to the following:

o Conduct risk arising from discussions with clients and market
counterparties due to the amendments required to existing
contracts necessary to effect IBOR reform

o Financial risk to the Group and its clients that markets are
disrupted due to IBOR reform giving rise to financial losses

o Pricing risk from the potential lack of market information if
liquidity in IBORs reduces and RFRs are illiquid and unobservable
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21. PTHEES@MTITAEREHPEE(

(0 EEIRHREHE)
. IEE&ZE@E’Jﬁ%‘lﬂ&%%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂimi
» AR AN R RIS BRI M 3| B
B ?ﬁ‘:F‘ BT R 2 B

. IAREB PRI AR SR TABE
AERBAEMERNIFRRIEBRAR KB
K&t

e AR RBER RN ETIE B ERE
BEBERTIASHIEE - EREEXHALRIEE
SR IR B R - ANEBEEL AIE - AEESTE
SRR AR HETE M - T A A (] (= LEBR PR T B ik
NG o HIE2020F 12 A31 8 » AEERAETHEEE
MAGE - ALEREREERRAEEME2RE
EETHE BB EEER AR ©

HHEHMAETEENMNEXTETANEGL EES
BRRAEBEEERTEENENEZ BN LR
R ENRBAEDT

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(c) Interest rate benchmark reform (Cont'd)

o Operational risk arising from changes to the Group’s IT systems
and processes, also the risk of payments being disrupted if an
IBOR ceases to be available

o Accounting risk if the Group’s hedging relationships fail and
from unrepresentative income statement volatility as financial
instruments transition to RFRs

The hedged items that are affected by the adoption of the temporary
relief in hedge accounting relationships are presented in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as financial investments. When identifying
the hedged items that are affected by the adoption of the temporary
relief, judgement has been exercised by the Group in determining
when uncertainty is expected to be resolved and therefore when the
temporary relief will cease to apply. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
believed that the uncertainty continued to exist and so the temporary
exceptions apply to all of the Group’s hedge accounting relationships
that reference benchmarks subject to reform or replacement.

The contract/notional amounts of interest rate derivatives designated
in hedge accounting relationships represent the extent of the risk
exposure managed by the Group that is directly affected by interest
rate benchmarks reform and impacted by the temporary relief, which is
presented as below:

2020
&/
EREE
Contract/
notional
amounts
BT T
HK$’ 000

>

A=k 2 i

Fair value hedges

6,620,413
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22. EXRKRHEMERE 22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2020 2019

BEET T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BAER Personal loans and advances 57,858,670 52,313,862
UNEII=E-N Corporate loans and advances 221,863,901 210,789,370
BPEXK Advances to customers 279,722,571 263,103,232
REZEE Impairment allowances (3,027,800) (2,707,693)
276,694,771 260,395,539

e S Trade bills 390,401 2,017,812
A Impairment allowances (39) 171)
390,362 2,017,641

SRIT R EHM S pEEE R Advances to banks and other financial institutions 102,121 95,873
TREZEME Impairment allowances (102,121) (95,873)
277,085,133 262,413,180

R2020F 12 31 H » REEXRBIEEFIEBE As at 31 December 2020, advances to customers included accrued

792,508,000 7T (2019 £F - ##601,512,0007T) ° interest of HK$792,508,000 (2019: HK$601,512,000).




RAFS IR AR MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

22. ERREMERIE(®)

REUBE AT 2 B R R EAMARIRIZ A RS &R

REBAHTMT :

22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Cont'd)

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are

analysed by internal credit grade and stage classification as follows:

2020
E—PEER FRE E=REE st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFER Advances to customers
B Pass 273,673,886 1,244,428 - 274,918,314
TEME Special mention 682,851 1,728,624 195 2,411,670
IRERKIAT Substandard or below - - 2,392,587 2,392,587
274,356,737 2,973,052 2,392,782 279,722,571
BEZEE Trade bills
B Pass 390,401 - - 390,401
BITRHEMESRBEER Advances to banks
and other financial
institutions
IRBBAT Substandard or below - - 102,121 102,121
et Total 274,747,138 2,973,052 2,494,903 280,215,093
2019
FE—FEER B PR FE=PEER HaT
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
T T BT EET T FEEET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFER Advances to customers
B Pass 256,847,146 1,951,031 = 258,798,177
REET Special mention 1,523,877 1,011,597 14,202 2,549,676
IRBBAT Substandard or below - - 1,755,379 1,755,379
258,371,023 2,962,628 1,769,581 263,103,232
BLEE Trade bills
1% Pass 2,017,812 - = 2,017,812
BORHEMESREEER Advances to banks
and other financial
institutions
IR AT Substandard or below - - 95,873 95,873
4t Total 260,388,835 2,962,628 1,865,454 265,216,917
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22. ERREMERIE(®)
IERREEE Y B AT -

22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Cont'd)

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances is,

as follows:
F—TER BER FE=E @t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2020F1A1H At 1 January 2020 (1,314,079) (78,152) (1,411,506) (2,803,737)
& Addition (715,225) - - (715,225)
#ITERSER (T BEHNH) Derecognised or repaid
(excluding written off) 694,888 37,138 360,549 1,092,575
HEE—[RE Transfers to Stage 1 (24,163) 23,945 218 -
BEE R Transfers to Stage 2 7,083 (171,363) 164,280 -
BRECRR Transfers to Stage 3 24,676 355 (25,031) -
HIN ST B 2 PR R b R A Impact on period end ECLs
HEARERBRANYE of exposures transferred
between stages during
the period 22,438 84,080 (1,687,919) (1,581,401)
TR EERR R Unwind of discount
on impairment allowances - - 3,179 3,179
YRR =) Changes to model used
for impairment calculations 34,206 2,234 - 36,440
RE2HMEE Changes to inputs used
for impairment calculations 76,808 10,223 (189,141) (102,110)
Yo B 2 i SEBR T8 Recoveries - - (64,217) (64,217)
MisE 2 E% Loans written off - - 1,139,525 1,139,525
BE A% Exchange difference (35,044) (5,425) (94,520) (134,989)
12020512 A31H At 31 December 2020 (1,228,412) (96,965) (1,804,583) (3,129,960)
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22. ERREMERIE(®)

22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Cont'd)

FTRE FRE El = et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT AT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R20194F 1818 At 1 January 2019 (1,465,698) (175,629) (1,256,272) (2,897,599)
il Addition (570,059) - (95,873) (665,932)
R FRER Sk B (TR M) Derecognised or repaid
(excluding written off) 384,436 149,053 230,641 764,130
BEZ R Transfers to Stage 1 (71,636) 1,918 69,718 -
BEERE Transfers to Stage 2 8,157 (8,157) = =
EEE =R Transfers to Stage 3 7,078 81,267 (88,345) =
HANE R ER 2 R R R R i Impact on period end ECLs
HERBRBEANYE of exposures transferred
between stages during
the period 67,588 (138,779) (1,384,861) (1,456,052)
IR BB Unwind of discount
on impairment allowances - - 1,351 1,351
RE2HMEE Changes to inputs used
for impairment calculations 326,780 8,568 (154,858) 180,490
Yol E M $HER IR Recoveries - - (41,282) (41,282)
MsH 2 &3 Loans written off - - 1,270,702 1,270,702
EHEH Exchange difference (725) 3,607 37,573 40,455
R2019F 12 A31H At 31 December 2019 (1,314,079) (78,152) (1,411,506) (2,803,737)
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23. SRKRE 23. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
2020
DA RER{LET
AH M2k
At fair value VR 13
through other RAEtE
comprehensive At amortised et
income cost Total
BT T BEET T BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
% Treasury bills 46,278,659 - 46,278,659
H i ([Ei5E5 Other debt securities 74,156,150 1,768,341 75,924,491
120,434,809 1,768,341 122,203,150
TR H Certificates of deposit 9,621,228 116,794 9,738,022
BESES TR ERE Total debt securities and certificates
of deposit 130,056,037 1,885,135 131,941,172
REZERE Impairment allowances - (147) (147)
130,056,037 1,884,988 131,941,025
EAth Others - 961,397 961,397
B Impairment allowances - (67,290) (67,290)
- 894,107 894,107
B ESH Equity securities 54,109 - 54,109
130,110,146 2,779,095 132,889,241
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23. £ERE @

23. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)

2019
AR BEEET
AE A2 mE ke
At fair value DA% £
through other BXANERT 2
comprehensive At amortised #aEt
income cost Total
BT T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Treasury bills 60,871,298 579,912 61,451,210
HEBES Other debt securities 60,237,601 1,826,661 62,064,262
121,108,899 2,406,573 123,515,472
TFREE Certificates of deposit 21,753,091 156,470 21,909,561
BIEE AR T RE RS Total debt securities and certificates
of deposit 142,861,990 2,563,043 145,425,033
B Impairment allowances = (479) (479)
142,861,990 2,562,564 145,424,554
HAth Others - 1,356,265 1,356,265
BEZEE Impairment allowances = (53,045) (53,045)
- 1,303,220 1,303,220
& 10 FH Equity securities 31,163 = 31,163
142,893,153 3,865,784 146,758,937
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23. ERIRE ) 23.
HBIAA £ R E AR 2 E RS S RIR AR
EEET B AT -

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances of
financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

is, as follows:
124 FoRR E=RER Bt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2020F1 A 1R At 1 January 2020 (43,920) - (181,868) (225,788)
12 Addition (35,876) - - (35,876)
R iR S ER (TR FEHEH) Derecognised or repaid
(excluding written off) 18,187 - - 18,187
R R E) Changes to model used
for impairment calculations 7,045 - - 7,045
E2HMEE Changes to inputs used
for impairment calculations (3,638) - 844 (2,794)
B 5 Z5E Exchange difference (705) - - (705)
M 2020128318 At 31 December 2020 (58,907) - (181,024) (239,931)
FMER FREER E=REER st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT AT RBETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2019F1A1H At 1 January 2019 (31,931) = (182,907) (214,838)
Zm Addition (28,817) - - (28,817)
BIEERKER (T BRIEMEH) Derecognised or repaid
(excluding written off) 14,000 - - 14,000
RE2HMEE Changes to inputs used
for impairment calculations 2,699 - 1,039 3,738
EHZH Exchange difference 129 = = 129
R 201912 A31H At 31 December 2019 (43,920) = (181,868) (225,788)
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23. £ERE @

HRE AR A Bt E 2 S RIRE HREER 2 B

23.

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances of

DITEAT financial investments at amortised cost is, as follows:
F—TER BER E=BEER @zt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2020F1A1H At 1 January 2020 (53,524) - - (53,524)
R iRk B (e IEsY) Derecognised or repaid
(excluding written off) 89 - - 89
HEE R Transfers to Stage 2 13,609 (13,609) - -
N E RS ER 2 B R R s Impact on period end ECLs
HERBHRBEANTE of exposures transferred
between stages during
the period - (42,213) - (42,213)
REEE R Changes to model used
for impairment calculations 346 500 - 846
E2HMEE Changes to inputs used
for impairment calculations 29,861 - - 29,861
BEHER Exchange difference (2,496) - - (2,496)
12020512 A31H At 31 December 2020 (12,115) (55,322) - (67,437)
F—FRE EFRE F=RRE FCE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2019F1A1H At 1 January 2019 (65,765) - - (65,765)
2 R Sk B R (TR AEHEH) Derecognised or repaid
(excluding written off) 43,218 - - 43,218
RE2HMES Changes to inputs used
for impairment calculations (31,149) - - (31,149)
B 5 =5 Exchange difference 172 - - 172
R2019F 12 A31H At 31 December 2019 (53,524) - - (53,524)
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23. ERIRE )
SRISAR FH Y HEEMT -

23. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial investments is analysed by place of listing as follows:

2020
A RER{EE
AH b2 E K
At fair value V8 323
through other RAfEtE
comprehensive At
income amortised cost
BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$°000
BEHEHRITRE Debt securities and certificates of deposit
— REB LT — Listed in Hong Kong 13,911,436 565,492
— REBEBLASN ET — Listed outside Hong Kong 9,501,322 1,202,716
23,412,758 1,768,208
— 3k — Unlisted 106,643,279 116,780
130,056,037 1,884,988
Hith Others
— kM — Unlisted - 894,107
&0 7% % Equity securities
— 3Lt — Unlisted 54,109 _
feEt Total 130,110,146 2,779,095
HAEREEZ FH#ESTE  Market value of listed securities at amortised cost 1,780,157
2019
AR & Et
AEAM 2
At fair value DA% a4
through other BRANERT 2
comprehensive At
income amortised cost
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B ES RFHE Debt securities and certificates of deposit
— RBEBLT — Listed in Hong Kong 10,535,687 564,909
— RBEABLUIN TR — Listed outside Hong Kong 9,027,000 1,261,376
19,562,687 1,826,285
— 3L — Unlisted 123,299,303 736,279
142,861,990 2,562,564
HAth Others
— 3k — Unlisted = 1,303,220
& 10 F%H Equity securities
— JEEm — Unlisted 31,163 =
HEt Total 142,893,153 3,865,784
BFEZREEB 2z FESmE Market value of listed securities at amortised cost 1,837,033
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23.

EWMBE (2
SR RTITIIE Y HEWT -

23. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial investments is analysed by type of issuer as follows:

2020

AR ER{EE

ARt 2 E RS
At fair value V8: 103
through other RAERT &
comprehensive At
income amortised cost
BET T BET T
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEhERE Sovereigns 46,358,898 -
NEERL Public sector entities 2,631,574 -
HRIT R EAth & mh A Banks and other financial institutions 53,643,974 2,779,095
YNGIM=ES Corporate entities 27,475,700 -
130,110,146 2,779,095

2019

AR B E

AEAM 2 E S
At fair value LABE 2
through other BASERT 2
comprehensive At
income amortised cost
PRSI IT PRI IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEhER Sovereigns 60,949,904 579,838

NEERL Public sector entities 2,461,881
HRIT SR EAth & mh A Banks and other financial institutions 57,697,920 3,285,946
YNCIM=ES Corporate entities 21,783,448 -
142,893,153 3,865,784

M 202012 A318 - E%Mfﬁ/‘%(é%)%ﬁﬁum
DEARAUREEMAUARAR
HH LRI E BB 2,631,574,0007T (20194 : 5

#2.461,881,0007T) °

‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ B L5 AH 2 F

(Capital) Rules (2019: HK$2,461,881,000).

As at 31 December 2020, included financial investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income of HK$2,631,574,000 which
are eligible to be classified as public sector entities under the Banking
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24. REWF 24. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2020 2019
BT T BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
®W1A1H At 1 January 355,230 331,942
ARE(ER), W Fair value (losses)/gains (2,950) 16,573

%ﬁﬁ*ﬁiﬁé =)/ BWE - Reclassification (to)/from properties,

B3 R At (P 5E25) plant and equipment (Note 25) (11,200) 6,715
K12A31H At 31 December 341,080 355,230

REYF 2 REEREORIGHR O T

The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the
remaining terms of the leases as follows:

2020 2019
BT T PR IT
HK$'000 HK$'000

EBEBFA Held in Hong Kong
RHIFR A (BB 50 4) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 177,240 170,650
FREAFA A (10 E= 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 163,840 184,580
341,080 355,230

R2020F12 A31H » 3K ﬁ%ﬁ@%WZ&éw
¥ DERBE DR M A RE T AR A
mm¢uﬂmauﬂﬁﬁﬁgﬁ%1ﬁzﬁﬁﬁ
B AAEBEEATEE AEEERFRRAERL TR
Mis2EENES —BREVFEERSHER -

As at 31 December 2020, investment properties were included in the
balance sheet at valuation carried out at 31 December 2020 on the
basis of their fair value by an independent firm of chartered surveyors,
Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the price that
would be received to sell each investment property in an orderly
transaction with market participants at the measurement date.
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25. Y% B|/MRZE 25. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
=B BE
iRk EE
Equipment, ERAEEE
BE fixtures and Right-of-use e
Premises fittings assets Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2020F1A1BZ Net book value at
BREVFE 1 January 2020 7,481,553 528,117 592,366 8,602,036
HE Additions 12,706 132,272 87,524 232,502
H & Disposals - (1,533) - (1,533)
=1l Revaluation (190,714) - - (190,714)
FEFNE Depreciation for the year  (142,280) (127,333) (249,521) (519,134)
LEYN Transfer in 11,200 - - 11,200
bE X ER Exchange difference 47,625 21,608 17,148 86,381
MR 2020F 12 A31HZ Net book value at
BREFE 31 December 2020 7,220,090 553,131 447,517 8,220,738
202012 31 H At 31 December 2020
BB E Cost or valuation 7,220,090 1,408,640 876,588 9,505,318
REHTE Accumulated depreciation - (855,509) (429,071) (1,284,580)
MR 2020F12 A31HZ Net book value at
BREFE 31 December 2020 7,220,090 553,131 447,517 8,220,738
L& E 2 KA ES N E The analysis of cost or
DR : valuation of the above
assets is as follows:
M2020%12 A31H At 31 December 2020
BRANE At cost - 1,408,640 876,588 2,285,228
ZihE At valuation 7,220,090 - - 7,220,090
7,220,090 1,408,640 876,588 9,505,318
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25. Y% - M RERE®

25. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Cont'd)
BNE L
Equipment, EREEE
BE fixtures and Right-of-use “ast
Premises fittings assets Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M2019F1A18HZ Net book value at
REFE 1 January 2019
S H%I8R 2 BREFE Net book value as
previously reported 7,420,921 387,670 - 7,808,591
KABEBYFmELER Effect of adoption of
F 16T E HKFRS 16 = = 599,748 599,748
VIR eR R Balance after opening
adjustments 7,420,921 387,670 599,748 8,408,339
HE Additions 74,822 240,189 265,073 580,084
HE RIEHER Disposals/Derecognition (2,082) (1,718) (751) (4,551)
Eih Revaluation 142,131 = = 142,131
FERE Depreciation for the year (136,084) (93,384) (266,087) (495,555)
[t Transfer out (6,715) = = (6,715)
M X ERE Exchange difference (11,440) (4,640) (5,617) (21,697)
M2019F 12 83182 Net book value at
REVFE 31 December 2019 7,481,553 528,117 592,366 8,602,036
2019412 A31H At 31 December 2019
A ANE Sk (A {E Cost or valuation 7,481,553 1,273,551 843,660 9,598,764
ZEHTE Accumulated depreciation = (745,434) (251,294) (996,728)
M2019F 12 B31B 2 Net book value at
BREFE 31 December 2019 7,481,553 528,117 592,366 8,602,036
B E 7 RANMES A The analysis of cost or
DT : valuation of the above
assets is as follows:
2019412 A31H At 31 December 2019
BB At cost = 1,273,551 843,660 2,117,211
EHE At valuation 7,481,553 - - 7,481,553
7,481,553 1,273,551 843,660 9,598,764
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25. Y% - M RERE®

FEZEHERBORNBARSMTAOT

25. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont'd)

The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms
of the leases as follows:

2020 2019
BT T BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBEEEE Held in Hong Kong

REAFA L) GEBIB 50 4F) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 4,346,583 4,572,188
FREAFHA) (10 F 2= 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 2,097,590 2,161,352

EBEBAINFE Held outside Hong Kong
FREAFA A (10 E= 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 738,542 713,786
RHIRA (DR 10F) On short-term lease (less than 10 years) 37,375 34,227
7,220,090 7,481,553

M20205F12 A31 8 ' JIREEEBERAZEE ' 1)
1 B 98 37 5 OB = Bl 3R BRI ETRD 1T A FR A )7 2020
FNANBURAREAREEMETZEXEGHE - A
REEEFEE R EEARFRRHER FRTSZZ
HENET —IBFEERIUSHIERS

R Lz BEER  FEAREZEIENEESH
BRI R RN T

As at 31 December 2020, premises were included in the balance sheet
at valuation carried out at 31 December 2020 on the basis of their fair
value by an independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty
Limited. The fair value represents the price that would be received to
sell each premises in an orderly transaction with market participants at
the measurement date.

As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of
the premises were recognised in the premises revaluation reserve and
the income statement as follows:

2020 2019
BT BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(ff) BREEEGHRHEZ (Decrease)/increase in valuation (charged)/credited
EHCRE) EE to premises revaluation reserve (184,028) 139,747
(f8) " Brxlzikz (Decrease)/increase in valuation (charged)/credited
EHCRE) EE to income statement (6.686) 2,384
(190,714) 142,131

R2020F 12 A31 B » BEREZRKAEIR R
EJR  AEBZEEABRAZEERMFERS
75#905,492,0007T (20194 : B #863,474,0007T) °

As at 31 December 2020, the net book value of premises that would
have been included in the Group’s balance sheet had the premises been
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation was HK$905,492,000
(2019: HK$863,474,000).
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26. Hh&=E 26. OTHER ASSETS

2020 2019

BT T BT

HK$°000 HK$'000

W EIE E Repossessed assets 7.220 10,851
o5 Precious metals 404,718 264,765
FEUARIE R TES & A Accounts receivable and prepayments 3,650,770 4,074,163
4,062,708 4,349,779
BEZEE Impairment allowances (4,661) (3,161)
4,058,047 4,346,618

HEREEEZ BT

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances is,

as follows:
F—FER FERRER 2 st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT T BT T BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
®2020F1 A 1H At 1 January 2020 (1,280) - (1,881) (3.161)
N Addition (1,962) - - (1,962)
RIEERSEE (MR IEMEE)  Derecognised or repaid
(excluding written off) 25 - 1,151 1,176
B 55— RRER Transfers to Stage 2 1 1) - -
HEEE R Transfers to Stage 3 1 - 1) -
BN SRR ER 2 R f & E8E . Impact on period end
HEIRTEEB AT E ECLs of exposures
transferred between
stages during the period - (17) (354) (371)
IETRE §Y & &) Changes to model used
for impairment
calculations 1 1 - 2
ME2E W EE Changes to inputs used
for impairment
calculations 939 1) (784) 154
PEHZ%8 Exchange difference (499) - - (499)
) 202012 A31H At 31 December 2020 (2,774) (18) (1,869) (4,661)
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26, HMEE®

26. OTHER ASSETS (Cont'd)

FIER FMEE FE=PEER 4ast
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
T BT IT PR T IT PR T IT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2019F1 8 1H At 1 January 2019 (1,201) (11) (13) (1,225)
N Addition (1,133) - - (1,133)
IR FERR SR EE (N FEMEE)  Derecognised or repaid
(excluding written off) - 11 8 19
R —FEEL Transfers to Stage 2 2 ) = =
R =EEL Transfers to Stage 3 629 = (629) =
HAAE P& R 2 IR PR A RS R  Impact on period end
HERTE AR AR & ECLs of exposures
transferred between
stages during the period - - (4,345) (4,345)
VERIEE 2oL =S Changes to inputs used
for impairment
calculations 340 2 (681) (339)
i85 Written off - - 3,779 3,779
ME X R Exchange difference 83 - - 83
) 201912 A31H At 31 December 2019 (1,280) - (1,881) (3,161)
27. ARERFABRZERMEE 27. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2020 2019
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RE5EBE Trading liabilities
— INEESEEREFER — Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills and Notes 6,650,987 5,048,559

RK2020F 12 A31 B8 BEREABAARBELLET AR
mZERBEQ9F &) -

At 31 December 2020, there were no financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss (2019: Nil).
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28. EFEREHHES

28. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS AND HEDGE

ACCOUNTING
(a) EFEX (a) Deposits from customers
2020 2019
BET T T IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BVERTF 3R K2 1 SR AF 3K Demand deposits and current accounts
— A — Corporate 42,636,283 38,228,957
— fEA — Personal 3,914,497 2,731,596
46,550,780 40,960,553
BTN Savings deposits
— A — Corporate 33,746,258 29,405,951
— @A — Personal 54,070,216 40,165,185
87,816,474 69,571,136
EH - RERBEMFER Time, call and notice deposits
— INE] — Corporate 131,872,167 133,731,637
— EA — Personal 85,390,507 101,624,456
217,262,674 235,356,093
351,629,928 345,887,782

(b) EhES

JEINEIEFRE LM

2020612 A31 B REBARE LS ARKEFHER
BEERA L B%2,162,425,000 7T (20194 : B #E
2,030,116,000 7T) A% T B - B LA H/EINEVEF
BE o

FRRBEERIBD 2 WF BB RAER
(20194 : #) o

29. BEETEEELFRTFRR

(b) Hedge accounting

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

As at 31 December 2020, a proportion of the Groups's RMB-
denominated deposits from customers of HK$2,162,425,000 (2019:
HK$2,030,116,000) were designated as a hedging instrument to hedge

against the net investments in foreign operations.

There were no gains or losses on ineffective portion recognised in the

income statement during the year (2019: Nil).

29. DEBT SECURITIES AND CERTIFICATES OF

DEPOSIT IN ISSUE

2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BBEERTRE Debt securities and certificates of deposit,

R SHR AT BR at amortised cost
— TFERE — Certificates of deposit 10,747,857 6,378,269
— HE%E 5 — Other debt securities 13,266,578 9,092,847
24,014,435 15,471,116
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30. HMAREREHE

30. OTHER ACCOUNTS AND PROVISIONS

2020 2019

BET T BT

HK$°000 HK$'000

HEAE Lease liabilities 454,070 582,911

H A fETRRIE Other accounts payable 18,052,065 25,175,498

A Provisions 54,660 60,855
B0 R ERE R Impairment allowances for loan commitments

SRE 2 and financial guarantee contracts 164,014 89,576

18,724,809 25,908,840

HEREEE DT

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances s,

as follows:
F—BE FEER E 2 st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
®K2020F1 A1H At 1 January 2020 89,558 18 - 89,576
= yill Addition 152,240 - - 152,240
1R IERERR (R iE ) Derecognised (excluding
written off) (90,681) - - (90,681)
EEE L Transfers to Stage 1 17 17) - -
R FEEY Transfers to Stage 2 (4) q - -
HAR P& R 2 IR B A HEEERE  Impact on period end
HERTEER IR R & ECLs of exposures
transferred between
stages during the period (13) 637 - 624
BARE R & ) Changes to model used
for impairment
calculations (11,493) (74) - (11,567)
A28 E Changes to inputs used
for impairment
calculations 11,769 69 - 11,838
b X ERE Exchange difference 11,984 - - 11,984
R 2020412 A31 8 At 31 December 2020 163,377 637 - 164,014
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30. HiRBERER @

30. OTHER ACCOUNTS AND PROVISIONS (Cont'd)

FIEE FMEE FE=PEER “ast
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2019F 1 81H At 1 January 2019 184,811 8 - 184,819
#hn Addition 73,196 - - 73,196
1R IERERR (R HE ) Derecognised (excluding
written off) (153,780) (1) - (153,781)
W —FEEL Transfers to Stage 2 (1) 1 = -
HAR P& R 2 IR bR AR R  Impact on period end
HERTEER IR & ECLs of exposures
transferred between
stages during the period - 18 - 18
MBS B Changes to inputs used
for impairment
calculations (11,654) - - (11,654)
b5 =R Exchange difference (3,014) (8) = (3,022)
72019412 A31H At 31 December 2019 89,558 18 - 89,576
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31. ELEHIA

ERERIBRRRBEE LSS EANF 1257 AEHRIFTE -
HEEBBEMEEREEENBREARMERE
Z BRI R NN MR R R -

EERBRACELENE(EE) /AEXZEAS - U
MREEFERZEFHMT

31. DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements and unused tax credits in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”.

The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recorded in the
balance sheet, and the movements during the year are as follows:

2020
mEFE
SHE
Accelerated ~ ¥IXEfh HEEE
tax  Property B  Impairment Hitr “@ct
depreciation revaluation Losses  allowance Other Total
BETT  B%Tr BT B¥Tx  B%Tr  B%Tn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2020F1A1H At 1 January 2020 40,868 1,173,512 - (389,790) (37,466) 787,124
&/ (8)shizk Charged/(credited) to income statement 3,801 2,554 - (142,834)  (116,480)  (252,959)
M rmkas Credited to other comprehensive income - (46,489) - - (33,751) (80,240)
EH AR Exchange difference - 7,379 - (25,276) (1,395) (19,292)
72020512 A31H At 31 December 2020 44,669 1,136,956 - (557,900) (189,092) 434,633
2019
MEHFTE
B
Accelerated MEEE B
tax Property B Impairment Ht, @t
depreciation  revaluation Losses allowance Other Total
BETr A% Tr A%Tr AT BETr A%Tro
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
®2019%1 818 At 1 January 2019 35,163 1,165,740 - (415,874) (56,541) 728,438
&/ (8)2hak Charged/(credited) to income statement 5,705 21 - 17,640 (24,723) (1,357)
A E M2 E Charged to other comprehensive income = 9,529 = = 45,724 55,253
I ES Exchange difference = (1,778) = 8,444 (1,926) 4,740
R2019F 12 A31H At 31 December 2019 40,868 1,173,512 - (389,790) (37,466) 787,124
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31. EERHIE @)
EEETRNTERAREEAERBAHER BE
8 THEEBIES R A — BB - RIS EREA
HEERE S EREEREE EEMEN - THIER
EaEENVIEZSE D AEEE

31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity
basis when there is a legal right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxation relates to the
same authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:

2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BIETIEEE Deferred tax assets (430,257) (58,000)
RIEFRIBE A& Deferred tax liabilities 864,890 845,124
434,633 787,124
2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEEFIIRE B Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than
(B3R 12 @ A &4e(E) twelve months (337,687) (142,858)
FEERIARE Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than
(@12 @A BAT) twelve months 903,250 936,655
565,563 793,797

M2020F 12 A31H  AEBARBERELEREE
EZRIEEIRAEB 221400070 (20194 : B
2,256,0007T) ° RIBIRITHGI - BARBERLEE
REEARR o

32. %EESE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$2,214,000 (2019:
HK$2,256,000). These tax losses do not expire under the current tax
legislation.

32. SUBORDINATED LIABILITIES

2020 2019
BEET T AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FREE SR AR BR RS 2029 FFBIHA 2 US$700 million fixed rate subordinated notes
700,000,000 =T 7E B 1% issued due 2029 at amortised cost
EES7 5,416,390 5,438,386
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32. #EE&EwW

It Ty 7N R 1T 20194F 11 A 20 B 317 2 700,000,000
ETEBBRZAT LT RFAE(EERBE = )M R
EAZHEARN10FHRERE([ZE]) (EREGR
T (BAR) BHANDZIER) - WEEEBR 20294 11
B20B B8 - BB HEEEH A2024F11 8208 -
METHEHRIEEEER  £85380% &%
FRB—K - Hig  WEBATRIEZHEEAER -
FROF BB AERSFHERREGS SR
2182 T - ERFBSERBLIME  AEITAINEE
MEEE Bk AR BT B E IR R IR R HATAY
B FUZEEEERRE GED) 2K -

32. SUBORDINATED LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

This represents US$700,000,000 Basel Ill compliant 10-year
subordinated notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank issued on
20 November 2019 in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules (the
“Notes”), which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The
Notes will mature on 20 November 2029 with an optional redemption
date falling on 20 November 2024. Interest at 3.80% p.a. is payable
semi-annually from the issue date to the optional redemption date.
Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset
and the Notes will bear interest at the prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury
Rate plus 218 basis points. The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior
approval of the HKMA, redeem the Notes at the option of the Bank in
whole but not in part, at par either on the optional redemption date or
for tax or regulatory reasons at any time prior to maturity of the Notes.

33. BX 33. SHARE CAPITAL
2020 2019
BT T PEEE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETREE : Issued and fully paid:
7,000,000 % I 38 I 7,000,000 ordinary shares 3,144,517 3,144,517
34, BIEARTIH 34. ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
2020 2019
BT T PSR IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
12 BETTRAFERFTR AR US$1,200 million perpetual non-cumulative
BEIN— R E AR FEFH subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities 9,314,890 9,314,890

ARIRITIN2017F 6 A2 BT 7T EEE 128X (30
BRIARE TR ANME ZE B 93151870 ) Ik AFER AT
IRARFEIN— B ARFH ([EINEARTA]) - IKAZE
SVEART BN 202246 A2 B EERAIIER B 8A7 -
E=EFFRFER5.00% © EEFREGTEERE =
AEMNREEsFIRER SFHEERERS SR
BERMEN ERBEITHEZER -

On 2 June 2017, the Bank issued perpetual non-cumulative
subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities (“additional equity
instruments”) with a face value of US$1,200 million (equivalent to
HK$9,315 million net of related issuance costs). The additional equity
instruments are perpetual and bear a 5.00% coupon until the first
call date on 2 June 2022. The coupon will be reset every 5 years if
the additional equity instruments are not redeemed to a fixed rate
equivalent to the then-prevailing 5-year US Treasury rate plus a fixed
initial spread.
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34. EMNEXRIAm
BEEHLEREN—K o NRITERERIEZEINEAR
TAMERRTICEH SN - MEUEMAETE 2
& o AT - ANBANZ IS HAEBRRESERSE
BETRERALABIL -

RS E RBHANRIT INE AR EITHIHREZEE
g2 ZEINEATANAS K ERESERHHEK
FERFEIES TETHE -

M20224 6 A2 ASMEMERWIKE R - ARITTHAB
BOEBROABERENNORIERTR  BEAXES
B GRS AR PR I

2020F A« ANRITHELINEEINEATAZS 6 TEE
T BRSO RIR20205E6 A1 BM20205E12 811
BRI 3TESET - (20195 6 TEET) °

34. ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

The coupon shall be payable semi-annually. The Bank has the right to
cancel coupon payment (subjected to the requirement as set out in
the terms and conditions of the additional equity instruments) and the
coupon cancelled shall not be cumulative. However, the Bank is stopped
from declaring dividend to its ordinary shareholders unless the next
scheduled coupon payment is paid.

The principal of the additional equity instruments will be written down
to the amount as directed or agreed with the HKMA if the HKMA
notifies the Bank that the Bank would become non-viable if there is no
written down of the principal.

The Bank has a call option to redeem all the outstanding additional
equity instruments from 2 June 2022 or any subsequent coupon
payment date, but subject to restriction as set out in the terms and
conditions.

The Bank has distributed coupon payment for additional equity
instruments for a total amount US$60 million during the year 2020, for
each US$30 million was distributed on 1 June 2020 and 1 December
2020 separately (2019: US$60 million).
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35. GERERERMT 35.

() RERNERVAKERESZRA (R (a)

STATEMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash

) HER inflow/(outflow) before taxation
2020 2019
BT T BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
£ | Operating profit 4,229,255 4,459,755
e Depreciation 519,134 495,555
BB FRAE Net charge of impairment allowances 1,359,147 1,160,079
IR R (B ZE o] 3 Unwind of discount on impairment allowances (3,179) (1,351)
Pz & (KU EZEE)  Advances written off net of recoveries (1,075,308) (1,229,420)
HEaEBENEXE Interest expense on lease liabilities 18,838 23,233
BEAENESZH Interest expense on subordinated liabilities 209,386 24,007
[REIEFE BB 3 @A 2FHERTT  Change in balances with banks and other financial
REMSBEENESH 2 ES)  institutions with original maturity over three months 635,824 1,205,481
REIEIE BB 31EA 2ERTTH  Change in placements with banks and other financial
Hth & miis 2 EHF 2 institutions with original maturity over three months
=5 7,561,189 8,935,238
AREE T ABRZ Change in financial assets at fair value through
TRIEE profit or loss (10,757,524) (4,960,982)
TESRI A #E) Change in derivative financial instruments 853,943 298,741
B EAERTE 2 &8 Change in advances and other accounts (14,998,176) (9,388,449)
SR E 2 Change in financial investments 9,796,568 (30,029,254)
HEtEE Change in other assets 287,570 (1,943,882)
HRIT R EAth 2 RS 2 Change in deposits and balances from banks and
TRt 2 other financial institutions 2,080,195 1,884,824
AREZF T AEEZ Change in financial liabilities at fair value through
TRIBEZEH) profit or loss 1,602,428 245,283
BE1FER2E Change in deposits from customers 5,742,146 1,682,843
HAbARIE R AEfE 2 & Change in other accounts and provisions (7,107,403) 6,271,651
[EREH) 2 & Effect of changes in exchange rates 117,314 (235,377)
BRATEEIR S ZRA R Operating cash inflow/(outflow) before taxation 1,071,347 (21,102,025)
KEXBBHSREROIE Cash flows from operating activities included:
— BIFIE — Interest received 12,587,648 14,933,555
— BRFE — Interest paid (6,658,081) (7,928,669)
— BYARE — Dividend received 2,165 2,315
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35. ZEBRERERMTE @) 35. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Cont'd)
(b) HRERERBRSEELEEIN (b)  Analysis of the balances of cash and cash
equivalents
2020 2019
BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000

EFReREFHAEIBEMAAR
ZEERIT R B & BEE R

Cash and balances with banks and other financial
institutions with original maturity within three months

A 48,556,255 31,073,266
REIBFEE3EA AT Placements with banks and other financial institutions with
RITRE M S R 2 original maturity within three months
TEHFI - 2,339,179
REHBEIREARNZES Treasury bills with original maturity within three months 1,182,972 7,683,844
[REIEABE 3B B A2 17 5E Certificates of deposit held with original maturity
within three months - 77,483
49,739,227 41,173,772

(0 BMEXKEBEZ2H

(c) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities
2020 2019
BT T PETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETEBIEFMFHRE Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue
®W1A1H At 1 January 15,471,116 12,192,974
FNEELT Issuance during the year 8,543,319 3,278,142
M®12A31H At 31 December 24,014,435 15,471,116
‘EBE Subordinated liabilities
®1A1H At 1 January 5,438,386 =
REME Cash flows:
BITREBEFWHRZEITEA Issue of subordinated debt net of cost - 5,447,665
TETREBBENEAR Cost paid for issuance of subordinated liabilities (168) =
TRHREERERR Distribution payment for subordinated liabilities (206,187) =
IR Non-cash changes:
FEFTE TR A Accrued expense in relation to issuance cost - (5,338)
MERETERZES Amortisation of discount and issuance cost 209,386 24,007
HNIE B Foreign exchange movement (25,027) (27,948)
K12A31H At 31 December 5,416,390 5,438,386
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35. FEBRERERMET @ 35. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Cont'd)
(0 ®MEXBEBZ2E(E) ()  Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities (Cont'd)
2020 2019
BEET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEAE Lease liabilities
m1A1H At 1 January 582,911 -
PRANE B B 5 s 2R Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16
Fl6k B - 574,297
REME Cash flows:
SNAEAaE Payment of lease liabilities (267,165) (266,719)
eI EE) Non-cash changes:
g Additions 86,947 286,638
EHAh Others 51,378 (11,305)
M12A831H At 31 December 454,071 582,911

36. WAEBRAIE

FRABENAETI2REMELARRLE 22 ERR
REPERIET MRS EEREZHERIZ A NEER
REERRNESERANT -

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND

COMMITMENTS

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liability and commitment and the

aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and is prepared with reference
to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital adequacy

ratio.

2020 2019

BEET T PRI IT

HK$°000 HK$'000

BHEEERNRIEAR Direct credit substitutes 12,329,692 9,065,919

R GEBZHAREE Transaction-related contingencies 1,439,767 1,186,892

HEZEBEINEE Trade-related contingencies 18,734,669 14,257,903

BERENEEDLS Asset sales with recourse 498,543 411,796
NEBLBAMEGEMHRIEZ  Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable

G without prior notice 109,315,008 105,148,404

H#AE - REBBER Other commitments with an original maturity of

— 1FZAT — up to one year 2,251,261 2,678,142

—1FUE — over one year 16,002,949 15,450,806

160,571,889 148,199,862

EERRINESEE Credit risk-weighted amount 16,409,407 16,645,823

EERRINMESETRB(RITE(BR)RADE -
HEREIUARR ZEF 2 BN REBEH 2 R

-

The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules. The amount is dependent upon the status

of the counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of

contract.
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37. EBREIE
AEBANURRETEE Y EAAESBENT :

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not
provided for in the financial statements:

2020 2019

BT T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

EHbAE MR LB RS Authorised and contracted for but not provided for 59,203 73,723
EHLEBERED Authorised but not contracted for 2,659 2,332
61,862 76,055

A EBEARRBEREBD BEBAZES
RAEB 2BFRETIR AN

ELESEINEINCIRN

38. KEMHERE

ERHEA

BETTRHZEEREAY  THATEERAE
BITANZAREREE SERKES

The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to
purchase computer equipment and software, and to renovate the
Group’s premises.

38. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessor

The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases:

2020 2019
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

T REF Land and buildings
— NHB1F — Not later than one year 8,224 12,811
—1FUEESFA — Later than one year but not later than five years 4,226 6,497
12,450 19,308

AEBNKLEREABLRENE HEFHAER
B 1EFESF o MOFRR—REBFHEFRIFRES °

39. =R
AEEEEHZEMBIATRENRERRRE -
BEREMRRERRAEENEEHFESERE -

HREERANEE A HERAELE HRRIE
HERRMSRNBEIA  RALREHERERR
REFELERERE -

The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease
arrangements, with leases typically for a period from one to five years.
The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security
deposits.

39. LITIGATION

The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by
various independent parties. These claims and counterclaims are in
relation to the normal commercial activities of the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and counterclaims
because the directors believe that the Group has meritorious defences
against the claimants or the amounts involved in these claims are not
expected to be material.
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40. DERE

(a) REEDE
REBEBKFTD ANBEEZES B
DERIT - BB RITE -

2RI B EARTT

EARITAERRITEH RIS REZEARITR
% AARTEBRZERBEARTS - MEERTE
BRERGIEEATE - ERMEXRBR - KTAE
BEH BREEEAKENER RBES - F/X
FSNERIA - BB FHBEPIEEARE B E BN
BEX REMEBRRERES  WERREEARTM
EEBITEBSROBEFFEBDTARENES < &
LEBRLEANES X HETEREENLECEEE

R HIEEE o EZIKMT&E%?'JE’Jﬁﬁﬁ%?}’%TE sER B
BREAEBRZENEZRS  BREEAEER
WARRIREB R 2 B EE (% :.Z TRIAEH E

BB ENEEAEERREMLR)

BB BREAREE E HE M SR BALATE R AR o
HWNMERAKRENYE B XBRT RRBEYT
ROTIHERAKRERBRINER - AAREENE
NG —ﬁﬁ(#l)2§$%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁaﬁﬁﬂﬁlﬁéﬁﬁﬁ§
RNERHEZR  EEEREEBSER

(Bt REEEM2ER T EORABAKERER
ELE RPN ER AR EBANIAR -

—EAEBROBARZ L - TEEREREBNZE
BRAIAR - ENERER  SREBESEEEHE) -

40. SEGMENTAL REPORTING
(@) By operating segment

The Group divides its business into four major segments, Personal
Banking, Corporate Banking, Treasury and Investment.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general
banking services. Personal Banking serves individual customers while
Corporate Banking deals with non-individual customers. The Treasury
segment is responsible for managing the capital, liquidity, and the
interest rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition
to proprietary trades. It provides funds to other business segments and
receives funds from deposit taking activities of Personal Banking and
Corporate Banking. These inter-segment funding is charged according
to the internal funds transfer pricing mechanism of the Group. The
assets and liabilities of Treasury have not been adjusted to reflect the
effect of inter-segment borrowing and lending (i.e. the profit and loss
information in relation to Treasury is not comparable to the assets and
liabilities information about Treasury).

Investment includes bank premises and equipment used by supporting
units. Charges are paid to this segment from other business segments
based on market rates per square foot for their occupation of the
Group's premises. The exchange difference arising from capital of our
subsidiary, NCB (China), which is recognised in its income statement, is
also included in this class.

“Others” refers to other group operations and mainly comprises of
items related to the Group as a whole and totally independent of the
other four business segments.

Revenues and expenses of any business segment mainly include items
directly attributable to the segment. For management overheads,
allocations are made on reasonable bases.
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40. DEHE @ 40. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
(a) ZEESE(E) (a) By operating segment (Cont'd)
BARGT  LEEA
Personal  Corporate  BHEE% k& A Nt ABHEH &8
Banking Banking Treasury  Investment Others  Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated
BTn  A%Tn  A%Tn  B¥Tn  BETRm B¥Tn ATn ATn
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
HE205128318 Year ended 31 December 2020
FHEMA/ (%) Net interest incomellexpense)
- 5K - External (258654) 4528931 2,098,210 - - 6,368,487 - 6,368,487
- BRK - Inter-segment 1,140,731 165,166 (1,305,897) - - - - -
882077 4694097 792313 - - 6,368,487 - 6,368,487
FREBRESUA/ (THH) Net fee and commission incomef(expense) 840539 684,905 95,274 61 (1323) 1,619,456 - 1,619,456
FRakhds/ (58) Net trading gain/(loss) 39,499 436291 (667,019 272,085 11 80,867 - 80,867
AR ERIGGIARRZ Net gain on financia instruments at fair value
SRIERNG through profit or loss - - 435,846 - - 435,846 - 435,846
HYSBEEZF(BR) /RE  Net oss)igain on other finanial assets - (14529) 264,298 - - 249,769 - 249,769
AN/ () Other operating income/(expense) 23,248 (67,735) 44,087 145,403 7332 152,735 (134,147) 18,588
REAEERA 2 FEERA Net operating income before impairment
allowances 1785363 5733020 965199 417,549 6020 8907160  (134147) 8773013
REEEFOE/ (BE) Net reversalicharge) of impaiment alowances 371524 (1,703,766)  (25,950) - (955)  (1,359,147) - (1.359,147)
FREUWA Net operating income 2,156,887 4,029,263 939,249 417,549 5065 7548013 (134147) 7413866
ey Operating expenses (1065254)  (1259,203)  (446,381)  (407,186)  (140734) (3318758) 134,147  (3.184,611)
BeRA/ (Fi) Operating profit/(loss) 1,091,633 2,770,060 492,868 10363 (135669) 4,229,255 - 4229255
RENEA ERL L FER Net loss from fair value acjustments on
investment properties - - - (2,950) - (2,950) - (2,950)
HE /Bl E  BIURAEZ  Netloss from disposalirevaluation of
FEE properties, plant and equipment - - - (7.8%9) - (7.8%9) - (7.8%9)
REIRR/ (B8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 1,091,633 2,770,060 492,868 (486)  (135,669) 4,218,406 - 4218406
R2020%12 8318 At 31 December 2020
BE ASSETS
PBEE Seqment assets 61,054,867 219333199 214741486 8,616,662 1951947 505,698,161 - 505,698,161
af LIABILITIES
AHEE Segment liabiltes 145604471 221972695  T1,631,12 3056  3459,006 442,670,440 - 442,670,440
BZ2200%128318 Year ended 31 December 2020
RfrER Other information
BRER Capital expenditure - - - 144978 - 14978 - 144978
ik Depreciation 54919 3,12 343 407,174 20506 519,134 - 519134
Fepag Amortisation of securities - - (73,190) - - (73,790) - (73,790)
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40. ZEHRE @) 40. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
() REEIE®E (a) By operating segment (Cont'd)
EAST &%
Personal  Corporate  BTAER #& Afh Nt ARHES &8
Banking Banking Treasury  Investment Others Subtotal  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
BTr  BETn  BBTr  Alfn BETn BT BETn #ETr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HZ201912A318 Year ended 31 December 2019
FHEMA/ (%) Net interest incomellexpense)
— 5k - External (918,627) 4907162 2,661,654 - - 6,650,189 - 6,650,189
- B2K - Inter-seqment 1045064 (73824)  (1,671,40) - - = = =
1026437 4633338 990,414 - - 6,650,189 - 6,650,189
FREERESUA/ (%) Net fee and commission income/(expense) 639,963 886,225 4983 609 2618 1529122 - 15912
FRakhds/ (58) Net trading gain/(loss) 35,559 2% (544019 (81,251) (100 182515 - 182,515
AR ERIGGIAREZ Net gain on financial instruments at fair
SRR value through profit or loss - - 398,797 - - 398,797 - 398797
At eRARE TG Net gain on other financial assets* - (B621) 222,684 - - 219063 - 219063
A=A Other operating income - - - 142,412 9,586 151998 (129,286) 2712
REAEERA ZFEERA Net operating income before impairment
allowances 1,701,959 6,288,238 1,072,819 61,770 6898 9,131,684 (129.286) 9,002,398
HEEEFRE/ (KE) Net reversal/(charge) of impairment allowances 900464 (1,987,542) (69,155) - (3,846) (1,160,079 - (1,160,079)
FREWA Net operating income 2602423 43006% 1,003,664 61,770 305 7,971,605 (129,286) 7,842,319
S| Operating expenses (11522600 (1,617,710 (119123)  (394855)  (227,902)  (3,511,850) 129286 (3,382,564)
%A/ (BB) Operating profit/(loss) 1450163 2,682,986 84541 (333,085 (224.850) 4,459,755 - 4459755
RAMEARERR MR Net gain from fair value adjustments on
Investment properties - - - 16,573 - 16,573 - 16,573
HE/EE  BURREZ  Netgain from disposalirevaluation of
A properties, plant and equipment - - - 365 - 365 - 365
BiagR/ (58) Profit/(loss) before taxation 1450163 2,682,986 884,541 (316,147) (22485) 4,476,693 - 4476693
R2019%12 8318 At 31 December 2019
&g ASSETS
PHEE Segment assets 54393630 210,168,751 215859086 8,991,932 175,448 489,588,847 - 489,588,847
a& LIABILITIES
GEI{E Segment liabilities 145,807,828 212,940,069 68,325,683 3654 3660821 430,798,055 - 430,798,055
HZ2019%12A318 Year ended 31 December 2019
HfpER Other information
BREL Capital expenditure = - = 315,011 - 315,011 - 315,011
iES Depreciation 53,672 21,946 1,669 389,948 22320 495,555 = 495,555
Ee i Amortisation of securities - - 705,551 - - 705551 - 705551
@ AURSBEEENHREUAAEE LT ABEZE e Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to Net gain on financial

mﬂIfEﬁﬂlﬁlﬁﬁLﬁ%é\ﬁiZz

HAA -

instruments at fair value through profit or loss to conform with the current

year's presentation.
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40. DERE®E
(b) ZHEEHES

UTERRRENBAANEREEDE -
RBITZ AR - BIRIRE B RS A B R

mneE

40. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)

(b) By geographical area

The following information is presented based on the principal places

of operations of the subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank, on the

DITFIAEH D 48 locations of the branches responsible for reporting the results or
booking the assets:
2020 2019
REUH B ZEE R IRBUR B2/ RT
ZREEIRA RRBE AT ZIFREE WA FRAAL
Net operating el Net operating it
income before Profit income before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowances taxation allowances taxation
BET T BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 5,661,635 3,550,593 6,050,621 3,524,315
R D, Mainland of China 3,111,378 667,813 2,951,777 952,378
aer Total 8,773,013 4,218,406 9,002,398 4,476,693
2020
RABBRARE
Contingent
BmEE wmaE EREBEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BT T BT T BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BB Hong Kong 336,658,287 289,806,208 7,038,442 60,975,919
AR A b Mainland of China 169,039,874 152,864,232 1,531,652 99,595,970
A&t Total 505,698,161 442,670,440 8,570,094 160,571,889
2019
SR B ENAHE
Contingent
BEE FEN=NE B EE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 333,928,237 290,086,716 7,374,231 60,761,517
ESiEaNp:i Mainland of China 155,660,610 140,711,339 1,594,540 87,438,345
At Total 489,588,847 430,798,055 8,968,771 148,199,862
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41. BEBREE

M2020F12A31H & £ Z B @EBEE
8,408,994,000 7T (2019 4F : & #7,297,290,000 7T )
R RIRE R AB R A E 2 B o
SO - AEEBEBEREERENESES IR
2 B & A% #17,562,996,000 7 (2019 4F : & #&
16,137,369,0007T) « A& B BERILE & & E 7
2 BESE B 27,016,893,000 7T (20194 : B
24,233,069,0007T) * WEER [RZHUEE] K [£
BhiEE | AR -

42. ST R ZIKSH
TERIRAEEDIEY - BHITIOFBEEAIREA
BOIRBN RO SR T A -

41. ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY

As at 31 December 2020, the liabilities of the Group amounting
to HK$8,408,994,000 (2019: HK$7,297,290,000) were secured by
assets deposited with central depositories to facilitate settlement
operations. In addition, the liabilities of the Group amounting to
HK$17,562,996,000 (2019: HK$16,137,369,000) were secured by debt
securities and bills related to sale and repurchase arrangements. The
amount of assets pledged by the Group to secure these liabilities was
HK$27,016,893,000 (2019: HK$24,233,069,000) mainly included in
“Trading assets” and “Financial investments”.

42. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following tables present details of the Group’s financial instruments
subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreements.

2020
REE
BERTEY NEESER FANEERBRTEHZ
PARY A 5T il o
BELEE SREERE Related amounts not set off
BHREM  Grossamounts  Netamounts in the balance sheet
BEBE  of recognised of financial BKEZ
Gross amounts financial assets BeHR
of recognised liabilities set off  presented in SRIE Cash
financial  in the balance the balance Finandial collateral b
assets sheet sheet instruments received Net amount
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
ITEERTA Derivative financial instruments 514,215 - 514,215 (507,535) (5.349) 1,331
EtEE Other assets 1,504,891 (1,278,696) 226,195 - - 226,195
2,019,106 (1,278,696) 740,410 (507,535) (5,349) 227,526
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42, ©RTHZIKEH @) 42. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Cont'd)
2020
REE
SERTHESE NEESEX FEREEERRPESH
PARY: 3 F5ITH RELE
BERE SREETE Related amounts not set off
BHREM  Grossamounts  Netamounts in the balance sheet
BEAE  of recognised of financial BEAZ
Gross amounts financial liabilities BeHR
of recognised  assetssetoff  presented in £RIR Cash
financial  in the balance the balance Financial collateral bk
liabilities sheet sheet instruments pledged Net amount
BETT BRI BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
8% Liabilities
fTAELRTE Derivative financial instruments 1,710,709 - 1,710,709 (507,535) (510,362) 692,812
EthaE Other liabilities 1,348,560 (1,278,696) 69,864 - - 69,864
3,059,269 (1,278,696) 1,780,573 (507,535) (510,362) 762,676
2019
BERTHEE  RNEEARR RENEERERPREZ
LERRER i il e
BELE GREETE Related amounts not set off
EWZEE  Gross amounts Net amounts in the balance sheet
EERE  of recognised of financial Bl
Gross amounts financial assets BeHm
of recognised  liabilities set off presented in ¢RTA Cash
financial  in the balance the balance Financial collateral it
assets sheet sheet instruments received Net amount
BETT BETT BETT BETTT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 286,461 - 286,461 (91,650) (4,750) 190,061
EEE Other assets 1,233,651 (1,068,483) 165,168 - - 165,168
1,520,112 (1,068,483) 451,629 (91,650) (4,750) 355,229
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42. £RI B IR @

42. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Cont'd)
2019
BERTEE  RNEEARR RERNEERRRPEHZ
LEERLE NG il
EEGE  SREETE Related amounts not set off
EHAEE  Gross amounts Net amounts in the balance sheet
BEMEE  of recognised of financial [REiwipd
Gross amounts financial liabilities BEAR
of recognised assets set off presented in SRIA Cash
financial in the balance the balance Financial collateral et
liabilities sheet sheet instruments pledged Net amount
ot BETT Vot BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
8% Liabilities
TAESRIE Derivative financial instruments 407,793 - 407,793 (91,650) (127,243) 188,900
EthafE Other liabilities 1,135,622 (1,068,483) 67,139 - - 67,139
1,543,415 (1,068,483) 474,932 (91,650) (127,243) 256,039

RAEBEZI A BSIMTETANEREER HE)F
MEEADS  MEBEROLHEMELRTENE
- AR—XZHF2HAESRAURMFEEE -

43. SRIEEER
MR2020F K% 2019F12 A31H » KEBRAEITFA
RILFERIEHEZEEBEMEE -

44, EEEX

IR E (A REH)E 383 IR R A 7 (REE EF2%
BRDBEDE=MMTE - ARTEERET EX
BT

For master netting agreements of OTC derivative and sale and
repurchase transactions entered into by the Group, related amounts
with the same counterparty can be offset if an event of default or other
predetermined events occur.

43. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, there were no transferred financial
assets of the Group that do not qualify for derecognition.

44, LOANS TO DIRECTORS

Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section
383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation are as follows:

2020 2019
BT T PEEE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RERHARERZ B Aggregate amount of relevant transactions outstanding
R 5158 at year end 498 535
REAREEBBERZ2 Maximum aggregate amount of relevant transactions
= AREE outstanding during the year 535 572
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45. FEEBEEALRS
BATMEAREER

AEBEEERARREESRIERARAR ([15E
EE])  REEBRARATEREZEEEEERNER
REN([FREGEE]D > MPEEEEHTEARLNE
FABCER ([BATRER ) FErp EE AR KANE (TR EL ) USZEY
BELREE  EROMEEEHAXSMERAR
(IEBBR]) LR -

(a) R/|AFRFATREF2HMDTET
R

AREZEEEBRARREESE  MEESEER
REEE (BB ) ERER QR ([EEEE DS - &
BEEREER B LERAR] EXERREERE
HIARPEED - FIREDR P AR M B B 56 #0 42
FXERFT - B A B BRMBURSKMBIRBR S

B E NS A B RV B 15 i -

AP HEAREEETHOARZIREREPER R
2020F12 A3 B A"EEEBERIBLEBRAB
18,219,567,0007C (20194 : & ™ 31,036,307,000
TT)e B E2020E 12831 IEEE - B EE
ERBUEEEBRETEANIEHBERAE
388,867,000 7T (2019 4F : 7 791,727,0007T) °

ABPHEEEBTBETORIBFEEREER
2020F12 A31H  A"EEHEBERBRE R B
6,917,977,00070(20194F : &% 1,089,436,0007T) °
HZE2020F 12 A31 B IEFE - BEEFBSKMUL
HEBAREPEEMN L AETE A 46,160,000 7T
(20194F : ## 79,946,000 7T) °

45. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

General information of the parent companies:

The Group’s immediate holding company is Cinda Financial Holdings
Co., Limited (“Cinda Financial Holdings"), the Group’s ultimate holding
company is China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“China Cinda")
which is a state-owned financial enterprise established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF")
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and
the other companies controlled by the parent
companies

The Group’s immediate holding company is Cinda Financial Holdings
which is in turn controlled by China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company
Limited (“Cinda Hong Kong”). China Cinda is the controlling entity of
Cinda Hong Kong and its major shareholder and de facto controller
is MOF, which is one of the ministries under the State Council of the
PRC Government, primarily responsible for state fiscal revenue and
expenditures, and taxation policies.

China Cinda has controlling equity interests in certain other entities in
the PRC.

The majority of transactions with China Cinda arises from deposits from
customers. As at 31 December 2020, the related aggregate amount
of the Group was HK$18,219,567,000 (2019: HK$31,036,307,000).
The aggregate amount of expenses of the Group arising from these
transactions with China Cinda for the year ended 31 December 2020
was HK$388,867,000 (2019: HK$791,727,000).

The majority of transactions with Cinda Hong Kong arises from
deposits from customers. As at 31 December 2020, the related
aggregate amount of the Group was HK$6,917,977,000 (2019:
HK$1,089,436,000 ). The aggregate amount of expenses of the
Group arising from these transactions with Cinda Hong Kong for
the year ended 31 December 2020 was HK$46,160,000 (2019:
HK$79,946,000).
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45, FEZEBREALIRS @)

() BRBARRIATRESZHMDTET
MRS (&)

A DB RRIEH 2 HMARNRZSEE %
& o A2020F 12 A31H  AEEEBERIELAEA
7 #959,214,000 7T (20194 : /& #1,353,269,000
J0) ° B E 2020612 A31 B IEFE - B A AT
ZEM AR EEFBEFEENRABRE RS
% 85,080,000 7T (2019 4F : 7% 102,058,0007T) °

AL EFRAFEHZEMAFTNRBREEFER
NEFEFEH N2020612A8318 XEEBEHH
FRIE4A5E 5 Bl A8 B 49,184,000 7T (20194 : B #E
439,391,000 7T ) & % # 7,656,394,000 7T (2019 4F :
7% 7,415,131,0007T) ° 82 2020F 12 A31 HIEF
[E - BERRHESIZ iR rls it B ESBRETE
ERUA RS 42585 Rl A7 % 10,000,000 7T (2019
4 : ¥ 37,082,000 7T) K BHE 139,305,000 75(2019
4 ¢ 75 184,133,0007T) ©

B EMEES - HEMSARRSATEZ LA
TR BALTEA «

AEBELERGTRLEERETRITIRBRS
BRER BHREMNEBEMSERS

45. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(@) Transactions with the parent companies and
the other companies controlled by the parent
companies (Cont'd)
The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by
the parent companies arises from financial investments. As at 31
December 2020, the related aggregate amount of the Group was
HK$959,214,000 (2019: HK$1,353,269,000). The aggregate amount
of income of the Group arising from these transactions with other
companies controlled by the parent companies for the year ended 31
December 2020 was HK$ 85,080,000 (2019: HK$102,058,000).

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the
parent companies arises from advances to customers and deposits from
customers. As at 31 December 2020, the related aggregate amount of
the Group was HK$49,184,000 (31 December 2019: HK$439,391,000)
and HK$7,656,394,000 (31 December 2019: HK$7,415,131,000)
respectively. The aggregate amount of income and expenses of the
Group arising from these transactions with other companies controlled
by the parent companies for the period ended 31 December 2020 were
HK$10,000,000 (2019: HK$37,082,000) and HK$139,305,000 (2019:
HK$184,133,000) respectively.

Save as disclosed above, transactions with other parent companies
and the other companies controlled by the parent companies are not
considered material.

The Group enters into banking transactions with these entities in the
normal course of business which include loans, investment securities
and money market transactions.
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45, FEZEBREALIRS @)

(b) ERBUTHE - AEHE  HERBRHE
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- HE  BE  SERERmEMEAEREE
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»b

45. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(b) Transactions with government authorities, agencies,
affiliates and other state controlled entities

The Group is subject to the control of the MOF of the PRC Government,
which also directly or indirectly controls a significant number of entities
through its government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state
controlled entities. The Group enters into banking transactions with
government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state controlled
entities in the normal course of business at commercial terms.

These transactions include, but are not limited to, the following:
- lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and deposit taking;
- inter-bank balance taking and placing;

- sales, purchases, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued
by other state controlled entities;

- rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and investment
related services;

- provision of fiduciary activities; and

- purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunications and postage
services.
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(0 FESEAE
ITEREABRERLEERAREREER N NEME
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45. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(0 Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the Group, directly or indirectly, including Directors and Senior
Management. The Group accepts deposits from and grants loans and
credit facilities to key management personnel in the ordinary course
of business. During both the current and prior years, no material
transaction was conducted with key management personnel of the
Bank and its holding companies, as well as parties related to them.

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31
December is detailed as follows:

2020 2019
BT T T IT
HK$'000 HK$'000

SN B A G HA B TAE R Salaries and other short-term employee
benefits 44,377 63,868
RIRAEF] Post-employment benefits 3,342 3,610
47,719 67,478

d) EEBEARNERR

MR2020F 12 A31H AT EHEEBBIEF
RE—MREEGRETRIELENERZEMKEA
BIRIA R D B A& BE ¥ 1150007C (20194 : B
107,000 7T ) M2 /& ¥ 1,663,287,000 7T (2019 4F : B ¥
1,448,109,000 7T ) °

(d) Balances with subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate sums of amounts due from
subsidiaries and amounts due to subsidiaries of the Bank arising
from transactions entered into during the normal course of business
at commercial terms are HK$115,000 (2019: HK$107,000) and
HK$1,663,287,000 (2019: HK$1,448,109,000) respectively.
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46. BIPRERE

AT 2 B E BEERT LR Y & REEN
RSN AR - B EERRR S HFREmEA
AR L AR S U F 2 RRERAELHE S -
HBM IR A T 2 BE B R AN Y SN (EHE o
EEEZERAMEDLER SEFEAEMRRE - Q&
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EHEAEER 10% Sk A b2 BT

46. INTERNATIONAL CLAIMS

The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of international banking statistics.
International claims are exposures to counterparties on which the
ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the counterparties after
taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum of cross-
border claims in all currencies and local claims in foreign currencies.
For a claim guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from
the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the country of the
guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a bank whose head
office is located in another country, the risk will be transferred to the
country where its head office is located.

Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting
to 10% or more of the aggregate international claims of the Group are
shown as follows:

2020
FEBITIABAE
Non-bank private sector
FRERAT
SRS kem
EL#E Non-bank AR
$R1T Official financial Non-financial Mgt
Banks sector institutions private sector Total
BETT BETT BT T BT T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Bl A Mainland of China 34,673,834 1,476,345 4,629,391 54,192,957 94,972,527
B Hong Kong 1,443,147 16,656 12,088,085 36,578,686 50,126,574
2019
FERITILAKTE
Non-bank private sector
FEIRAT
SRS Fem
B Non-bank VN2
R1T Official financial  Non-financial HBEr
Banks sector institutions  private sector Total
BETT BETT AT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B A Mainland of China 42,223,336 1,883,332 989,130 51,916,012 97,011,810
BH Hong Kong 1,918,471 22,586 6,340,831 40,317,702 48,599,590




RAFS IR AR MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

47. SERITHIA M PR AR YE
HIERTTR 5 HF 6 M AR AR AYE Y DT IR B
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o

47.

NON-BANK MAINLAND EXPOSURES

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories
of non-bank counterparties and the types of direct exposures with
reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of
Mainland activities, which includes the Mainland exposures extended by
the Bank and its banking subsidiaries.

2020
BEEEE BEEESE
2ER RAM RIMAY
HKIEH BB BB
Items in On-balance Off-balance 48 [ PR AR
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
BET T BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
R - RREFIEAER  Central government, central
B~ EfBAR K& government-owned entities
BEBHE and their subsidiaries
and joint ventures 1 72,205,517 4,859,009 77,064,526
AT « 1A KRFE$ER  Local governments, local
g - HINBAR R government-owned
BEBE entities and their subsidiaries
and joint ventures 2 30,462,692 6,444,682 36,907,374
BRI R H MR PRC nationals residing in
WM - H Mainland or other entities
WBARREERE incorporated in Mainland
and their subsidiaries
and joint ventures 3 87,602,705 23,597,925 111,200,630
TEEELRE—TERR Other entities of central
T PR ) L A government not reported
in item 1 above 4 3,199,293 230,593 3,429,886
IEREFE LR I8 Other entities of local
I F ) ) L e A governments not reported
in item 2 above 5 764,218 - 764,218
AR BIEESR INE RS TESR SN PRC nationals residing
ST RIS - ERREA outside Mainland or
BEE entities incorporated
outside Mainland where
the credit is granted
for use in Mainland 6 14,763,736 1,280,597 16,044,333
HtRS5EFmERBAIE  Other counterparties where
AR RIERITHY N R R the exposures are
HHE considered to be non-bank
Mainland exposures 7 5,994,587 449,258 6,443,845
45T Total 8 214,992,748 36,862,064 251,854,812
MRERSBRNEEHSTE Total assets after provision 9 517,103,055
AEBERAE A On-balance sheet exposures
BLEEETERDL as percentage of total assets 10 41.58%
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47. FESRATHIR M SN (2) 47. NON-BANK MAINLAND EXPOSURES (Cont'd)
2019
BEAE BEAR
2ER RAH RN
HwIRIEE [\ B A [ B A
ltems in On-balance Off-balance 4R P
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
BT T T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RRAT - RRBUFIEAR  Central government, central
W - B ARKR government-owned entities
BEME and their subsidiaries
and joint ventures 1 75,851,240 4,153,899 80,005,139
AT~ HA BB Local governments, local
W - B ARKR government-owned
AEDRHE entities and their subsidiaries
and joint ventures 2 24,474,600 5,456,847 29,931,447
PRI NE RS E M PRC nationals residing in
WM - = Mainland or other entities
MEBAEIREERE incorporated in Mainland
and their subsidiaries
and joint ventures 3 78,108,854 17,890,205 95,999,059
DEFEELRE—TER R Other entities of central
TR IT P ) L i e e government not reported
in item 1 above 4 2,869,110 393,328 3,262,438
DRI LS a5 Other entities of local
TR IRT P ) L £ e governments not reported
in item 2 above 5 562,859 - 562,859
HR SR INE RS AR RSN PRC nationals residing
e - EARERN outside Mainland or
WiEE entities incorporated
outside Mainland where
the credit is granted
for use in Mainland 6 12,916,034 1,636,809 14,552,843
HivR Z¥FmEREAIE  Other counterparties where
AR AR IERITHY A 2 bz the exposures are
IR considered to be non-bank
Mainland exposures 7 5,889,106 294,489 6,183,595
a5t Total 8 200,671,803 29,825,577 230,497,380
MR ERE SR EERR Total assets after provision 9 500,330,937
B EBERAME R On-balance sheet exposures
BEEEAFEEDL as percentage of total assets 10 40.11%
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48. EEESERREZEHR 48. BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
(a) EESEX (a) Balance sheet
Mm12HA31 R As at 31 December 2020 2019
BT T EMETIT
HK$°000 HK$'000

BE ASSETS
BT3RS RAF MR T LA Cash and balances with banks and other

TR B4R finandial institutions 26,269,510 13,634,822
NAEZCETABREZE/EE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 6,497,758 6,662,581
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments 427,350 305,663
ER R EARIE Advances and other accounts 197,243,415 189,470,508
ERRE Financial investments 95,637,506 112,491,096
BB A Rl Interests in subsidiaries 11,708,802 11,708,802
B Investment properties 341,080 355,230
YIZE - 230 KA Properties, plant and equipment 6,691,738 7,014,862
Hith &2 Other assets 3,549,464 3,990,392
BERE Total assets 348,366,623 345,633,956
=R LIABILITIES
RITREM S RS 2 Deposits and balances from banks and other

T2 financial institutions 23,459,579 22,053,415
ANREZETABZZ B EE  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 6,650,987 5,048,559
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments 1,150,340 351,717
BPFER Deposits from customers 249,075,190 244,688,314
BEITERE Certificates of deposit in issue 1,377,015 =
H A0 ARIE R A Other accounts and provisions 3,189,754 12,470,054
JERTIE B & Current tax liabilities 272,606 626,474
REHIAEEE Deferred tax liabilities 856,964 837,132
’REERE Subordinated liabilities 5,416,390 5,438,386
BfELRH Total liabilities 291,448,825 291,514,051
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48. BEEEBRREREER @) 48. BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY (Cont'd)

(a) EBEEBRGE) (a) Balance sheet (Cont'd)

K12A31H As at 31 December 2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000

=N EQUITY

A& A Share capital 3,144,517 3,144,517

e Reserves 44,458,391 41,660,498

BN ASERREEAR BT Total equity attributable to owners of the parent 47,602,908 44,805,015

FBINEART A Additional equity instruments 9,314,890 9,314,890

EwNCEE Total equity 56,917,798 54,119,905

BERERRE Total liabilities and equity 348,366,623 345,633,956

RERSN2021F3 A3 BBZETHUATAL Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2021 and signed on

REREF behalf of the Board by:
PR 41 BF Chan Sai Ming 285 Liu Jun
3 Director 2 Director
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48. EESERREZBEHR® 48. BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY (Cont'd)
(b) REEBHX (b) Statement of changes in equity
G
Reserves
D
Szt ARth
2EYERE
AR FE  Resenefor
I EfEE  farlue
JR& Additional Pemises thoughother  EEEE*  HERE  BEEA
Share equity  revaluation comprehensive  Regulatory  Translation Retained 3t
capital  instruments reserve income reserve* reserve earnings Total
Bt AEfr  BETr  RETn AT BT BETr BT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2019F1A18 At 1 January 2019 3,144,517 9314890 6,029,950 (99,893 1,179,199 (12,144) 31,630,142 51,186,661
EEET Profit for the year - - - - - - 3062358 30623%
A2 Eks - Other comprehensive income:
FE Premises - - 91,192 - - - - 91,19
REaRilEzEEER Actuarial losses on defined benefit plan - - - - = = (13,160) (13,160)
ABRAL 2 RS Financial instruments at fair value through
JEBIE other comprehensive income - - - 263,103 = - = 263,103
FRREER Currency translation difference - - - 70 - - - 70
FENGES Total comprehensive income - - 91,192 263,173 - - 3049198 3403563
REELE 2B Release upon disposal of premises = - (2,199) - = = 2,199 =
XNEHNERTARE Distrioution payment for additional
equity instruments - (470,319) - - - - - (470,319)
SEORRRT Transfer from retained earnings - 470319 - - 28031 - (755,350) -
R2019212 8318 At 31 December 2019 3144517 9,314,890 6,118,943 163,280 1,464,230 (12,144) 33,926,189 54,119,905
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48. EEEBXRNKEZRSER®)

(b) HEZBER(E)

48. BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY (Cont'd)

(b) Statement of changes in equity (Cont'd)

fite
Reserves
MfE
Bt At
2ERERE
BiNER EE  Reserve for
I8 Efi@E  fairvalue
BA&  Additional  Premises throughother  EERfG*  BERE  EEEA
Share equity revaluation comprehensive  Regulatory  Translation ~ Retained @zt
capital  instruments reserve income reserve* reserve  earnings Total
AgTn  A%Tn  AMTn  B¥Tr A%t A%Tn ATn ATn
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000
R2020F1A18 At 1 January 2020 3,144,517 9314890 6,118,943 163,280 1,464,230 (12,144) 33,926,189 54,119,905
FREH Profit for the year - - - - - - 3,098,039 3,098,039
A2 Eks - Other comprehensive income:
FE Premises - - (151.239) - - - - (151239
AetlaRiEz REEE Actuarial losses on defined benefit plan - - - - - - (18,136)  (18,136)
MRBRG L2 G Financial instruments at fair value through
LERIA other comprehensive income - - - 334309 - - - 334309
EHAEER Currency translation difference - - - 54 - - - 54
FENREE Total comprehensive income - - (151235) 334,363 - - 3079903 3,263,031
SABNERTEARE Distribution payment for aditional
equity instruments - (465,138) - - - - - (465,138)
gEa/(3)BRER Transfer fromi{to) retained earnings - 465,138 - - (480675 - 15,537 -
R20205128318 At 31 December 2020 3144517 9,314,890 5,967,708 497,643 983,555 (12,144) 37,021,629 56,917,798
* RUBERIRIUREERI  HEERERBEDH BT 3 In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside
BAINEEEREERT —RERZ A (BERRIERK for general banking risks, including future losses or other unforeseeable risks,
Hih A r] AR ) in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised.

49. E%ﬁ&“ﬂ

Kﬁlm¢l EMEE . MPERSESETEA
40 B B B SR ([ BA B0 ) EErp 3 A R LA ([ R

ﬁDWiMIﬁ%ﬂﬁ% HERDIEBBHA RS

FARAT (BB LTS -

50. BImRAE
R BEHRERNL2021F3IF23EKEESRAR
i o
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49. ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Group is indirectly controlled by China Cinda, which is a state-
owned financial enterprise established in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF") and its shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

50. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 23 March 2021.



